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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @51 E D 4T

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

During the year 2018, the Group’s turnover decreased by 7% to
approximately HK$2.3 billion while gross profits increased by 11%
to approximately HK$39 million year-on-year. The Group recorded
a loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$109 million, among which impairment loss to book value of
Singapore listed securities of approximately HK$69 million, bad
debt provision of approximately HK$16 million and increase in
interest expense of approximately HK$39 million.

Lithium-related Business

Faced with the scheduled phase-out of subsidies policy for new
energy electric vehicles (NEVs), the entire industry value chain
including the lithium segment in China felt the pinch of tightening
cash flow in 2018. In particular, the second-tier and lower-tier
lithium compound processers that suffered from lackluster sales
with rising inventories, were among the first to resort to price cut
in the hope to maintain their market shares and generate cash.
Meanwhile, the price decline of imported lithium concentrate
lagged behind that of lithium compounds. This further squeezed
profit margins of those processers, who solely rely on procuring
raw materials from overseas mines. All these factors contributed
to a shift from restocking to destocking across the upstream and
downstream players.

On the supply side, new capacity of domestic salt lakes and
lithium compound plants gradually came on line, though the
quality of their products remains to be tested. On the demand
side, though the growth of NEVs sales continued to surprise on
the upside throughout the year, the implied demand for lithium
was not at par with that of supply due to seasonal fluctuations.
This partly contributed to a sharp adjustment in lithium price in
China, where the price of lithium carbonate almost halved in 2018:
price of battery-grade lithium carbonate fell from RMB166,000/
tonne at the beginning of the year, to approximately RMB80,000/
tonne at the end of the year; while the price of industry-grade
lithium carbonate fell from RMB150,000/tonne to approximately
RMB70,000/tonne. In sharp contrast to the domestic market, the
overseas market was featured with a price inversion — the battery-
grade lithium carbonate price has been oscillating at high level
since its steady ascending in 2017, and stood around US$14,000/
tonne (approximately RMB100,000/tonne) in the fourth quarter of
2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 B2 4T

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Lithium-related Business (continued)

As for the downstream application of lithium, NEVs continued
to be the major growth driver, contributing to 37% of the total
demand for lithium in 2018. Meanwhile, consumer electronics and
traditional industrial applications accounted for 28% and 35%,
respectively.

It is notable that the worldwide electric car sales advanced by
leaps and bounds in 2018: global sales of electric passenger
vehicles surged by 64.5% YoY to hit a record high of 2,018,247
units, surpassing 2 million units for the first time. The penetration
rate of electric cars reached 2.1%. In China, according to China
Association of Automotive Manufacturers (CAAM), the production
and sales of NEVs reached 1.27 million units and 1.256 million
units in 2018, representing a year-on-year increase of 59.9% and
61.7%, respectively. At the end of 2018, China’s ownership of
NEVs increased by 70% year-on-year to 2.61 million units, or 1.1%
of the total car ownership.

Against the overhang of the phase-out of subsidies policy, many
advantages of owing NEVs have been well received and gaining
more tractions, thanks to introductions of new models and
technologies. This has gradually helped the market to shift from a
policy-driven to a market-driven one. According to China Industrial
Association of Power Sources (CIAPS), China’s total installed lithium
battery capacity in NEVs reached 56.9GWh in 2018, up by 56.9%
YoY. By the end of 2018, the energy density of lithium battery cell
produced in China reached 265Wh/kg with cost below RMB1/Wh,
meeting the 2020 target in advance.

Globally, the annual growth rate of electric vehicle sales over the
past five years reached 60% in average. This sustained strong
growth has initiated a new cycle for lithium. Top 13 global
automakers have kicked off their long-term plan for ‘electrification’
with massive investment. According to their plans, 2020 will be
the year that they began to roll out streams of new NEV models.
In China, the NEV subsidies in 2019 are expected to be at least
30% below the level in 2018, However, as the cost structure of
NEVs gets competitive to that of traditional ICE cars, the auto
industry expects the demand to be unleashed to the level that will
be eventually free from subsidies support. 2019 sets to be a critical
year for the market-driven model to prevail: on the one hand, the
‘Dual-credit’ policy incentivizes automakers to produce more NEVs
instead of ICE cars, this should in turn provide a base line support;
on the other hand, substitutes of low-speed electric vehicles widely
used in rural areas, as well as intercity operations of NEVs will likely
trigger additional demand to sustain rapid sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Lithium-related Business (continued)

The Group is optimistic and confident about the long-term
development and future prospects of the lithium industry, and
expects a new round of upcycle in lithium industry to pan out
in coming years. As EU, Japan, South Korea, US and other
countries are increasingly aware of environmental issues, thus
promote policies that encourage adoption of electric vehicles,
automakers have committed huge investment so that the trend of
‘electrification” will strengthen across the globe. Looking forward
t0 2019, the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology (MIIT)
forecasts that China’s NEV production and sales will both exceed
1.5 million units, while Bloomberg predicts that the global electric
car sales will rise 40% to 2.6 million units, of which China will
account for approximately 57% of the market.

In terms of business operations, the Group remains committed
to transform into an integrated supplier in the upstream of
new energy materials. The Bald Hill Project in Western Australia
has produced a total of 68,546 tonnes of high-quality lithium
concentrates (SC6%) in 2018. In view of the volatile price
change of lithium compound in domestic market, the Group
has successfully amended the offtake contract in January 2019,
changing the buying entity to Jiangxi Baojiang Lithium Industrial
Limited (“Baojiang Lithium”), a joint venture that the Group
owns a 50% stake and also the eventual processing plant for the
contracted lithium concentrate. Besides, the pricing mechanism has
been adjusted from fixed price to a market-based floating price.
This greatly helps reduce the risk from large fluctuations in spot
price and is in the interest of the shareholders of the Group.

In addition, Baojiang Lithium begun trial production at the end of
2018. Commissioning and processing optimization work has been
organised by the production technology department. The plant
has successfully produced industry-grade lithium carbonates after
completing the single machine commissioning, water linkage test
and feeding test. Baojiang Lithium aims to produce battery-grade
lithium carbonates around the middle of 2019, so as to reach
the designed capacity within the year. The product will then be
available for sales after its quality is certified by end users.
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Management Discussion and Analysis B2 B2 4T

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Trading

In 2018, the Group’s steel trading volume declined by
approximately 23% compared to 2017, but the overall result was
about the same as in 2017.

In 2018, global demand for steel trended up. According to
the World Steel Association, global steel demand reached
approximately 1.66 billion tonnes during the year, increased by
approximately 4% compared with 2017. In particular, growth in
Asia and Oceania was the strongest, with demand increasing by
approximately 5%.

As for the Chinese market, both infrastructure investment and
equipment manufacturing in the nation continued to thrive
in 2018. Downstream demand for steel continued to grow,
while the relatively high level of real estate investment activities
further boosted the demand for steel, making consumption
of construction steel stronger. The National Development and
Reform Commission announced that, in 2018, China’s crude
steel production was approximately 928 million tonnes, up 6.6%
year-on-year; steel production climbed 8.5% year-on-year to
approximately 1.1 billion tonnes.

As improvements in steel demand provided strong support for
steel prices in China, domestic steel prices continued to rise above
the price level of the general export markets, causing China’s steel
exports to keep declining. Last year, the United States and the
European Union imposed a 25% tariff on imported steel products
and temporary safeguards for 23 types of imported steel products
respectively. This further affected the steel exports of China.
According to the General Administration of Customs, China’s steel
exports in 2018 were only approximately 69 million tonnes, down
by as much as 8.1% from 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @51 E D 4T

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (continued)
Steel Trading (continued)

In the face of the above, the Group has adjusted its business
strategies, that is procuring part of its steel export resources from
regions outside of China instead of relying on China as the main
source. The Group’s European branch is proactively exploring
resources in Europe and the Mediterranean region in an effort to
reduce its dependence on Chinese steel resources.

Looking forward to 2019, there is uncertainty around the global
demand for steel. Despite the continuous recovery of steel demand
in 2018, the uplift in 2019 may be weakened. Meanwhile, China’s
GDP growth has shown a downward trend each quarter last year,
and the effects of anti-dumping and exchange rate volatility have
also increased trade risks. The World Steel Association forecasts
that the growth of global steel demand will fall back to 1.4% in
2019.

In view of the fact that China’s steel industry has shifted from a
stage of rapid production growth to a new stage of high-quality
development, the Group will no longer adopt a commercial steel-
focused business model but continue to strengthen its exports
of high-quality Chinese steels for a variety of infrastructure and
machinery projects in 2019. In addition to the European market,
the Group will enhance its marketing efforts in Southeast Asia
and continuously strengthen its relationship with domestic and
foreign steel procurement channels, with the aim to improve
competitiveness and business performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Due to the fair value change in the listed investments during the
year, the Group’s total equity decreased to approximately HK$816
million. The Group’s gearing ratio, as a ratio of total borrowings
net of total cash and cash equivalents to total equity, increased to
0.73 (2017: 0.37) and current ratio, as a ratio of current assets to
current liabilities, decreased to 1.63 (2017: 2.32) respectively as at
31 December 2018.

Following the issue of convertible bonds and the Company’s notes
during the year, the total borrowings of the Group increased to
approximately HK$665 million (2017: HK$471 million) as at 31
December 2018 and their maturity profile was as follows:

Within one year —FR
Between one and two years —ZZFR
Between two and five years ZERFA

The Group’s borrowings were denominated in US Dollar, Hong
Kong Dollar, Euro and Singapore Dollar and were charged interest
at prevailing market rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The Group’s receipts, payments, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in US Dollar, Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, Euro and
Singapore Dollar. To minimise the exchange rate risk, forward
exchange contracts are used when required.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2018.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no capital commitments
(2017: HK$48,192,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @51 E D 4T

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the following assets were pledged:
(i) certain bank balances of approximately HK$346,000 (2017:
HK$27,696,000); (ii) certain bills and accounts receivable of
approximately HK$38,655,000 (2017: HK$126,436,000); (iii)
certain inventories of approximately HK$67,601,000 (2017:
HK$27,355,000); and (iv) certain financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$115,157,000 (2017:
HK$167,792,000).

STAFF

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 259 staff. Staff
remuneration packages are structured and reviewed by reference
to market terms and individual merits. The Group also provides
other staff benefits which include contributory provident fund and
medical insurance. Share options and discretionary bonus may
also be granted to eligible staff based on individual and the Group
performances. Training programmes for staff are provided as and
when required.
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Biographies of Directors EEEF

MR. CHAN SHING, AGED 63
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Chan joined the Group as Chairman and Managing Director
in 1998. Mr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in international
trading of minerals and metals, the processing and manufacturing
of related products, the management of industrial enterprises, the
investment in industrial and commercial properties, and corporate
planning and management.

MR. SIT HOI TUNG, AGED 53
Executive Director and Deputy General Manager

Mr. Sit joined the Group in 1998 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in 2000. He was promoted to Deputy General
Manager in 2006. Mr. Sit is in-charge of contracts and import/
export bills operation for commodity transaction. He had worked
for banking sector and metal trading companies and has over
20 years of experience in international metal trading and import/
export bills operation.

MR. KWOK WAI LAM, AGED 56
Executive Director

Mr. Kwok joined the Group in 1994 and is an Executive Director.
He is also the Company Secretary and the Group’s Financial
Controller. Mr. Kwok has over 30 years' experience in the areas of
auditing, finance and accounting. He is a Fellow of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

MR. SHAM KAI MAN, AGED 52
Executive Director

Mr. Sham joined the Group in 2000 and was appointed as an
Executive Director in July 2009. He is the Managing Director of
Burwill Resources Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, in-charge
of the Group’s steel and mineral trading business. Mr. Sham
graduated from The University of Hong Kong and, prior to joining
the Group, had worked for a multinational steel trading company
for 7 years. He has over 20 years extensive experience in steel
trading and gains good international connections.

MR. CUI SHU MING, AGED 81
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cui joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in 1998. Mr. Cui graduated from People’s University of
China. He was the Deputy Head of the Bank of China, Jiangsu
branch, the Executive Director of The National Commercial Bank,
Ltd. and the General Manager of its Hong Kong branch, a Director
and the Executive Vice President of The Ka Wah Bank Ltd.. Mr.
Cui is currently an Independent Non-Executive Director of China
LotSynergy Holdings Limited and Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited,
both are listed companies in Hong Kong. He has over 40 years of
experience in international finance and corporate planning and
management.
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Biographies of Directors EEEF

MR. TSANG KWOK WA, AGED 53
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tsang joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in June 2017. Mr. Tsang has over 30 years of experience
in accounting area. He holds a master degree of commerce with
major in accounting from Charles Sturt University in Australia.
Mr. Tsang is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a member of the CPA Australia and a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Australia. Mr. Tsang was an
independent non-executive director of China Investment Fund
Company Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong, during the
period from 2012 to 2015. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited.

MR. CHEUNG SING DIN, AGED 49
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheung joined the Group as an Independent Non-Executive
Director in June 2017. Mr. Cheung has over 25 years of experience
in property industry area and had served various founded surveying
firms, financial institutions and developers. He holds a master
degree of Project Management and a master degree of Finance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University as well as Executive
Master of Business Administration from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and a Registered Professional Surveyor (General
Practice). He is currently an executive director and the corporate
development director of PRUDEN Holdings Limited (formerly Icon
City Group Limited) and Adjunct Associate Professor of Department
of Real Estate and Construction in The University of Hong Kong.

MR. HUANG SHENGLAN, AGED 67
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Huang joined the Group in September 2004 and was re-
designated as a Non-Executive Director in March 2017. Mr.
Huang was an Executive Director and the Deputy Governor of
China Everbright Bank, Head Office, an Executive Director and
the General Manager of China Everbright Technology Limited, an
Executive Director of Asia Investment Finance Group Limited and an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company, Chongging
Road & Bridge Co. Ltd. and Symphony Holdings Limited. Mr. Huang
holds a diploma in Arts from Huazhong Normal University and in
International Economics from Huadong Normal University and a
certificate in International Economic Law from Xiamen University
and in Advanced Management Programme from the Business
School of Harvard University, USA. Mr. Huang is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of China LotSynergy Holdings Limited and
a Non-Executive Director of China Fortune Investments (Holding)
Limited.
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Report of Directors EE 5%

The board of Directors of Burwill Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) presents to the shareholders their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on pages 70 and 71.
The state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2018 is set out

in the balance sheet on pages 68 and 69.

The Group’s cash flows are set out in the consolidated statement of
cash flows on pages 75 and 76.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the Group are lithium concentrate
investment, productions and distributions; international metal
trading and mineral resources investment.

The Group’s segment results for the year and other segment
information are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIVIDEND

No interim dividend was paid during the year.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

Burwill Holdings Limited (25 /& 1% B& 5 PR 2 &)
(IARRFR) EEREMNERFREADARE
MEAR (&EIAEEDBE_T-—N\F+=
A=+—HILFEZEERWERLECEZIMB
WK o

B &
AEBBEE—T-/\F+_A=1t—HLFE
ZEEHINFEIOAERFENAZGABRER
R

AEBR_Z—-N\F+_A=+—B 20k
MEHIINFEBENFEIAEZEERBRA °

AEB RS REBBEREINFETSENET6
AZEARERERA -

FTEXBRREEIEOMN

ARAZEBEBR/REERRA -
AEBEZIZXEBRBERBIRE LENMHE
T BEReBESMNBEEERKE -

AEBEZFEDMEERETDERETIRN
A B mRMIFES -

3=

AR I EIRAS AR -

EERTHEMBEE_E-/\F+-A=+—H
LFFERNAHBRE (T —1F  £&) -

Burwill Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

13



14

Report of Directors EEF &

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers are as follows:

%
— the largest supplier 12
— five largest suppliers combined 40

The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s major
customers are as follows:

%
— the largest customer 8
— five largest customers combined 32

None of the Directors, their respective close associates nor
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the
above suppliers or customers at any time during the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The movements in property, plant and equipment during the year
are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures as at 31 December 2018 are set out in notes 9 to
11 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK LOANS

The particulars of the Group’s bank loans are set out in note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s bank loans were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar,
US Dollar and Euro. As at 31 December 2018, around 87% of the
Group’s bank loans were denominated in US Dollar. All the bank
loans bear interest at prevailing market rates.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out in note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

The Group donated a total of HK$1,000,000 to Hong Kong
Environmental Protection Practitioners Charity Association and
Hong Kong Environmental Protection Practitioners Association
during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders calculated in accordance with the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda amounted to HK$228,004,000
(2017: HK$228,004,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no statutory restriction against the
granting of such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company via Hillot
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, repurchased a
total of 36,506,000 shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
general mandate granted by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2018, details of which were as follows:

Number of shares

Price per share

S
RABBRARAFE 2 EBERFTI NG
BRFMFE18 -

R

REER
B5E 20 ©

2 EEIBIFINER G B HRE

B

BE-_Z—N\F+ZA=1+—HEFEAR =&
£ B/ A HIBFEH 1,000,000 (ZE—+5F:
) TRABLDESSNBEERRUEERS -

A 2 K 5k

R-ZE-NE+-_A=+—0 KBREEZE
—NMN\—FRRVERMTE - ARE A9k T
W R 228,004,000 T (ZE—+ 5 ¢
75 15228,004,0007T) °

RGOELBEERE

BRERBHEMBRNELBEEL EXER
il - NRRRZ A BAERI TR LR % F RN
HHE

BE HERERAQXFLTES

HE-_Z—-N\F+-_A=Z+—HILFER XK
ANE)EBEEK B A A Hilot Limited RIE R =
T-NFRAACABRTZBRRAFTAS LER
RRTEEELRMD 2 —MER  REBBE
RBEARAR ([BXA])) BRARRRMDE
$£36,506,000 % - FEIFWOT

Total consideration

Month/Year repurchased Highest Lowest (before expense)
BRER RELE

B/ % BoOROBA RS &K (R&HBASR)
HK$ HK$ HK$'000

B ke BET T

10/2018 23,110,000 0.163 0.132 3,359
12/2018 13,396,000 0.163 0.143 2,078
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES (continued)

All shares repurchased were subsequently cancelled and
accordingly the Company’s issued share capital was reduced by the
nominal value of these shares. The repurchases were effected for
the benefit of the shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net
assets and earnings per share of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the share option schemes adopted by the Company
on 8 June 2011 (“2011 Option Scheme”) and 7 June 2018 (“2018
Option Scheme”, together the “Share Option Schemes”), certain
options were granted to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the
Company. Details of which are set out as follows:

() Summary of terms of the Share Option Schemes
() Purpose of the Share Option Schemes

The purpose of the Share Option Schemes are to
provide incentives or rewards to Participants (as stated
in paragraph (ii)) for the contribution to the Group and
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and other personnel that are valuable to the
Group.

(i) Participants

Any individual being an employee (whether full-
time or part-time), officer, buying agent, selling
agent, consultant, sales representative or marketing
representative of, or supplier or provider of goods or
services to, the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
including any executive or non-executive director of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, who satisfies the
criteria set out in the Share Option Schemes.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

() Summary of terms of the Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(iii)  Maximum number of shares

(iv)

(v)

The limit on the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Schemes, together with all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other share
option schemes of the Company and/or any subsidiary
must not exceed 30 per cent. of the number of issued
shares from time to time. The total number of shares
available for issue under 2011 Option Scheme as at the
date of this report is 243,500,000 shares, representing
approximately 4.77 per cent. of the issued share capital
of the Company as of that date. The total number of
shares available for issue under 2018 Option Scheme
as at the date of this report is 512,832,823 shares,
representing approximately 10.04 per cent. of the
issued share capital of the Company as of that date.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
no Participant shall be granted an option which would
result in the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such Participant in any 12-month
period immediately preceding the proposed date of
grant for such options would exceed 1 per cent. of the
number of shares in issue as at the proposed date of
grant.

Option period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Schemes at any time during
a period of not exceeding 10 years to be notified by
the Board to the grantee, such period to commence
on the date of grant or such later date as the Board
may determine and expiring on the last day of the said
period. Under the Share Option Schemes, the Board
may, at its discretion, prescribe a minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

)

(m

Summary of terms of the Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant who accepts the
grant of an option in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Schemes on acceptance of the grant of
an option.

Subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under the options
to be granted under the Share Option Schemes will
be a price determined by the Board and notified to a
Participant at the time the grant of the options is made
to (and subject to acceptance by) the Participant and
will be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant (subject to
acceptance) of the option, which must be a business
day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant (subject to acceptance) of the option; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares.

The life of the Share Option Schemes

2011 Option Scheme was terminated after the
adoption of 2018 Option Scheme on 7 June 2018,
after which period no further options will be granted
nor accepted but the provisions of 2011 Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

2018 Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing from 7 June 2018,
after which period no further options will be granted
nor accepted but the provisions of 2018 Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

Movements of the Share Option Schemes

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no share options
had been granted, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed under
2018 Option Scheme. There were options for 463,800,000
shares granted by the Company under 2018 Option Scheme
on 20 February 2019.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(m

Movements of the Share Option Schemes (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the movements
of option shares under 2011 Option Scheme are shown as

BRESE (&)

(I BRESEZ2EH(E)

HE-_ZE—NE+-_RA=+—RHIEE
A 2011 BERRRERT BIIB T 2 B AR AERR D

follows: gEmT
Exercise period Number of option shares
ks BRERGHE
Exercise outstanding granted  exercised cancelled [apsed balance
Date of price as at during during during during asat
grant pershare  from until 01/01/2018 the year the year the year theyear  31/12/2018
H=g-0% RZE-N\E
-A T8
- =1-H
RABE SRAEE & 3 B8 ERRE EMAR EREE ERKM ]
HKS (Note 1)
% (1)
(i) Directors
g2
CHAN Shing 13/06/2017 0217 140072017 1300772019 4,900,000 - (4,900,000 - - -
B
SIT Hoi Tung 130612017 0217 140072017 1300772019 10,000,000 - (3,000,000 - - 7,000,000
BER
KWOK Wai Lam 13/06/2017 0217 140072017 1300772019 4,900,000 - - - - 4,900,000
e
SHAM Kai Man 130612017 0217 140072017 1300772019 4,900,000 - (4,900,000 - - -
ABX
CUIShu Ming 13/06/2017 0217 140072017 1300772019 4,900,000 - (4,900,000 - - -
EzH
TSANG Kwok Wa 13/06/2017 0217 140072017 1300772019 4,900,000 - - - - 4,900,000
gmE
CHEUNG Sing Din 13/06/2017 0217 140072017 1300772019 4,900,000 - - - - 4,900,000
REA
HUANG Shenglan 13/06/2017 0217 140072017 1300772019 4,900,000 - - - - 4,900,000
BhE
CHEUNG Kwan Note 2 131062017 0217 140072017 130072019 4,900,000 - - - (4,900,000 -
R8(02)
CHAN Ming Fai(Vote 2 130062017 0217 140072017 1300772019 4,900,000 - - - - 4,900,000
RAR (11i22)
(i) Continuous contract ~ 13/06/2017 0217 140072017 130722019 372,500,000 - (155,600,000 - - 216,900,000
employees
EGANES
Total:
it 426,600,000 - (173,300,000 = (4900,000) 248,400,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(I) Movements of the Share Option Schemes (continued)

Notes:

1. Details of option shares exercised during the year ended 31 December
2018 are as follows:
Exercise date Exercise price per share
TR BRITEE

HK$
B

09/01/2018 0.217
18/01/2018 0.217
27/02/2018 0.217
27/03/2018 0.217
18/04/2018 0.217
20/04/2018 0.217
11/05/2018 0.217
16/05/2018 0.217
18/05/2018 0.217
25/05/2018 0.217
01/06/2018 0.217
04/06/2018 0.217
12/06/2018 0.217
25/06/2018 0.217
03/07/2018 0.217
25/07/2018 0.217

2. Ms. CHEUNG Kwan retired as a Director of the Company after the

conclusion of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7
June 2018. Mr. CHAN Ming Fai resigned as a Director of the Company

with effect from 10 December 2018.
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1,000,000
1,000,000
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500,000
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3,000,000
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10,000,000
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4,900,000
100,000,000
10,000,000
1,900,000
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1,000,000
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Ms. CHEUNG Kwan (retired on 7 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai (resigned on 10 December 2018)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. HUANG Shenglan

In accordance with bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
Messrs. SIT Hoi Tung and SHAM Kai Man shall retire from office at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 11 and 12.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company (including those
interests and short positions which were taken or deemed to
have interests and short positions under the provisions of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

ESRTRAEAIRRG  HBERORESE
RHEENEERAR

RZZE-—NF+_A=+—8 RERXQER
fRFE 7 R BB IRD] (175 M 5P ) 5 352
RFTRER T HFNERMATE - RIKE L
MRITAEFETEFRZNFRETRIAM
ARR R - ARABBRES MITHRAERR
ARmgEERBAREE (EEREFLME
fERPIZE XV ER) Betn ~ R RIESFETHEE
IR R E 7 R RGP AR R R A B as Sk
B BT

RATFRAD R AERER G ER

Number of issued voting ordinary shares held

FREBTERERLERRNEA
Approximate
percentage in Number of
the Company's option shares
Personal Family Corporate issued voting personally
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total shares held
RIERRT fBAFits
BRTERERE BRE
BESpZ fAAESR RikER AL 3 By ROBEHL !
(Note 1)
(Bt 1)
CHAN Shing &35 170,772,521(L) 104,042,601 (L)  1,091,486,149(L)  1,366,301,271 () 26.74% (1) -
(Note 2)
(W#2)
SIT Hoi Tung &8 & 10,213,869 (L) - - 10,213,869 (L) 0.20% (L) 7,000,000
KWOK Wai Lam Z3E 7 - - - - 0% (L) 4,900,000
SHAM Kai Man £81 X 10,900,000 (L) - - 10,900,000 (L) 021% (L) -
CUI Shu Ming £E 8 7,150,000 (L) - - 7,150,000 (L) 0.14% (1) -
TSANG Kwok Wa & &% - - - - 0% (L) 4,900,000
CHEUNG Sing Din SR E # - - - - 0% (L) 4,900,000
HUANG Shenglan % B & 2,250,000 (L) - - 2,250,000 (L) 0.04% (L) 4,900,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. These underlying shares were unlisted option shares granted pursuant to the
share option scheme(s) of the Company. Particulars of which are set out in
section “Share Option Schemes"”.

2. 879,119,336 shares were held by Glory Add Limited (“Glory Add"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Favor King Limited (“Favor King”). 211,900,848 shares
were held by Strong Purpose Corporation (“Strong Purpose”). Favor King and
Strong Purpose are wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting, the
spouse of Mr. CHAN Shing. 465,965 shares were held by Hang Sing Overseas
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Orient Strength Limited (a company
which is wholly-owned by Ms. LAU Ting).

3. The letter “L"” denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes short position.

Save as otherwise disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had, or were
deemed under the SFO to have, any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers.

EERTRARRERS  HERORESR
PHEENERRAR (F)

RRRRE RAEBRY R (F)

Byt

I ERRERODBRIEAR R BRI ERH 2L
MR - H BN BR8] — &R -

2. 879,119,336 % F Favor King Limited ([ Favor King J)
% &K} B A 5 Glory Add Limited ([ Glory Add |) #
A ° 211,900,848 i B Strong Purpose Corporation
(['strong Purpose]) #58 ° BRIk o & K E B 212 2
+% & # A Favor King % Strong Purpose © 465,965 &
i 2f 22 + 2 & %A &) 2 7] Orient Strength Limited
3% 8 H 2 & [ & /A A Hang Sing Overseas Limited 55
5o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, according to the register required R-Z—N\F+_A=+—08 REAQE)ZE
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, the MBREHFMEEIENFEIB6IEFBEATERFZ
following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of ~ ZRMAHE, - L AL (KRR RZEERITHAA
the Company) had interests and short positions in the shares and B 4h) R AR R BIR% (5 K A8 B8 A% (7 AR 8 B #E 25
underlying shares of the Company: KKRAE -

24

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares

IR 10 K A B AR 40 FE 22

Number of
issued voting
ordinary shares

Approximate
percentage in
the Company'’s
issued voting

Name of shareholder Nature of interest held shares

e 1T FOR R NN

EREREER ERTERERE

BREEZRE fEmatE ®RAEA BRAEHGE

LAU Ting Personal, Family & Corporate 1,366,301,271 (L) 26.74% (L)
e A~ Rk & A A (Note 1)
(K1az1)

Favor King Corporate 879,119,336 (L) 17.21% (L)
NS (Note 2)
(Hiet2)

CHEUNG Kwan Personal & Corporate 662,110,000 (L) 12.96% (L)
RE [EPNS NG (Note 3)
(H1eE3)

Notes: Hiat -

104,042,601 shares were directly held by Ms. LAU Ting. 170,772,521
shares were directly held by Mr. CHAN Shing, the spouse of Ms. LAU Ting.
879,119,336 shares were held by Glory Add, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Favor King. 211,900,848 shares were held by Strong Purpose. Favor King and
Strong Purpose are wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting.
465,965 shares were held by Hang Sing Overseas Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Orient Strength Limited (a company which is wholly-owned by
Ms. LAU Ting). As the interests of each of Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting
are deemed to be the interests of each other, the figures referred to the same
shares.

1. 104,042,601 fx | Bl 5 2 T HIZ 5 170,772,521
BhHZELtrBEERAEEEEREA -
879,119,336 % F Favor King 2 & [f )& 2 & Glory
Add#5 A ° 211,900,848 % F Strong Purpose # A ©
B 3%, 5 4 2 1§ 22 = & & ¥ /A Favor King & Strong
Purpose © 465,965k R & IE X + 2 K H BN A A
Orient Strength Limited % 8 % & K B 2 7] Hang
Sing Overseas Limited 578 o B R BRI % 4 R 2= 22
TSR BN R - WA BT IERR/
f&tn o

2. These interests were held by Glory Add, a company which is wholly-owned by 2. 1t 55 4% 23 1 Favor King 2 & ¥ 5 #)A 7] Glory Add #
Favor King. Favor King is wholly-owned by Mr. CHAN Shing and Ms. LAU Ting. B o BRI S K 2lis 22+ %2 & HE A Favor King ©

3. 539,110,000 shares were directly held by Ms. CHEUNG Kwan. 123,000,000 3. 539,110,000 i 35 B #7 + EL %4 ° 123,000,000
shares were held by The Internet of Things Investment Ltd. which is wholly- [i% FR 3R B 22 - 2 & ¥k B #) 2 & The Internet of Things
owned by Ms. CHEUNG Kwan. Investment Ltd. 355 ©

4. The letter “L" denotes long position and the letter “S” denotes short position. 4. [LIRTRGE  [SIRTKE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, there was
no person (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO and/or who
were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the issued
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any members of the Group.

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS
2017 Convertible Bonds

The subscription agreement dated 25 September 2017 entered
into between Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd. and the Company in relation to convertible bonds in
the principal amount of US$20,000,000 (the “2017 Convertible
Bonds”). Upon full conversion of the 2017 Convertible Bonds at
the conversion price of HK$0.26 per conversion share (subject to
adjustments), a total of 603,846,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company (the “2017 Conversion Share(s)”) will be issued. The
2017 Convertible Bonds may be converted into ordinary shares of
the Company commencing on 3 June 2018. As at the date hereof,
no 2017 Conversion Shares are converted into ordinary shares
of the Company and therefore, no dilutive impact on number of
issued shares of the Company and its respectively shareholdings of
the substantial shareholders of the Company. Details of the 2017
Convertible Bonds were set out in the Company’s 2017 annual
report (the “2017 Annual Report”).
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2017 TR BRE S

7K A &) B Haitong International Financial
Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. A =& — &
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20,000,000 3 7T AT #2 I& f& % ([ 2017 AT #2 iR (&
#1) o 82017 IR ESF ETFRRAR D RRE
B 0.26 7T (] TR ) BEER - S8 T8
71603,846,000 IR A A RIFT @A AR 15 (12017
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B 2017 AR S AR QB EBAR
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ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
2018 Convertible Bonds

On 20 March 2018, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with Tongfang Securities Limited, Haitong International
Asset Management (HK) Limited and Mount Everest Fund in
relation to the issue of convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of US$13,000,000 by the Company (the “2018
Convertible Bonds"”). Upon full conversion of the 2018 Convertible
Bonds at the conversion price of HK$0.32 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments), a total of 316,875,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company (the “2018 Conversion Share(s)”) will be
issued. The 2018 Conversion Shares will be allotted and issued
pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Directors of the
Company at annual general meeting of the Company held on
30 June 2017. The conversion period of the 2018 Convertible
Bonds will commence on 28 July 2019. As at the date hereof,
no 2018 Conversion Shares are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company and therefore, no dilutive impact on number of
issued shares of the Company and its respectively shareholdings
of the substantial shareholders of the Company. Net proceeds
of approximately HK$24.74 million were applied for further
acquisition of shares in Alliance Mineral Assets Limited, a company
incorporated in Australia, which is currently admitted to the official
list of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and Australian
Securities Exchange; and approximately HK$74.63 million were
applied for general working capital in particular necessary expenses
for the operating cycle of procurement, logistics, processing and
sales in relation to lithium concentrates.

Mr. CHAN Shing has undertaken to remain as a substantial
shareholder of the Company during the term of the 2018
Convertible Bonds. Details of the issue of the 2018 Convertible
Bonds were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 20
March 2018 and 26 March 2018.

PLACING OF 7% NOTES DUE 2019, 2020 AND 2025

On 17 May 2017, the Company entered into conditional placing
agreement with GEO Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
pursuant to which the Placing Agent agreed to act as a placing
agent, on a best effort basis, for the purposes of arranging placees
for the issue of notes of an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$200,000,000 in multiple tranches with maturity period(s) of
two, three or eight years from the issue date. The placing period
was further extended to 30 April 2019.

As at the date hereof, 2-year-notes for an aggregate principal
amount of HK$45,500,000 were issued.
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DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN A SUBSIDIARY

On 4 May 2018, the Company (as vendor), Zaozhuang
Dongya Enterprise Company Limited (B E TS E X BR A
A)) (“Zaozhuang") (as purchaser) and Mr. Hou Chuangi (& &
7% (as guarantor) entered into a sale and purchase agreement
dated 4 May 2018, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
sell the entire issued shares of Smart Task Limited to Zaozhuang
for a consideration of RMB18,000,000 in cash (the “Disposal”).
The initial payment and second payment in an aggregate of
RMB1,500,000 were paid; the third payment of RMB6,500,000
will be paid on or before 18 May 2019 and the fourth payment
of RMB10,000,000 will be paid on or before 18 May 2020 by
Zaozhuang to the Company. The Disposal was completed on 15
May 2018. The Group records a gain of approximately HK$95
million from the Disposal.

Details of the Disposal were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 4 May 2018.

LITHIUM CONCENTRATE OFFTAKE CONTRACTS

Burwill Lithium Company Limited (“BLCL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, principally engages in lithium
concentrate procurement, lithium carbonate and lithium hydroxide
processing and sales.

BLCL entered into exclusive lithium concentrate offtake contracts
(as amended) (the “Contracts”) with Alliance Mineral Assets
Limited, Lithco No. 2 Pty Ltd and Tawana Resources NL (collectively,
the “Sellers”) respectively since 2017, pursuant to which, BLCL
advanced HK$86,298,000 to the Sellers as at 31 December 2018.

Following amendments made on the Contracts, the Company
and BLCL respectively entered into new amended contracts (the
“New Contracts”) with the Sellers, Jiangxi Special Electric Motor
Co., Ltd. and lJiangxi Bao Jiang Lithium Industrial Limited on 14
January 2019. The Company considered that entering into the New
Contracts determines new main buying entity, offtake quantities
and pricing mechanism etc. which greatly reduces the market price
risk caused by volatile fluctuation and is in the best interests of the
Company. Details of key terms of the New Contracts were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 15 January 2019.
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UPDATE ON LITIGATION
Legal proceeding in Hong Kong in relation to BCHL

On 4 November 2016, Burwill Commercial Holdings Limited
("BCHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as plaintiff
issued a writ of summons in the High Court of Hong Kong against
Charm Best Investments Inc. (“Charm Best”) and Mr. IP Kwok Kin
("Mr. IP") as defendants ("HCA 2895/2016").

BCHL made the Claim for, inter alia, the declaration that BCHL
validly exercised its rights under the deed of share charge dated
13 September 2016 (the “Deed”). BCHL's position is that it has
exercised its rights under the Deed to, inter alia, take over the
55% charged shares in China Land Assets Limited (the “Charged
Shares”) on 14 October 2016. As a result, Charm Best was no
longer the shareholder of China Land Assets Limited (“CLA") and
Mr. IP was no longer a director of CLA. The Charged Shares have
been transferred to the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Double
Honour Enterprises Limited, which holds the Charged Shares on
trust as a nominee.

A Statement of Claim (the “Claim”) under the action of HCA
2895/2016 was filed by BCHL on 13 February 2017 which was
subsequently amended and filed on 9 March 2017.

As at the date of this report, the date of trial of HCA 2895/2016
has not been fixed.

On 23 May 2017, Mr. IP and Charm Best issued a defence and
counterclaim in the High Court of Hong Kong against BCHL and
CLA under HCA 2895/2016. BCHL as plaintiff (by original action)
had filed and served the Reply and Defence to Counterclaim on 17
July 2017.

On 18 November 2016, Mr. IP and Charm Best issued a writ of
summons in the High Court of Hong Kong against, inter alias,
BCHL and CLA ("HCA 3015/2016"). On 4 January 2017, the Court
queried the need for the plaintiffs in HCA 3015/2016 (Mr. IP and
Charm Best), to issue such legal action and then on 6 February
2017, the Court directed the plaintiffs in HCA 3015/2016 to
proceed by way of a counterclaim under HCA 2895/2016.
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UPDATE ON LITIGATION (continued)

Legal proceeding in the PRC in relation to K R BEE AR
A and EEREWEFR LT

The Company has been provided with a writ dated 16 June 2015
("Writ") filed with the Shandong Province Yantai City Intermediate
People’s Court of the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") under
which an individual (“Plaintiff”) alleged that he is the beneficial
owner of 50% of the equity interest in 26f3 R ZBEBFR A 7
("Allegation”) and that & BZx &% AR 2 7] holds such 50%
equity interest in R[5 R BIEE B IR 2 A (" 55228 50% equity
interest”) as nominee for the Plaintiff. In the Writ, 3k [% Z= & & 5
AR A 7] has been named as defendant. In the interim, as a result
of the Allegation, the Shangdong Province Yantai City Intermediate
People’s Court of the PRC had imposed a freezing order in respect
of 35% equity interest in 2[5 R &EEFE AR QT held by TEF
ETEE AR A A (the “Freezing Order”). The frozen equity interest
was restricted from transfer or pledge during the existence of the
Freezing Order but the operations of &[5 Z= 2R Z G R A7) wil
not be hindered by the imposition of the Freezing Order. The trial
of the Allegation was held in August 2016 that the Plaintiff lost a
lawsuit and the judgement was received in the early 2017 that &
I Z= 5212 2 AR A A7) was not liable to any claim and the Plaintiff
alleged that he owned %[5 222 50% equity interest was not in
fact. The Plaintiff served a notice of appeal to the judgement. The
trial of the final appeal was held in December 2017 and it was
judged that the Plaintiff should have 0.67% of the equity interest
in K RBBEARAA.

On 15 May 2018, the Company sold the entire issued shares of
Smart Task Limited to Zaozhuang Dongya Enterprise Company
Limited (BH R E X AR A 8)). All matters of Allegation
remained unchanged on or before 15 May 2018 and there were no
further information to be provided after the disposal.
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OTHER INFORMATION DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO RULE
13.51B(1) OF LISTING RULES

With effect from 10 December 2018, Mr. CHAN Ming Fai resigned
as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company,
members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company and Mr. TSANG Kwok
Wa and Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din were appointed as members of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme(s) of the Company disclosed
above, at no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SERVICE CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company with no specific term of office
or for an initial term of three years (subject to individual contract)
from the date of appointment and will continue or be renewable
thereafter, until terminated by not less than one to six months
(subject to individual contract) notice in writing served by either
party on the other. Each of the Non-Executive Directors of the
Company has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of two/three years which is renewable for another
two/three years and can be terminated by notice in writing served
by either party on the other.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, there
was no contracts of significance (as defined in Note 15 of Appendix
16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which any of the Company’s Directors or members of its
management had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, there
was no contracts of significance (as defined in Note 16 of Appendix
16 of the Listing Rules) between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal actions against the Directors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of review of the Company’s business are set out in “Review
and Outlook” under the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. As a
responsible corporation, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the
applicable rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders including
employees, suppliers, customers, banks, regulators and
shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group and the
employees’ retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
income statement for the year are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 212.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the

Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules.

BRI AR AR Fik 2018

B AL RRA

AEERRBETROZLNEZEARTE
STE AR R MR 2 B - BESTRM R
BHE_ZT-N\F+-_A=1t—HILEFER &K
SEEREATH-—BEETHASERELE
BEBATEZRBEDIRIRG -

BRES  HER FEFRECEOHEZBE

AEEABAREEB RN BEREEER D
E BHREER fER TP RIT EEH
BMBRZH - AKEREERRESER
RN ERBERBB LR RIFREE -

EERKER
REERKEFNFEFBERFAFEREEE
HERZEEBRKENER SREATBRE
PEE29 ©

TEHBBE

AEEBEREMRFEZRE BERAR
METIENE2128 -

DREREZRHM
REBEADRAEARBEREZER  WIEE
FRAL - ANARMER EHARRIE 2 AR

=
==



Report of Directors EE 5%

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
currently comprises three Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa and
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed with the management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and auditing, internal controls and
financial reporting matters. The audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee.

AUDIT QUALIFICATION

Proposed plan of the Company to remove the audit
qualification

The root cause of the qualified opinion for 2018 is that the auditors
of the Company were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of CLA for the
year ended 31 December 2018 as a result of the disputes of the
Group with Mr. Ip and Charm Best which was originated from the
failure of Charm Best with respect to its repayment obligations to
the Group on CLA's behalf. Details of which are disclosed under
Note 35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements at pages 192 to
193 of the 2017 annual report of the Company. As a result, the
Company commenced the Legal Proceedings against Mr. Ip and
Charm Best in November 2016, details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 14 November 2016.

After the group restructure of CLA, which involved the disposal
of certain subsidiaries of CLA and was completed on 7 November
2018, the disputes of the Group with Mr. Ip and Charm Best and
hence the Legal Proceedings was no longer a major issue for the
current year's audit qualification. Therefore, the auditors were
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence with respect
to the remainder companies. As such, the management expects
that the Company can remove audit qualification for the financial
year ending 31 December 2019 (except for the opening) even
when (a) the Legal Proceedings has not been completed before
31 December 2019; and (b) the Company has not completed the
disposal of its 45% interest in CLA before 31 December 2019.
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AUDIT QUALIFICATION (continued)

Actual and potential impact of the audit qualification and
the views of the management and audit committee of the
Company

As mentioned in the Independent Auditors’ Report, the
independent auditors continue to be unable to satisfy themselves
as to whether (i) the carrying amount of the Group’s investment in
CLA of approximately HK$139,984,000 as included in the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018; and (ii) the
Group’s share of the loss of CLA of approximately HK$431,000
and other comprehensive income of CLA of approximately
HK$409,000, as included in the Group’s consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2018, respectively, were fairly
stated.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the qualified opinions on the
Company’s audited accounts for the year ended 31 December
2018 and has well noted the basis thereof.

The management has reviewed the impact of the audit
gualification on the Group and considers that such audit
qualification does not have significant effect on Group’s daily
operation as the audit qualification is related to an associate of the
Group only.

As mentioned above, after the group restructure of CLA, the
management expects, and the Audit Committee concurs that
with the basis stated above, the Company can remove audit
qualification for the financial year ending 31 December 2019
(except for the opening).

The Audit Committee concurred with the management’s view that
the Company can remove the audit qualification on the financial
information of CLA for the financial year ending 31 December
2019 (except for the opening).

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon the annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of the Company for
the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
CHAN Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors believe that good corporate governance is an
essential element in enhancing the confidence of shareholders,
investors, employees, business partners and the community as
a whole and also the performance of the Group. The board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board”) reviews the corporate
governance structure and practices from time to time and makes
necessary arrangements to ensure business activities and decision
making processes are made in a proper and prudent manner.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 December 2018, except
for the deviations as disclosed in this report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
for dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Shing (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Ms. CHEUNG Kwan (retired on 7 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai (resigned on 10 December 2018)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. HUANG Shenglan
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised eight Directors,
four of whom are Executive Directors (including the Chairman),
three of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors and one
of whom is Non-Executive Director. Details of backgrounds and
qualifications of each Director are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors” of this annual report. The Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal actions
against the Directors.

The Board is responsible for the overall strategic development
of the Group and determining policies and practices on the
Company’s corporate governance. It also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group’s business
operations. Executive Directors are responsible for running the
Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The day-
to-day running of the Company is delegated to the management
with department heads responsible for different aspects of the
businesses/functions.

The Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors) serve the relevant function of bringing
independent judgement on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board
meetings.

The Board considers that each Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company is independent in character and judgement. The
Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Group's business
development, operation and financial performance. Notice of at
least 14 days is given to all Directors for all regular board meetings
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular board
meetings adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters
is addressed to the Board. All Directors have access to board papers
and related materials, and are provided with adequate information
which enables the Board to make an informed decision on the
matters to be discussed and considered at the board meetings.
Minutes of board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Code provision A.6.5, Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, so they can ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with written materials.

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Code
provision A.6.5 by reading all materials provided by the Company
Secretary and/or attending regular training launched by the
professional bodies during the review period.

As stipulated in Code provision A.1.1, the board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals with active
participation, either in person or through other electronic means
of communication, of a majority of directors entitled to be present.
As the Company did not announce its quarterly results, two
regular Board meetings were held during the year for reviewing
and approving the interim and annual financial performance of
the Group, which did not fully comply with the relevant Code
provision. Board meetings will be held on other occasions when
Board decisions are required.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year under review, two regular Board meetings and
one general meeting were held. Details of the attendance of the
Directors are as follows:

BEER(E)
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BRAG - EFZHFLEFFBOT

Board General
Meeting Meeting
EEXZRgE BRAE
Executive Directors HBTES
Mr. CHAN Shing BRI 5
(Chairman and Managing Director) (EEFEFHLTHE) 2/2 11
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung B EA
(Deputy General Manager) (BIAEAHE) 2/2 11
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam SERE A 2/2 11
Mr. SHAM Kai Man SR EAE 2/2 11
Ms. CHEUNG Kwan SRER L
(retired on 7 June 2018) (ZZFE—NFENA+HRE) 0/1 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUKHTES
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLEE 2/2 11
Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa AL 2/2 11
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din of BE B 5E A 2/2 11
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai PR A 5 A
(resigned on 10 December 2018) (ZF—NF+=H+HEHT) 2/2 11
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. HUANG Shenglan =HELAE 2/2 0/1

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the chairman and chief executive were not performed
by separate individuals as stipulated in Code provision A.2.1. The
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company, Mr. CHAN
Shing, currently assumes the role of the chairman and also the
chief executive responsible for overseeing the function of the
Board and formulating overall strategies of and organising the
implementation structure for the Company and also managing
the Group’s overall business operations. Given the nature of the
Group's businesses which require considerable market expertise,
the Board believed that the vesting of the two roles provides the
Group with stable and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective planning and implementation of long term business
strategies. The Board will continuously review the effectiveness of
the structure to balance the power and authority of the Board and
the management.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Directors have not been required by the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”) to retire by rotation at least once every
three years. However, in accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-
laws, at each annual general meeting of the Company one-third of
the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not greater than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation save any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director. All Non-Executive Directors of
the Company had entered into service contracts with the Company
for an initial term of two/three years which is renewable for another
two/three years and the Board will ensure the retirement of each
Director, other than the one who holds the office as Chairman or
Managing Director, by rotation at least once every three years in
order to comply with Code provisions. The Chairman will not be
subject to retirement by rotation as stipulated in Code provision
A.4.2, as the Board considered that the continuity of office of the
Chairman provides the Group a strong and consistent leadership
and is of great importance to the smooth operations of the
Group. Messrs. SIT Hoi Tung and SHAM Kai Man are subject to
retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Bye-laws.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 September
2006 with specific written terms of reference which deal with its
authority and duties. As at 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee comprised four members, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr.
TSANG Kwok Wa, Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din and Mr. SIT Hoi Tung. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. CUI Shu Ming.
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai resigned as a member of the Remuneration
Committee with effect from 10 December 2018.

The Remuneration Committee will meet to determine the policy
for the remuneration of Directors and the senior management, and
consider and review the terms of service contracts of the Directors
and the senior management. In determining the emolument
payable to Directors, the Remuneration Committee took into
consideration factors such as time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, abilities, performance and contribution of the
Directors to the Group, the performance and profitability of
the Group, the remuneration benchmark in the industry, the
prevailing market/employment conditions and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the year
ended 31 December 2018 to review and make adjustments to
remuneration packages of the Directors. Details of the attendance
of the Remuneration Committee members are as follows:
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Members’
Attendance
ZEHERY
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE
(Remuneration Committee Chairman) (FWZEeF/E) 11
Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa BEELE
(appointed as a member on 10 December 2018) (RZFB-NFL+ZH+HAEEFZER) 0/0
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din of B8 B 5E A
(appointed as a member on 10 December 2018) (RZFE-NFL+ZH+HAEFZER) 0/0
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EEBREA 11
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai PR B 5 A
(resigned as a member on 10 December 2018) (RZFE-NFL+ZH+HAFEZER) 71

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 23 March 2012
with specific written terms of reference which deal with its
authority and duties. As at 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee comprised five members, Mr. CHAN Shing, Mr. SIT Hoi
Tung, Mr. CUI Shu Ming, Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa and Mr. CHEUNG
Sing Din. Mr. CHAN Shing is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. CHAN Ming Fai resigned as a member of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 10 December 2018.

The Nomination Committee’s duties include:

o to review the structure, size and composition of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

o to assess the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors; and

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive.

EEIER AR AT FHR 2018

REEES

ARERZE—F=A-+=HRIZEABH
ERXEEHENRERZEE R_F—/\F
tTZA=1+—8" }z%i/\a&llﬁéﬁkﬁ*&i 3
BREE  EERAKE  BEEALENREHR
EERMKEHERK - REZEGTFERRME
e ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁf‘ﬁiﬂ_f NFE+ZATHEHE
RALZEEXR8 -

RAZRE

‘|]1]u
i3

ZRBEBRE:

s BMIEFRARE  ABLMAK - TH
TAREAARNRARMN AR REE MBI E
EREHNEBIREES

s YEAK/EERAIEEEFNHAL
WHBEREEBATHEESKRULLM
%%%}E’L\ =) ;

o  MEBMIFRNTESFMNEMUME R
s HEFZOIREFNZOCULEF(LER

BEERIFERTHRAR) BEAEINES
BRI



Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8R4

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Nomination Committee has a policy concerning diversity
of Board members. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Two Nomination Committee meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2018 to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of the newly appointed Remuneration
Committee members and to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board. Details of the attendance of the
Nomination Committee members are as follows:
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Members’
Attendance
ZEEHERH
Mr. CHAN Shing BRI 5

(Nomination Committee Chairman) (lEEZE2+/E) 2/2
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung EEBREA 2/2
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLEE 2/2
Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa BEELE 171
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din of B8 B 5E A 11

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai %Hﬂf;ﬁﬁ%i
(resigned as a member on 10 December 2018) (R-ZFE-NFL+ZH+HAFEZER) 71

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is also responsible for determining policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Company;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and provides the
Board with advice and recommendations. As at 31 December
2018, the Audit Committee comprised three members, Mr. CUI
Shu Ming, Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa and Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din. All
of them are Independent Non-Executive Directors. The chairman
of the Audit Committee is Mr. CUI Shu Ming. Mr. CHAN Ming Fai
resigned as a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 10
December 2018. The Board considers that each Audit Committee
member has broad commercial experience and there is a suitable
mix of expertise in business, accounting and financial management
in the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s functions includes:

o to review and monitor financial reporting and the reporting
judgement contained in them; and

o to review financial and internal controls, accounting policies
and practices with management, internal and external
auditors.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year under
review, two of which were attended by the external auditors, HLB
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. Details of the attendance of the WX E % - BIZZ B EZ 8 2 HFksF1B 0
Audit Committee members are as follows: N
Members’
Attendance
ZEHERH
Mr. CUI Shu Ming EERLE
(Audit Committee Chairman) (FEEZEEFE) 3/3
Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa BEELE 3/3
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din of B8 B 5E A 3/3
Mr. CHAN Ming Fai B%%ﬁﬁ‘ﬁi
(resigned as a member on 10 December 2018) (R=ZFE-NF+ AT HHFAIZE) 22

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters. The audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.
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RISK COMMITTEE

The Risk Committee was established on 30 August 2016 with
specific written terms of reference which deal with its authority and
duties. The Risk Committee comprises five members, Mr. CHAN
Shing, Mr. SIT Hoi Tung, Mr. KWOK Wai Lam, Mr. SHAM Kai Man
and Mr. NG Man Fai, Matthew. Mr. CHAN Shing is the chairman of
the Risk Committee.

The Risk Committee is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

One Risk Committee meeting was held during the year under
review to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems which are summarized below:

Financial Risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by board committee(s) under
policies approved by the Board. The committee identifies, evaluates
and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s
operating units. The Board lays down principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and
treasury investments.

Currency risk management: cash balances principally denominated
in Hong Kong Dollar, Renminbi and US Dollar are deposited
at sizable financial institutions. Business transactions and loan
financing items as well as receipts and payments are principally
denominated in US Dollar. The Group considers that its exposure to
currency fluctuation risk is modest.

A currency risk management team has been established to tackle
few foreign exchange risks arising from Euro trading transactions.
Forward exchange contracts are used to hedge against transactions
settled in Euro. For transactions that are subject to foreign
exchange risk, we shall assess the foreign exchange risk and make
corresponding strategies and actions immediately after deals
confirmed with customers.
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RISK COMMITTEE (continued)
Financial Risks (continued)

Monthly updates giving details of the performance of the Group’s
business segments have been provided to the Directors. All
segment heads report monthly for their responsible segments
providing analysis and details of the business conditions, internal
management and external market environment in the past
month so that Directors can grasp the latest external and internal
conditions to decide strategies and make adjustments.

Operational

Besides the Risk Committee, Burwill Resources Limited (“BRL"),
a principal wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
also established a risk control committee to identify, evaluate
and manage risks. The Group sees risk management as every
employee’s responsibility.

All BRL customers would be assessed the payment ability under our
risk control policy before entering into the contract. For those with
low payment ability customers, BRL shall require them to provide
guarantee to assure the payment.

Steel trading team members usually meet once a week for
reporting their work progress as well as conducting market
researches and analysis to establish and/or adjust the operational
direction and strategy. Foreseeable significant market changes
should be timely reported to the Board.

Futures hedge has been imposed to ensure profit earned and
reduce risk. Such hedging issue is a kind of a risk control plan that is
analysed by our professional team. It sets out how all of the risks in
the market activities, government policy, futures product analysis,
the trend between USA and China and the sale of product policy
will be controlled.

Credit risk management: credit risk mainly arises from trade and
other receivables. Our trading business has high credit risk because
we, as agents, are exposed to all risks on accounts receivables and
inventories associated with the Group’s customers. We mainly use
letters of credit as a means of settlement for trading transactions.
The Group considers that its exposure to credit risk is modest.

For few receivable trading business, we have set up a global

credit risk management mechanism and have stringent policies to
manage the credit risk of these receivables.
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RISK COMMITTEE (continued)
Compliance

Currently, every employee should seek approval from their
supervisors before starting a new business. For influential and
significant investment or businesses, Board approval should be
obtained. For substantial transactions, advices from legal and
financial advisors are sought.

An “Inside Information Disclosure Policy” has been adopted by the
Company for handling and dissemination of inside information.
Directors should be responsible for the Board for reporting every
inside information they obtained. Once information was identified
to be inside information, those inside information should be kept
confidential before relevant dissemination.

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors financial reporting and
the reporting judgement contained in them. The Audit Committee
held three meetings this year, two of which were attended by the
external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited.

The Audit Committee from time to time engages external
accountants as our tax advisors to provide professional advices on
all tax liabilities arising from our operations.

The Risk Committee, on behalf of the Board, acknowledged that
the Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Details of the
attendance of the Risk Committee members are as follows:
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Members’

Attendance

ZEHERH

Mr. CHAN Shing (Risk Committee Chairman) ML (R EESEE) 11

Mr. SIT Hoi Tung BRI
Mr. KWOK Wai Lam SPERISTAE
Mr. SHAM Kai Man BRI A
Mr. NG Man Fai, Matthew RXpELAE

The Risk Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
functions and concluded them as effective and adequate in the
absence of internal audit function.

11
11
11
11

RRZBeCHARENEREE &N RREE
ERRBERNANRAEG T KI5 RBse
THENER BITERENMER UNMBTHE
ENBIIRENEBARERS EHIEL TR
A MERBERENMEZIENER T
REMB R -

Burwill Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

45



46

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &8

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had engaged
the Group’s external auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
and network firms, to provide the following services and their fees
charged are set out as below:

Types of Services BR 7% % 51
Audit of consolidated financial statements EEFEL
of the Group for the year U BmERE

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders are set
out on pages 64 to 66.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam is an Executive Director and the Company
Secretary of the Company and he had fulfilled the requirement
of Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year. He
has attained more than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year and his biography is set out in the “Biographies of
Directors” section of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the Company’s
paid-up capital may request the Board to convene a special general
meeting. The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the
registered office or head office of the Company. If the Board does
not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
special general meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

EEIER AR AT FHR 2018
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director
of the Company for election as a director at any general meeting
of the Company (the “General Meeting”), he/she can deposit
a written requisition to that effect at the registered office or
head office of the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary. In order for the Company to inform shareholders of
that proposal, the written requisition must state the full name
of the person proposed for election as a director, include the
person’s biographical details as required by rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules, and be signed by the shareholder (other than the
person to be proposed) concerned and that person indicating his/
her willingness to be elected. The period for lodgment of such a
written requisition will commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the General Meeting and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of the General Meeting.
If the requisition is received less than eleven business days prior
to the General Meeting, the Company will need to consider the
adjournment of the General Meeting in order to allow shareholders
at least ten business days’ notice of the proposal. For any other
resolution(s) to be proposed by shareholder(s) to put forward,
shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders of the Company or not less than
one hundred shareholders may submit a written requisition to
move such resolution(s); and the requisition must be signed by all
requisitionist(s) and deposited for the attention of the Company
Secretary at the registered office or head office of the Company
not less than six weeks before the General Meeting in case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one
week before the General Meeting in case of any other requisition
together with sufficient money to meet all relevant expenses. If
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution is received less than
eleven business days prior to the General Meeting, the Company
will need to consider the adjournment of the General Meeting in
order to allow shareholders at least ten business days’ notice of the
proposal.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary by post
to the Company of Unit 1402, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email to ir@burwill.com.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there was no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.

In order to provide the Company with greater flexibility for
future fund raisings as and when appropriate when investment
opportunities arise or for other corporate purposes, the Board
proposes to put forward to the shareholders for approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting by way of ordinary resolution
to increase the authorized share capital of the Company to
HK$880,000,000.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The chairman of the board should attend the annual general
meeting as stipulated in Code provision E.1.2. Mr. CHAN Shing, the
Chairman of the Board, attended the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 7 June 2018, chaired the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions.

ERIERAR AR Fik 2018
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ABOUT BURWILL

The Group is in the business of steel trading and distribution as well
as making investments in mineral resources.

ABOUT THE REPORT

The topic of sustainability is evolving as new initiatives grow
all around the world. Sustainability reporting has become an
established component of communications with stakeholders that
complements financial reporting. Our report has emerged as part
of a trend towards increasing transparency and accountability
on environmental and social performance, articulating a wide
spectrum of benefits and enabling stakeholders to better
understand the Group’s intrinsic value. Through the reporting
process, internal and external benefits can be evaluated,
comprising an optimisation process for cost reductions and
providing insights into business innovation.

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
2018 was compiled pursuant to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the ESG Guide) under Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This report covers the material issues of the Group’s operations for
the fiscal year from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018, unless
otherwise specified.

The content of this report centres on topics that are relevant to
the Group’s business strategy and success, which represent areas
of interest to the Group’s stakeholders based on a materiality

assessment and stakeholder engagement.

The topics are presented in a pillar framework under six key
headings, including:

) Supply Chain and Quality management
I)  Employment and Development

) Environmental

IV)  Health and Safety

V)  Ethics

VI)  Community Investment
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ABOUT THE REPORT (continued)

On the other hand, the Group’s business operations rely on external
suppliers with whom we have no direct control. This can lead
to challenges in sustainability policy execution. The Group will,
therefore, engage with these suppliers to help reshape the overall
sustainability strategy.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has a wide range of mandated topics for disclosure.
Realising significant and material topics may be important and
relevant with respect to the Group’s social and environmental
impacts that influence the decisions of stakeholders over both
the short- and long-term. Therefore, the Group has conducted a
materiality assessment to define the most significant issues with
those ranking highest both in business importance to the Group as
well as in importance to the Group's key stakeholders in accordance
with the ESG Guide.

In terms of the materiality assessment, prioritised topics were
identified covering supply chain and quality management,
employment and development, environmental issues, health and
safety, ethics as well as community investment.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

A stakeholder is someone who is affected by the Group’s actions
or affects the Group’s actions. The Group manages a number of
stakeholder relationships as well as ongoing dialogues to help
bolster the Group’s sustainability strategy. For instance, employees
regularly identify and engage with stakeholders in the course of
their daily work activities. In order to incorporate the views of
stakeholders, the Group actively explores new viable channels for
continuous engagement with a broad array of stakeholders.
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SUPPLY CHAIN AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Delivering quality steel products to the Group’s clients allows us
to achieve business success. By contrast, a product with a minor
defect could pose significant financial or reputational risks. For this
reason, the supply chain should be well managed, especially with
respect to the logistics of steel products, which play a critical role in
determining overall operational efficiency and cost structure.

Steel products are versatile and involve intensive raw material
input. They are also characterised by large material stocks, network
links among participants, specific storage conditions, and agreed
upon delivery schedules. The Group transports steel shipments
by sea. The most common causes of interruptions in the supply
chain include varying weather conditions, daily tidal variations,
the uploading gear available on the ships as well as the unloading
facilities available at the port. All of these factors can influence
the movement of cargo. However, among these issues, adverse
weather-related conditions rank as the most common factor, for
instance, dealing with varying temperatures and humidity cycles
during a vessel’s transit. Additionally, rust can also contribute to a
frequent cause of damage to steel products due to seawater, rain,
and condensation water in the means of transport or condensation
inside the packaging, during long voyages.

Carrying out inspections can help ensure a safe and quality delivery.
Inspection criteria comprise a vessel loading witness being present,
tallying the number of pieces during loading, closely examining
the steel product’s physical properties, maintaining proper storage
conditions, ensuring proper packing and cargo conditions, and
monitoring rust conditions. To examine rust conditions, we
adopt the American Rust Standard Guide, an industry reference
for grading hot rolled steel by surface condition. Examinations
based on the American Rust Standard A.R.S. Chart are applied for
systematic and consistent quality assurance. Under the American
Rust Standard Guide, hot-rolled steel is divided into four classes
according to specific surface conditions of steel, ranging from
entirely new blue to entirely rusted.

Regular inspections and effective packaging ensure product quality
from the point of manufacture to final delivery to clients. The
Group actively enhances its cooperative relationships with suppliers
through implementation of supplier control procedures that cover
a supplier’s technical competency, timely delivery of high-quality
products at reasonable prices as well as other specific evaluation
criteria. This relationship building is carried out for the sake of the
Group’s sustainable success.
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SUPPLY CHAIN AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT (continued)
Client Service

Client is invaluable to the Group and providing exceptional service
is always our fundamental value. Listening to clients is a simple yet
powerful way to achieve success with the Group’s client strategy.
While clients are always encouraged to provide feedback and
opinions, the Group must always react promptly to suggestions and
explore areas for improvement.

EMPLOYMENT AND DEVELOPMENT

The professional and personal competency of our employees is at
the heart of the Group’s long-term business success and a crucial
component for employee job security. To this end, continuous
training is an important requirement and a key internal priority
for the Group. It closely mirrors the performance and applicability
of the services provided to clients. The Group is also dedicated
to create a work environment where employees feel valued and
respected. Our employees must always have the opportunity
to learn and acquire skills in new areas regardless of their role,
function or grade.

Employment

The Group offers a comprehensive compensation package and a
wide range of benefits, comprising medical insurance, maternity
leave, marriage leave, paternity leave, compassionate leave as well
as education subsidies.

Diversity in the workplace as well creates a powerful competitive
advantage for the Group. A workforce comprising individuals
from different backgrounds, experiences, cultures and generations
helps the Group better navigate the markets and overcome
challenges. For this reason, the Group is dedicated to equal
employment opportunities, recruiting and retaining talented
individuals regardless of differences in gender, social background
and ethnicity. The Group’s human resources policy has been
developed based on all applicable legal legislation, including the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480), Disability Discrimination
Ordinance (Cap. 487), and Race Discrimination Ordinance (Cap.
602). Furthermore, the Group ensures protection to employees
who have the responsibility to care for an immediate family
member so that those persons may continue their employment
without being subject to discrimination, pursuant to the Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 527).
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EMPLOYMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (continued) MERRER(Z)
Employment (continued) MEBR (E)
Number of
Hong Kong Employees
EREEHE
2018 2017
Gender 4 51 2018 F 20174
Male = 37.5 38
Female 58 21.6 22
Number of
Hong Kong Employees
EREEHE
2018 2017
Age group F 48 Bl 2018 F 2017 F
Below 30 30 AT 0.6 1
30-50 30-507% 25.4 25
50 or above 507% 3k A 33.1 34
Turnover Rate
BN
2018 2017
Gender 4 5l 2018 F 20174
Male B 0.76% 2.17%
Female = 1.09% 1.48%
Development and Training BRERIEI

A central cornerstone of the Group involves providing employees &£ EE ) AE TRME— RSB gm T ER
with an intellectually stimulating environment where they can & BT EBT LKAE  HKMEEER
continually learn and grow in order to contribute to the Group’s ~ WHERAILEFHH#E o

success and ensure their internal promotion.

Employees often seek to advance their careers through continuing HZRE T FEEBIEEHEHIEERRE &
education. To assist in this endeavour the Group encourages EeERESEERFLTIHEEE TRESE I
employee ambitions by providing financial assistance for life-long  {2EEBI &) - AAFHR - RFINHFEH
learning, either at the request of the participating employee or by =t &% T{EMRRITREE MR IS EERETT 8t ©
general encouragement of the Group. For the sake of fairness, the

education subsidy scheme is explicitly based on a rating system that

takes into account job relevancy and length of service.
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EMPLOYMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (continued)

Development and Training (continued)

Gender Bl
Male =
Female z

Employee Category ST &5
Senior Management SRERRE
Middle Management FREEE
General Staff —%&BI

Labour Standards

The Group complies with requirements of all labour legislation and
monitors the evolving changes in this regard.

ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

Climate change, with its mounting evidence of impact on the
world’s weather patterns, portends a host of gloomy prognoses
and challenges. Moreover, hazardous air pollutants are well known
to cause serious health problems. Environmental degradation as
well decreases the overall amount of the world’s limited natural
resources, resulting in scarcity. These environmental issues may
trigger even more stringent regulations or add to the growing
concerns over a variety of aspects such as air emissions and
energy efficiency. Today the need for explicit consideration and
incorporation of an environmental strategy within the Group’s
corporate strategy has never been more critical.

ERIERAR AR Fik 2018

RERBRRE(Z)
BRREI(E)
Total Number of

Training Hours

$E S4B R B

2018 2017
2018 5 2017 %
133.5 181.3
30 38
Total Number of
Training Hours
3T 3 48 B
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
74.5 126.5
78 75.8
11 17
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ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)
Air Emissions

International transportation demand is driven by a rise in the
global population and economic growth. In 2015, the International
Transport Forum (ITF) anticipated that global freight transport
volumes will quadruple by 2050. Due to the increase of globalised
trade, shipping emissions are increasing in tandem.

Air pollution emissions could bring about a cumulative effect
that contributes to overall air quality problems such as acid rain
that affects populations in many areas, and harms the natural
environment. Furthermore, emissions from ships are transported in
the atmosphere over several hundreds of kilometres, and thus, can
also significantly contribute to air quality problems on land even if
they are emitted at sea. In recent years, public concerns regarding
the environmental impacts and air pollutant emissions (e.g. sulfur
oxides (SOx), nitrogen oxides (NOx)) of maritime transport vessels
have increased because of today’s massive petroleum-based, fuel
consumption society.

A majority of steel products is shipped by sea with the help of
external logistics service providers. The Group will explore how to
engage with these service providers and communicate with them
to minimise air emissions.

Carbon Emissions and Energy Consumption

The Group’s major businesses mostly operate in offices, whose
suppliers are not under the Group’s direct control. This situation
creates challenges in managing their emissions and green
initiatives. However, as a responsible member of the business
community, the Group is dedicated to reviewing and evaluating the
carbon emissions performance and energy consumption aspects of
our suppliers.

The Group reports on the GHG emissions of the head office
in Hong Kong as stipulated by the Greenhouse Gas Protocol,
including a corporate accounting and reporting standard published
by the World Resources Institute and World Business Council for
Sustainable Development.

BEE R

Total Scope 1 Emissions:

HEE 25

Total Scope 2 Emissions:
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% o

2018
2018 F

2017
20174

23,185 kg of
CO, equivalent

542,895 kg of
CO, equivalent

23,185kg 542,895kg
—HEtmES —EEREE
67,458 kg of 73,980 kg of
CO, equivalent CO, equivalent
67,458kg 73,980kg
—HtBRER “HALREE
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ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)
Emissions Reduction Policy

In order to mitigate harmful pollution emissions, the Group
has implemented energy-saving initiatives for the head office.
Air-conditioners comprise the main, fundamental electrical
appliance used in offices. The air-conditioning units can consume
unnecessarily large amounts of energy. Excessive use of air-
conditioning can also exacerbate the Greenhouse effect. To help
inculcate the concept of sustainability and cut down on energy
consumption, the Group has established several rules:

. Switch off the air-conditioners when the office is not in
operation.

o Ensure that all air-conditioning systems are turned off after
work hours.

o Maintain the indoor air temperature at around 25°C.

Consumption of energy for lighting and electrical equipment
may also lead to greenhouse gas emissions. In order to minimise
any environmental impact, the Group has actively promotes the
following rules:

o Switch off the lighting in conference rooms and offices that
are not in current operation.

o Switch off idle desktop screens, printers and others electrical
appliances.

o Use only electrical devices with efficiency Grade 1 or 2 under
the Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme by the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department.

Waste Management

Waste reduction is often associated with recycling, but there is
much more to the issue than that. Avoiding waste generation in
the first place and minimizing it are central to any waste reduction
strategy. Paper waste is a major issue for the Group. For this reason,
we use printers that enhance environmental sustainability, for
instance setting duplex printing as a default option, promoting the
use of e-leaflets as well as adopting the use of e-scanning to reduce
paper copies. Additionally, the Group has appointed a paper
recycling service provider to manage all paper waste.
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ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES (continued)
Packaging Materials

Packaging materials are deployed for marine shipping. Maritime
cargo must be secured within a container against all rolling,
pitching and yawing of the vessel. The best way to secure cargo
is to distribute it evenly without any gaps over the entire floor. If
gaps cannot be avoided, the space between the packaging and
container walls must be filled using air bags, dunnage or other
stowage material. The Group is liaising with its key suppliers to
evaluate the amount and types of packaging materials we use with
the aim of reducing overall waste.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Apart from measures concerning emissions and uses of resources,
the Group is aiming to embed environmental protection into
the overall procurement process while integrating requirements,
specifications and criteria that are compatible with and promote
environmental protection. One of the aspects relates to steel
recycling, incorporating the circular economy into the Group’s
sustainability strategy. Recycling is one of the most efficient ways to
protect the environment. Steel products naturally enable resource
conservation through their recyclability and durability. The Group
is devoted in sourcing recycled steels to save energy and natural
resources.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

A clean and safe environment is crucial to a productive workplace.
Most of our employees work in offices where indoor air quality,
including the physical and chemical nature of the ambient air is
a major concern with respect to office health. Hence, the Group
regularly appoints third party experts to conduct air duct cleaning
and pest control in order to improve the indoor work environment.

Despite these measures, some of the Group’s suppliers might find
it more challenging to implement policies concerning employee
health and safety at steel manufacturing sites. To address this
challenge, the Group will actively seek an array of channels to help
better engage these suppliers.

ETHICS
Carrying out business practices ethically is the cornerstone of the

Group’s success. We are committed to complying with all relevant
regulatory requirements both in China and Hong Kong.
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ETHICS (continued)
Anti-Corruption

The Group is firmly opposed to corruption in all forms. Corruption
includes bribery and trading in influence. The Group is committed
to complying with all applicable anti-corruption laws, including the
Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC, the Criminal Law of the
PRC and the Hong Kong Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter
201). In accordance with the Group’s policy, all employees shall
ensure that corruption does not occur.

With our thorough commitment to anti-corruption, no concluded
legal cases in this regard have been brought up against us.

Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property refers to a group of separate, intangible rights
that include trademarks and patents. In this regard, the Group
follows all pertinent regulatory requirements, including those
stipulated in the Trademarks Ordinance (Cap. 559). The Group
itself has also registered its trademark for the sake of property
rights protection.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group invests in communities by contributing time and
talent. This year, several employees continued to join Shanghai
Commercial’s Pok Oi Cycle for Millions to raise funds for Pok Oi
Hospital’s development and to help promote green living.

As a socially responsible corporation, the Group has all along been
engaging in community activities while expanding its footprint,
with an aim to pay back to society.

Invited by Hong Kong Environmental Protection Practitioners
Charity Association (“HKEPPCA"), the Group joined the gala dinner
held at Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre organized by
HKEPPCA and Hong Kong Environmental Protection Practitioners
Association on 18 January 2018. The theme of the gala dinner was
“Uniting the underprivileged. Serving the society.” In addition to
the wonderful performance, a donation ceremony was held during
the gala dinner. The funds raised in that evening will be used by
HKEPPCA to offer emergency assistance, scholarship and organize
activities for the underprivileged members. The Group donated
HK$1,000,000 at the gala dinner to support environmental
protection practitioners and show its care for the underprivileged
with an aim to promote positive attitude among society.
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Independent Auditors’ Report & 3 #Z Sl Rk &

B &3t F 5% 0 AF R A S

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BURWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 211, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As disclosed in the Annual Report 2016, on 23 March 2016,
the Group completed the disposal of its subsidiary, Burwill
China Portfolio Limited (“BCPL"), to China Land Assets Limited
(“CLA"), a 45% owned associate of the Group. As a result, the
Group’s investment in CLA, accounted for by the equity method,
was carried at approximately HK$139,984,000 on the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$147,340,000), and the Group’s share of the loss of CLA of
approximately HK$431,000 (2017: HK$82,942,000) and other
comprehensive income of CLA of approximately HK$409,000
(2017: other comprehensive expense of HK$2,290,000), were
included in the Group's consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2018, respectively.

Due to disputes between the Group and the 55% shareholder
of CLA, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence about the financial information of CLA as at and for
the year ended 31 December 2017. In view of the above and
in the absence of practicable alternative procedures in respect
of the financial information of CLA, we were unable to satisfy
ourselves as to whether (i) the carrying amount of the Group’s
investment in CLA of approximately HK$147,340,000 (net of
provision for impairment loss of approximately HK$91,032,000
which was made by the Group against the net assets of CLA at 31
December 2017) as included in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2017; and (ii) the Group’s share of the
loss of CLA of approximately HK$82,942,000 (net of provision
for impairment loss of approximately HK$91,032,000 which was
made by the Group against the net assets of CLA at 31 December
2017) and other comprehensive expense of CLA of approximately
HK$2,290,000, as included in the Group’s consolidated income
statement and consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2017, respectively, were fairly
stated. In our auditor’s report dated 29 March 2018 on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 we qualified our opinion due to a limitation in
the scope of our audit relating to this matter.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date
of this report, this matter has not been resolved as the legal
proceedings between the shareholders of CLA were still ongoing.
In view of the above and in the absence of practicable alternative
procedures in respect of the financial information of CLA, we
continue to be unable to satisfy ourselves as to whether (i) the
carrying amount of the Group’s investment in CLA of approximately
HK$139,984,000 as included in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2018; and (i) the Group’s share of the loss
of CLA of approximately HK$431,000 and other comprehensive
income of CLA of approximately HK$409,000, as included in
the Group's consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2018, respectively, were fairly stated. Consequently,
we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these
amounts were necessary. Any adjustments found to be necessary
in respect of the above would affect the Group’s net assets as at
31 December 2018, and could also affect the Group’s consolidated
financial performance for the year then ended, the opening
balances of the Group’s net assets, accumulated losses and other
reserves as at 1 January 2018, and the related disclosures in
these consolidated financial statements. In addition, the required
summarised financial information about CLA has not been
disclosed in accordance with HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities” issued by the HKICPA.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditors’

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

REBERZER(F)
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate
evidence about the carrying amount of the Group’s investment in
an associate, CLA, as at 31 December 2018 and the Group’s share
of the loss and other comprehensive income of CLA for the year.
Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the other
information is materially misstated with respect to these matters.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matters described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BRELER

Impairment assessment of bills and accounts receivable

Y 15 J e W IR G 1B A

We identified the impairment assessment of bills and
accounts receivable as a key audit matter due to the use of
judgements and estimates in assessing the recoverability of
these receivables as well as their materiality in the context of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

The Group adopted HKFRS 9 “Financial Instructions”,
effective from 1 January 2018. The impairment assessment
involves judgements as the calculation of expected credit
losses has to reflects information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future conditions, as well as the
time value of money.

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of bills and
accounts receivable is approximately HK$699,462,000
(net of allowance for impairment of accounts receivable of
HK$4,235,000). Details of the bills and accounts receivable
are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B A BT FE OS2 9 e LA MR TR O T L 0 A2 12 ) AR 4 B B
B EHBERESVBRRNEZNE - R EKE
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R E{E ) /378 % 699,462,000 7T (1% & M 1R IE AU E B M
78 #4,235,0007T)  EWRE K ERIRAFBEHNES
A mERME 16 -

BREERSE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MAEERARERSR 2T E

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of bills and accounts receivable included:

o Obtaining an understanding of how allowance
for impairment of bills and accounts receivable
is estimated by the management and testing the
preparation of the ageing analysis of bills and
accounts receivable;

o Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of
bills and accounts receivable with reference to the
credit history, subsequent settlements and ageing
analysis of customers; and

o Assessing whether the calculation of expected
credit loss is in accordance with HKFRS 9.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS® RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS® RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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AUDITORS® RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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REPORT ON OTHER MATTERS UNDER SECTIONS
407(2) AND 407(3) OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding accounting for the Group’s investment in
an associate, CLA, as described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report above:

o we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting
records had been kept; and

o we have not obtained all the information or explanations
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary

and material for the purpose of the audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 5 EEEEBE

At 31 December 2018 R=—ZE—\F+-_HA=+—H
Note
it
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE T & s A 6
Property, plant and equipment M - MR R 7
Intangible assets mIAE 8
Investments in associates iR NIETE 10
Investments in joint ventures BERNAIRE 11
Financial assets at fair value through Tﬁ@?fﬁLi@ﬁEi\ﬁ
other comprehensive income WA B bR B B 75 & 2E 13
Available-for-sale financial assets ARSI EEE 13
Club debentures A%%#
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISREE 23
Total non-current assets WBIETRE B E
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 14
Financial assets at fair value through ERAFEEBERYIK
profit or loss WS B E 15
Bills and accounts receivable JE IR ZE 45 N e W R TH 16
Deposits, prepayments and other e BERK
receivables EerRR 16
Due from associates Bt & N B R FR 10
Due from joint ventures BERNEIRK 11
Income tax refundable Al Y B P 7
Cash and bank balances He RIRTTAH 17
Total current assets BB EE
Total assets WmEE
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 18
Other reserves HEEeRE 20
Accumulated losses RETEE 20
Capital and reserves attributable to RATIERFRA
owners of the Company FE(G IR A R R
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR A
Total equity rEm

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
- 3,754

1,869 90,774
208,026 217,665
49,695 5,737
21,601 S

- 25,063

1,473 1,473
14,206 15,861
296,870 360,327
86,024 35,190
133,937 170,086
699,462 704,600
402,315 253,011
129,062 120,163
58 43

649 87
70,251 149,226
1,521,758 1,432,406
1,818,628 1,792,733
510,962 497,283
1,004,943 1,010,532
(691,187) (520,363)
824,718 987,452
(8,670) (35,646)
816,048 951,806




Consolidated Balance Sheet G5 EEEEBE
At 31 December 2018 R=—ZE—N\E+_-_H=+—8&

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
izt BET T BETIT
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings B 21 71,301 220,025
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTRARE 23 4 415
Provision for land restoration and T IE R MIRIE
environmental costs X AN B 25 = 4,125
Total non-current liabilities BIETBAR 71,305 224,565
Current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings B 21 593,871 251,093
Contract liabilities AHEE 22 32,179 =
Due to associates /N E O 10 516 568
Bills and accounts payable JE =45 K FE TR IR 24 88,000 116,916
Other payables and accruals HERMNIRERESER 215,109 247,753
Income tax payable FEASS PRS2 1,600 32
Total current liabilities BB EE 931,275 616,362
Total liabilities weE 1,002,580 840,927
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,818,628 1,792,733
Net current assets REBEEZFE 590,483 816,044
Total assets less current liabilities HBEERRBERE 887,353 1,176,371

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 211 were  F68F 211 ANGAMBRRCHEERR =
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and were ZT—AF=A -+ BltZ IREREEZHER

signed on its behalf by: E
CHAN SHING KWOK WAI LAM
R 358 SREFR
Chairman Director
FE EF
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Consolidated Income Statement &84 %
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
Kzt BET T BETIT
(4 E3l)
Continuing operations BESEER
Revenue A 5 2,305,467 2,491,789
Cost of sales $H & AR 27 (2,266,098) (2,456,404)
Gross profit E7 39,369 35,385
Other (expense)/income and net gains He () /AR
Wzt e 26 (52,281) 9,914
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHE A 27 (40,596) (38,661)
General and administrative expenses —REITHRER 27 (72,136) (44,847)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 8175 & &= B (B E5 18 F (& (18,814) =
Other operating expenses HpiEi 28 = (85,801)
Share option expenses B ES 19 = (26,160)
Operating loss &R (144,458) (150,170)
Finance costs BhE A AR 30 (57,944) (19,036)
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - WS REE
plant and equipment (E518) /e (1) 202,445
Share of profits/(losses) of associates FriGBt & AR &R, (EE) 10 2,023 (86,840)
Share of losses of joint ventures Frih & & A 8] Ea 11 (1,263) (164)
Loss before income tax B BTSSRI E 1R (201,643) (53,765)
Income tax (expense)/credit Frsfi (), B8 37 (2,570) 1,188
Loss for the year from continuing FERBBLEEBES
operations (204,213) (52,577)
Discontinued operations BARIEREEK
Profit for the year from discontinued FEERIELCEEBRN
operations 38 94,451 37,700
Loss for the year FEEE (109,762) (14,877)
Loss attributable to: EERBER :
Owners of the Company AKRBIERFE A (109,496) (7,715)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR A (266) (7,162)
(109,762) (14,877)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

(Loss)/Profit attributable to owners
of the Company arises from:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/Earnings per share from
continuing and discontinued
operations attributable to
owners of the Company
for the year

Basic (loss)/earnings per share
From continuing operations (HK cents)
From discontinued operations (HK cents)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
From continuing operations (HK cents)
From discontinued operations (HK cents)

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
Bt BET T BT
(4 E %)
(BR) /BRNRBNARR
B=FEARE :
HBISEET (203,947) (45,415)
BRI E RS 94,451 37,700
(109,496) (7,715)
FERQATAEZZEA
EBEREBEEEER
RORIEEESEREN
SR (EE) BF
32
FRER (EB) /B
REFELEZER B (4.02) (0.91)
KB BRI ETRS (B(L) 1.86 0.76
(2.16) (0.15)
SRS (B8) /&7
REFESEER GBI (4.02) (0.91)
RE BRI &R GBI 1.86 0.76
(2.16) (0.15)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 52 HERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
(restated)
Bt &t BT T BT
(45 21])
Loss for the year FEBE (109,762) (14,877)
Other comprehensive expense: He2EXH:
Items that may be reclassified to profit ~ AJFEEFT H M2 as
or loss #YIH H
Share of other comprehensive income/  FT{hEtE A RIEE2ME
(expense) of associates WA () 20 409 (3,845)
Release of translation adjustments upon & B A F1E L&
disposal of subsidiaries Bk 20 (55,515) (9,890)
Release of reserves upon reclassification — Hé ‘& /A &) & 51 {E 7] {f
of associate to available-for-sale HEVKEEE L FE
financial assets 20 - (9,432)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale A i H! & Bf # & 7=
financial assets N EEE) 20 = (33,536)
Reclassification upon impairment of AP ENBEERE
available-for-sale financial assets EERERE 20 - 33,536
Currency translation differences EkER =58 (16,683) 22,719
Items that will not be reclassified to RBEEAT IR B
profit or loss #yIH H
Changes in the fair value of equity EATEEBETEEA
investments at fair value through WA B IR &) AR A 5 &
other comprehensive income NEEE 20 (3,463) =
Other comprehensive expense FEHEHTEAEXML
for the year, net of tax kR HIR (75,252) (448)
Total comprehensive expense FEEEX NEE
for the year (185,014) (15,325)
Total comprehensive expense FERAYHEEREBER
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RAGIERFEREA (184,748) (7,506)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR A (266) (7,819)
(185,014) (15,325)
Total comprehensive (expense)income 2@ () WA 458
attributable to owners of the Company ~ SREB AR FlHE &
arising from: BEAKE :
Continuing operations FRE I T (223,950) (43,450)
Discontinued operations BRI T 39,202 35,944
(184,748) (7,506)

BRI AR AR £k 2018



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &R &S 8K
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

Balance at 1 January 2017

Comprehensive income
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense
Share of other comprehensive
expense of associates
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries
Release of reserves upon
reclassification of associate to
available-for-sale financial assets
Change in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets
Reclassification upon impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets
Currency translation differences
- Group
- Associates

Total other comprehensive income/
(expense)

Total comprehensive
income /(expense)

Repurchase of shares
Employee share option scheme:
- value of employee services

- share options exercised
Issue of convertible bonds
- equity component

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2017

“Et5-A-R&EH

FEYRA
EREER

Ep2Exd
FiEBEARER 2 E S H

HERBLRERELER
BELAEIIfFARLE
HHEEBLRER

AL ERFEELTE

T AERES
Cl-o

EWESEE

-£8

~BELT

Ep2EEN/ (Xi)
e

2ERA/ (i)
BE

BE R

[EERRES
-EERKEE
— {1 RRRE

R aRES
— AN

HEDERAANRHEH

“Z—+F+-A=1+-H
B

Note
fizt

20
20&38
20
20
20

20
20

18820

20
18820

20

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADERERE AR

Non-
Share Other  Accumulated controlling

capital reserves losses interests  Total equity
s Efth e ZitEE  JEERER BEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
501,656 972,159 (512,648) (27,827) 933,340
- - (7,715) (7,162) (14,877)

- (3,845) - - (3,845)

- (9,890) = = (9,890)

- (9,432) - - (9.432)

- (33,536) = = (33,536)

- 33,536 - - 33,536
- (10,383) - (657) (11,040)

- 33,759 - - 33,759
- 209 = (657) (448)
- 209 (7,715) (7,819 (15,325)
(5.313) (3,331) - - (8,644)
- 26,160 - - 26,160

940 1,099 - - 2,039

- 14,236 - - 14,236
(4,373) 38,164 - - 33,791
497,283 1,010,532 (520,363) (35,646) 951,806
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &R & B 8%

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

Balance at 1 January 2018 “E-\5-B-B&EH
Change in accounting policy SHRRE
Restated total equity at R=2-\§-HA-H

1 January 2018 RET|IBER
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Loss for the year FEEE

Other comprehensive expense At 2EZ M

Share of other comprehensive FriEsE AR 2 ERA
income of associates

Release upon disposal of subsidiaries & i B2 AlE 3 i s

Changes in the fair value of equity  ZAFEEBETZE
investments at fair value through WA B IR M) IRE 1% 6

other comprehensive income ATEZE
Currency translation differences ERERES

~ Group 5B

— Associates —HE AR

Total other comprehensive expense ~ Efti 2 E X 485
p

Total comprehensive expense 2EXINETE
Repurchase of shares BER
Employee share option scheme: (BB g+ -
- share options exercised —TRERE
Disposal of subsidiaries mEREAR

Release upon lapse of share options B Rk X ME i 1E
Total transactions with owners HEGREANR 588

Balance at 31 December 2018 “E-N\E+ZA=1-H
s

74 BRI AR AR £k 2018

Note

2.2(i)

20
20838
20

20
20

18820

18820

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG £ 2PN L
Non-
Share Other  Accumulated  controlling

capital reserves losses interests  Total equity
TN At ZiER  FERER BER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETRT BETT BETT BETT
497,283 1,010,532 (520,363) (35,646) 951,806
- - (10,040) - (10,040)
497,283 1,010,532 (530,403) (35,646) 941,766
- - (109,49) (266) (109,762)

- 409 - - 409
- (55,515) - - (55,515)

- (3,463) - - (3,463)

- (5,363) - - (5,363)

- (11,320) - - (11,320)

- (75,252) - - (75,252)

- (75.252) (109,496) (266) (185,014)
(3,651) (1,858) - - (5,509)
17,330 20,233 - - 37,563
- 51,580 (51,580) 27,282 27,282

- (292) 292 - -
13,679 69,663 (51,288) 27,242 59,296
510,962 1,004,943 (691,187) (8,670) 816,048




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z4HE$HRER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt BT T PR T T

Cash flows from operating activities ZEZBNHEESHE
Cash used in operations CUBEFTHMIR € 34(a) (226,729) (208,675)
Interest paid [EEREIES) (29,247) (13,479)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREBNET (480) =
Overseas tax paid BB INRIE = (849)
Overseas tax refunded RIBGINRIE - 41
Net cash used in operating activities CEESTENFIRS (256,456) (222,962)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBNHEESHE
Acquisition of property, BAME s &R

plant and equipment (6) (62)
Acquisition of an associate LN VNG - (5)
Deposits paid for subscription of shares  REER D E 1S (11,592) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - WS REE

plant and equipment Fr 53K - 262,421
Disposal of subsidiaries &S KB A A 38 1,631 95,996
Fund applied to financial assets at fair BEeRERATEERER

value through profit or loss I IR 8 B 75 & B (32,522) (122,113)
Funds released from derivative financial ZE&XBEH/ES T A -

instruments, net FRE = 2,850
Interest received =R ES) 196 243
Investments in joint ventures BENRIKE (48,192) =
Dividends received from an associate B U B &N B AR B 3,455 1,667
Dividends received from financial assets B Y% A F(EF BBz IR

at fair value through profit or loss WS EERE - 9
Net cash (used in)/generated from &R (FrA),/

investing activities EERFRS (87,030) 241,006
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 44538 €3

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

Cash flows from financing activities

Payments for share repurchase

Share options exercised

Increase/(decrease) in trust receipts
bank loans

Additions of other bank loans

Repayment of other bank loans

Additions of other loans

Issue of notes payables

Issue of convertible bonds

Interest element of finance lease rental
payments

Capital element of finance lease rental
payments

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank
balances

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

BRIER AR AR F3k 2018

Note
Kz

METHNREARE
AR E R X
1T R AL
EFERERTT
OBi4)
g EADIRITER
BEAEMRITER
SR
BITERNRIE
BITAI R IR(E 55
TT@$é§iﬁ RIBSN: )

/T>)\iii ﬂu/

NREHEEAN

BHEMRTEBRED
(38 10)

MEEPELNFRS

RekBReEEBEYRL)
iEljJD/q}%E\

R—A—BzHR&Kk
iﬁfi\“{ﬁ%
Tzz%bz

R+Z—ZA=+—B2
RAeMReEEY 34(b)

st =
ILEE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
(5,509) (8,644)
37,563 2,039
51,014 (74,872)
7,924 66,875
(19,302) (169,344)
4,432 69,379
85,026 22,800
99,221 152,492

- (50)

= (3,065)

27,350 (15,122)
287,719 42,488
(55,767) 60,532
121,530 60,566
(135) 432
65,628 121,530




GENERAL INFORMATION

Burwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
steel trading and lithium business.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. The Company’s shares have
been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 1983.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29
March 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i)  Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") except that the Group is unable to
fulfill the requirement of HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities” for its investment in an
associate, China Land Assets Limited. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 54 B &SRR KM =E
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

—REHR

EEZERERAA ([AAF]) H—RHE
BERAR - HMB AR X EZXK A
HEHNMEE -

ARBRBREIMRILAEREZAR
DA ARBBRMBE—NAN=ZFERE
BMERZAERAT ([BEFT]) £ e

BRBRAN  REMBRERALBET
T (BB T T IR - SREMBRRD
ROEEERE_F-NF=A=-th1H
e/ T3 -

EZEBRRBE

KRR AR B L F R B M SRR B
RAMERSTBRNBE - (R 2B
AN ZEBRRINAEERFEERE
R e BRI AAEE (BEARE
REKBLRE)RE -

21 mBEEE

() BFEBHBHREENRE
JB R EEG

REBREMBRERITIRR
EREHMAg ([FHG
B RE ) PR & BT R
SEA([HEEHFBHREE
Al)) R3-SR EREER
HRBERRMBEERR
RAZWEBTERMBR
SEMNEFRREMERZ
ST ZRTE - o K
REMBHRR T E A XA
&7 LR A R EE QB
PIRTE < @R T EH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value.

New standards and amendments to HKFRSs
that are mandatorily effective for the current
year

The Group has applied the following standards
and amendments for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January
2018:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and the
related Amendments

Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Transfers of Investment
Property

Amendments to
HKAS 40

The Group had to change its accounting policies
following the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
and the effects arising from initial application of
them are summarised below. The other standards
and amendments listed above did not have any
significant impact on the amounts recognised in
prior periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

BRI AR AR £k 2018

2.

EEEHBRBEE)

2.1

mBLE X (B)

(i)

(iii)

EE A%

FAEMBRREREBELK
AEELE EETHHE
ENBERATEAERI -

N 4F [ 58 ) 1 2 .2 AT K
AENEET BB R 53K & 2E A

AEBR-_ZE-—NF—A—
BRENFERSHEE X
RN T O ER RERTA

BEMBHRE SRMIA
ERIF 9%

BEMBHRE FPAOKNER
ERIF155%  HEEE

B (EREH MNERSRER
HEREBZE (AE
2)-2%

BEEMBHRE BOHIARZH
RIE 25 PEENE
{E3T

BEGER (EREBNE
FBREFT HEER=F

—mEE-F
—NERHFE
R —E D

BEGEN REMEEZ

FA0RIERT

AEBRERE B BRE
EAFIFRBBM RS L
Al 155 R AEEH I
R AFHAERERARZTE
MEMT - Bl E R R
& 7] 3 4 ¥ 38 1 HA e P SR
MEBERTMNEATE
AR EHE KRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 54 B &SRR KM =E
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EES:HHERE (&)

(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RBEEE(E)
(iv) New standards, amendments and (iv) [RER 2 F5TE R~ 155

interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments
and interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2018 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. The Group's assessment of the impact
of these new standards, amendments and
interpretations is set out below.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet by lessees, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only
exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.
The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$12,620,000.

For the lease commitments the Group expects
to recognise right-of-use assets on 1 January
2019 and lease liabilities (after adjustments
for prepayments and accrued lease payments
recognised as at 31 December 2018). Net current
assets may be lower due to the presentation of a
portion of the liability as a current liability.

R

BTG LR EFT M2
BOERMG ER_F-N\
F+-_A=1T—BHEHHE
WIERBI LR BAREAE
BIZATERM - AEBEZF
AT EA R MR BYE
M RFA ST o

BB BIREERE 16951
g

FRMHREEAF 165N
T RF—ABEM Ry
REHENREHRENE
DD RME EREER
RTmAEHERRAEAR
BEERBERAER - REH
R BE(HERENER
B M NHENMERER

RAR R EERNEH
MEEBEHEE - HEAZE
ARSI HREANES -

ZEAKFEZEREEHBLK
EHE 2 2T EE - NHREH
Y REE 2 A REEL
& AEIEL) & 751 12,620,000
3T o

HEEREMS - A5EE
HR-—_ZE—NF—A—H1E
REAEEENREESE (B
RZE—NE+ZA=+—
H#ER® T8 3IE K e
ENFIELARER) - ARE
DEEINAERBEE  HR
BEEFEMNEGRD -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv. New standards, amendments and

interpretations not yet adopted (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low value
leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as leases under
HKFRS 16.

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative
amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
Right-of-use assets for property leases will be
measured on transition as if the new rules had
always been applied. All other right-of-use assets
will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability on adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or
accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards, amendments
and interpretations that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

BRI AR AR £k 2018

2,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

EEEHBRRBEE)

2.1

mBLE X (F)

(iv) [ RIRA 2 Fra] ERY - 55T

R2EE(E)

BB BIREERE 16951
E(#&)

BOAER R R KE
BEREZHIIMERFTRE -
&by A FER AT RE AT &
FREPHREENF 1652
HERYER -

5K B 8 2% 7 R o ) R A
FH-_T-NF—-—A—Bi
F& R % ZE Al - AN 52 [ R e
BEBEIN BRTE8E
I B IRIR AN Z B F 2 H) L 82
By -YEHEERAREE
RN BIREFFTE e —
BHRBHRA o FrA EAE
REEESNERAKREE
BENS R E (BEMEN
HENHERHARE)

1B E At i R AR R0 22 R
BRI hREEREHARF
HEMBBRRELEATE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 54 B &SRR KM =E
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments on the Group's financial
statements.

() HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening accumulated losses (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to
contracts that are not completed at 1 January
2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from sales of
goods which arise from contracts with customers
in its steel trading operations.

2.

EEEHBRRBEE)

22 BEBEREH

NP SE AR R A 8 B 7 S R B
FNS|EL LA Wz REBUER
SERNF IR T ANKEE M
BRREKOTZE °

() BEUBHREEREI5HE
F &R Wz

AEBDRAFEERER
FEMBHRELEMNE 155
BB E ERAFE 1558
BREFB G ERF 185K
z BAGREMNE N RE
LN IEERE -

AEBEDEWPEBELMB
WEERNFE55 - ERE
R%ENZZBEXEENE
RERBH(ZZE—N\F—A
—R)HER - RNEXREMARH
ZEMEZRER AN R E
B (RECERED - HER)
R BEX BB LA -
BE REEAEUBRSE
RIS 1558 2 BRI A&k
BEREEHRN -_T-N\F
—A—HHEAERZAXE
WEBZER - HRERE
HRIREBEREGERE 18
Sz R BEGERE 1
SRERAAANBERER
At - BT HERER A6
EOALLE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)

BRERARA

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

The transition to HKFRS 15 does not have impact
on the Group’s accumulated losses at 1 January
2018.

The following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Current liabilities RBaE
Other payables and accruals HEEMNRBERESER
Contract liabilities AHEE

As at 1 January 2018, receipts in advance
from customers amounting to approximately
HK$20,359,000 in respect of sales contracts
signed with customers previous included in
other payables and accruals were reclassified to
contract liabilities.

\&] F3R 2018

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

EEEHBRBEE)

22 ERBEESH(E)

() BBUBHREERFEISHEE
Fa#lz (&)
BEERBNBREERSE
ISRHPAEER T~ /\F
—A—RZREABRIEY
2,
H_T-N\F—-HA—B#&K
é?ﬁL%%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ
mmﬁmToiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
SR EBHYEMNEE -
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
—N\F
—A—H
—T—tF REF BTG
+ZR=+—-AH HEER
BEEH F155HE
HIREE ENOE HIRE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
247,753 (20,359) 227,394
- 20,359 20,359
HEPIIZHES QTR

~F 3k 49 7% # 20,359,000 7T,
REFER © EAIRFRIE X
JEEtER BEAE-_T—/\F
—B—HREFHPEAEEYD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 55 B &R T M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EE®

(continued)

ATRERBE(E)

22 ERBEESH(E)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (i) BBYBEHREERFIN LA

In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related

TA

RAEE AEBEERE
BB MEERFEIFEHT

consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. E&H BB B RS AR R
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for i) the BIAE AR BB E] - BB 5
classification and measurement of financial assets WMEERE RS ABE T
and financial liabilities; i) expected credit losses BIEMFHRTE VW BHEER

(“ECL") for financial assets; and iii) general hedge
accounting.

PHEaBEND iﬁﬁ?g ii) B
BEEMTFESHEEER (78

HEEEE]  Rii)— &Y
GG o
The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance AEBERBEEBVBRE

with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9.
i.e. applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have
not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018
(date of initial application) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018.
The difference between carrying amounts as at
31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as
at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and other components
of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

ZERIIZE 9 SR AT B A EIR IR SR
REBUBREERIE IR -
s —F—-N\F—-A—R((&
IRFER B H) i R AR LEFERR Y
THEPEROBRAER
E(BREHEEEEEAT
HURE) - ERBH T\
F-A—BEKRRILBERD
TRARAZSHRE —F—t
i-i-‘ﬁ =t —HWiREE
H_FT-N\F—-A—HHIK
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BEEECEDBOPER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &35 B &R ERKM =
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification
and measurement of financial assets, and the
adjustment due to new requirements for ECL,
under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial

application, 1 January 2018.

Closing balance at 31 December —Z-t%£+-f=1-A
ZBRGH-FRE

2017 - HKAS 39
EHE30%

Reclassification BN R
From available-for sale (" AFS")

Remeasurement EffiE

Impairment losses under ECL model B fZEHRERET

ZREBR

Opening balance at 1 January 2018 IREEAEBREERFIH
RZB-NE-R-BZ

under HKFRS 9
ke

BRZERER AR 3, 2018

BAHE (THHE])

U

(i)

2. EEENHEBEE)

22 BEEESH(E)

Available-
for-sale
financial assets

(i)

BBE R EERE I 2/
TH#E)
BEXEAEBHYBHREEL
BIFELEN HEME
TEREBOR_ZE—N\F—A
—BEXERABH RERE
B BHREENEIRRES
S EAE R UBEE
MNoBEkiTE REEMEE
EEFREEL AL -
Financial
assets at
amortised cost
(previously
Equity lassified as
instruments loans and Accumulated
atFvocl receivables) losses
¢ S

BOVERE  EMREE

UiHg  HpREMA  (REAEA
MBRE JIRZBAIR  ERREAH) SR
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
EBTTL EETT EETTL EETT
25,063 - 1,064,289 (520,363)
(25,063) 25,063 - -
- - (10,040) (10,040)
- 25,63 1,054,249 (530,403)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i)  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets

From AFS financial assets to fair value
through other comprehensive income
(“"FvoCl”)

The Group elected to present in other
comprehensive income (“OCI") for the fair
value changes of all its equity investment
previously classified as AFS. The investment
is not held for trading and not expected
to be sold in the foreseeable future. At
the date of initial application of HKFRS
9, approximately HK$25,063,000 were
reclassified from AFS financial assets to
equity instrument at FVOCI, which related
to listed equity investment previously
measured at fair value under HKAS 39.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applied the new HKFRS 9
ECL model from 1 January 2018. As
at 1 January 2018, additional credit
loss allowance for financial assets of
approximately HK$10,040,000 has been
recognised against accumulated losses. The
additional loss allowance is charged against
the respective asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(iii) Impacts on opening consolidated balance
sheet arising from the application of all new
standards

As a result of the changes in the Group's
accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated balance sheet had to be restated.
The following table shows the adjustments
recognised for each of the line items affected.
Line items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included.

2.

EEEHBRRBEE)

22 ERBEESH(E)

31 December

2017
(Audlted)
ZTtE
tZR=1-H
(#5%)
HK$'000
BRI
Non-current assets FRBEE
AFS finandial assets ARLERBEE 25,063
Equity instruments at FVOC| EATEABACEA
WAFIRORAT R -
Current assets HBEE
Financial assets at fairvalue through ~ RAFEEBBHTIEA
profitor loss UBEE 170,086
Bills and accounts receivable ENZERENIRE 704,600
Deposits and otfer receivables REREvEYE 90,257
Due from associates BENARF 120,163
Due from joint ventures NG 3
Cash and bank balances BeRBEH 149,226
Current labilities poEp=
Contract liabilties ANAER -
Other payables and accruals EvRMNBEREER 247753
Capital and reserve BAR G
Accumulated losses i 520,363

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018

(i) [ESBFTEHET BRI E RS EE
EREBHHZE

AR B B R
2T WA EEAERE
&5 - TEBAREAELE
BB B PR HRE o TR 8
FABL0TE R R DI o

1 January
HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 2018
(Restated)

BEIH e
RS ] 0%
£15% 298 -A-A
(#z7))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTL BETTL BETT
- (25,03) -
- 25,063 25,063
- - 170,086
- (4,185) 700,415
- (5,599) 84,658
- (256) 119,907
- - 43
- - 149,226
20,359 - 20,359
(20,359) - 227,394
- 10,040 530,403
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

i

il

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated balance sheet respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see (iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

2.

EEEHBRRBEE)

23 mBEZERE ZEA

il.

K18 2 7]

B 88 2 ] 5 AN 5% [ % A 4R
ROMMAER (BRERE
B) FXRKEAZIEFZL
HERMSAZOE  BA
ENEBETERERELRZ
BAFEZFORE - RIAE
Bz ERE -HEAR A
BB EAKE 2 BERH
BEREA AR B
Az BREE LA AR -

AEBRARBEEARE
B HFoIR o

SERNRRERS EHKLZ
SRR W T LA -
REREIE T T AKS - R
HRFBEEEBRTMERE
EHRBE - ARFDELS
ZRFATHMBERAR Z &5
BRFEHER]  ARRER
SEMRA IR -

RHBRARIZ RERERZ
FEIEIR RS DRI EIE 25N
I AdE Rt | A A B St
R -HARRBEPREES
BEREXR-

BEnd

BeENRABAEEHESE
R BBTHER P HIRE L £
FHEFI T BB - R —
BBERT  AEEHEENT
20% Z50% B Z=HE o A Y]
IR ATERE R ERA
MR ERAESRETE (R
T (iv) AR °

Burwill Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

87



88

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

iif.

iv.

BRERARA

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,
investments in joint arrangements are classified
as either joint operations or joint ventures. The
classification depends on the contractual rights
and obligations of each investor, rather than the
legal structure of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (see (iv) below), after initially
being recognised at cost in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of
the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its
interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

\&] F3R 2018

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

iv.

Equity method (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note 2.9.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a loss
of control as transactions with equity owners of
the Group. A change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests
to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE
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iv.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(continued)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence,
any retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture
or an associate is reduced but joint control
or significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

BRI AR AR £k 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.4

2.5

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the board of directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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2.5
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar (HK$), which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balance

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end
exchange rates are generally recognised in profit
or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate
to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of
the net investment in a foreign operation.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement
within “general and administrative expenses”.

BRI AR AR £k 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

o income and expenses for each
income statement and statement of
comprehensive income are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii)  Group companies (continued)

(iv)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part
of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or
loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.

BRI AR AR £k 2018
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EES:HHERE (&)

(continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 YE - BBERRE

Land and buildings comprised offices. Leasehold
land classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets are calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net
of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives
or, in the case of leasehold improvements and certain
leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as
follows:

e leasehold land Shorter of remaining
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X BB R RERELKARITE
TR EREIR SR o 2 AN BRI
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DEABRERENHEE L #H
REMEENFTEREMAFAIER
FHARBEREDBEKARE
28R (R RIEREE) 51 E - il
REEMEREENETHERE M
i QA TREHERE

s INHEARER FHHEEHR

classified as finance lease term or useful EMAEEL =SAFEARF
lease life #h HREE

e Buildings 25 to 50 years s E¥F 25F 504

e Leasehold 410 5 years (or over o HERBFEE 4E5F (X
improvements the period of leases if A F H

shorter) (E5G))

e Machinery 8 to 10 years o e 8Z 104

e Furniture and 4 1o 10 years e RAKRHE 4E10F
equipment

e Motor vehicles 4 to0 10 years o EHH 4105

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

2.8

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Mining right

Mining right acquired separately is measured on
initial recognition at cost. Mining right acquired
in a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the date of acquisition. Mining right
has a finite useful life and is carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
mining right over its estimated useful life of 30
years.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are stated
at cost less impairment losses. Exploration
and evaluation assets include topographical
and geological surveys, exploratory drilling,
sampling and trenching and activities in relation
to commercial and technical feasibility studies,
and expenditure incurred to secure further
mineralisation in existing ore bodies and to
expand the capacity of a mine. Expenditure
incurred prior to acquiring legal rights to explore
an area is written off as incurred. When it can be
reasonably ascertained that a mining property is
capable of commercial production, exploration
and evaluation costs are transferred to mining
right and are amortised based on the accounting
policy as stated in “Mining right” above. If any
project is abandoned during the evaluation stage,
the total expenditure thereon will be written off.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 55 B &R T M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Intangible assets (continued)
(iif) Domain names and trademarks

Acquisition costs of domain names and legal
costs related to the registration of trademarks are
capitalised and amortised on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of ten years.
(iv) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of ten years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, is part
of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line
of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of
discontinued operations are presented separately in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

(i)

(i)

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through OCl or through profit
or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity instruments that are
not held for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 55 B &R T M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EE®

(continued)

ATRERBE(E)

211 REREMUBEE (&)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

iE

(iii)  Measurement (iii)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a

RN TER R - AR BRI 5

financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of BEZATESN(HHEE
a financial asset not at fair value through profit EXFEZRAFEERERT
or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly R BEERBERREMSEE

attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.
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Financial assets with embedded derivatives are EREAFEBRAXNITETLA
considered in their entirety when determining Zﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁzfﬁiumiﬁé?—ﬂ
whether their cash flows are solely payment of ERENAE R B -
principal and interest. %ﬂﬁ‘%ﬁﬁﬁ’\]%&%f’ﬁ%)}? °

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

EBTA

BT A Z&EFTEHIURRN
AEEEREEZZBER
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=&z =257 :

e Amortised cost: Assets that are held for o HESHAK : fWiF{ENE
collection of contractual cash flows where BHBEERECEEZ
those cash flows represent solely payments E%xﬁ%@l%iﬁKi
of principal and interest are measured KRS - BIREE $H A AR
at amortised cost. Interest income from P2 o RFUMBEEL
these financial assets is included in finance B AR B BR F %

income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange
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gains and losses. Impairment losses are SR o BEEEREE
presented as separate line item in the BRxTERBIIAR
consolidated income statement. HITR ©
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)
(iii) Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in other gains/(losses). Interest income
from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured
at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period
in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 55 B &R T M=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

(iv)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For bills and accounts receivable, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_-_A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(v)

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively,
but has elected not to restate comparative
information. As a result, the comparative
information provided continues to be accounted
for in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017 the Group classifies its

financial assets in the following categories:

o financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss;

. loans and receivables; and

] available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification depended on the purpose

for which the investments were acquired.

Management determined the classification of its
investments at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 54 B &SRR KM =E
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(continued)

EEEHBRRBEE)

211 REREMUBEE (&)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

v) ERZ-Z—+tF+=4
=t —HZEHE (&)

(v) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (continued)

Reclassification

The Group could choose to reclassify a
non-derivative trading financial asset out of
the held for trading category if the financial
asset was no longer held for the purpose
of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets other than loans and receivables
were permitted to be reclassified out of
the held for trading category only in rare
circumstances arising from a single event
that was unusual and highly unlikely to
recur in the near term. In addition, the
Group could choose to reclassify financial

a. EHoH

W B E T B EH
MHAHE - RIARSKER]
BERIFTER S M
BEEBRBEEER
RIRBHABHOME
B YRR AN
MBEEEERBELETS
FERNTMBELOH
SEMNE-—FHME
HOFERBRT 58
BREFEERMNTE
B BFHDHE B -

assets that would meet the definition of WASBEEEBFRE
loans and receivables out of the held for KA BRARRFEEZEH
trading or available-for-sale categories if BEEINEHHER

the Group had the intention and ability
to hold these financial assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity at the
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date of reclassification. EEMNVBEEERA
TEEE ok i &5 R
RRHTEFOLE -
Reclassifications were made at fair value EFDENRENSE
as of the reclassification date. Fair value BHMAFEEET A
became the new cost or amortised cost B RK A 5 Ak 2N ok 8 5K

as applicable, and no reversals of fair
value gains or losses recorded before
reclassification date were subsequently
made. Effective interest rates for financial
assets reclassified to loans and receivables
and held-to-maturity categories were
determined at the reclassification date.
Further increases in estimates of cash
flows adjusted effective interest rates
prospectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (continued)

BRERARA

b.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measured
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that were directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss were
expensed in profit or loss. Loans and
receivables were subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss were subsequently carried at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value were recognised as
follows:

o for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss — in profit or
loss within other income or other
expenses;

o for available-for-sale financial assets
that were monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency
— translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost of the
security were recognised in profit
or loss and other changes in the
carrying amount were recognised in
other comprehensive income; and

o for other monetary and non-
monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale — in other
comprehensive income.

\&] F3R 2018

2,

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

EEEHBRBE(E)

211 REREMUBEE (F)

v EFAZz=-Z=
Eqr= Ez

—t&E+=H
EaT B (&)

b. iE

R R - AEE
BEQNFEM (4B
EEAFEEERIIR
NP BEE) ERRB
J‘J’éﬁ%%ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ?%
}ﬂZLKEJr%ﬁ?I?ﬁ%F ;
KRR Iﬁﬁféﬂ
BRSO IR B A A
75‘J¢'E

AHHEMBERIZA
FEBREIROMB
BEEBRURFED
iR RFEZEBELN
Wk EIEERAT

e MEATFESEIE
Y IR B B 7 B
EMs —REAm
W A sk E i 2
AR

s BIEIFHER

BESHA

& ﬁ?f BEEM

EtckaE F0
$*§ﬁ§b$ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ

%%EBATE £

- MR E(E R

@%@bﬁé‘ﬁﬁﬂi\
mRATER &

s HoMAMHEHD
EMEMEE K
9F BB ESEM
E-REMEE

7\

=
sor I



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 54 B &SRR KM =E
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (continued)

b.

Measurement (continued)

Dividends on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-
sale equity instruments were recognised
in profit or loss as part of revenue from
continuing operations when the Group'’s
right to receive payments is established.

Interest income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss was included in
the net gains/(losses). Interest on available-
for-sale securities and loans and receivables
calculated using the effective interest
method was recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of revenue from
continuing operations.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assessed at the end of each
reporting period whether there was
objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets was impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial
assets was impaired and impairment
losses were incurred only if there was
objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset
(a "loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) had an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that could be
reliably estimated. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost was
considered an indicator that the assets
were impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of
the loss was measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that had not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset was reduced and the amount of the
loss was recognised in profit or loss. If a
loan or held-to-maturity investment had a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss was the
current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group could measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreased and the
decrease could be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(continued)
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2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(v) Accounting policies applied until 31 v) ERAZ-ZF—t&F+=-AH
December 2017 (continued) == Z ETEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets ¢ HBEEREE)

(continued)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

DERAHEEZEE

If there was objective evidence of A REFERE N H
impairment for available-for-sale financial HEFBEEDRME -
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as B 25t &8 —BEE AKX
the difference between the acquisition N EE AT ERE

cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — was
removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments
that were recognised in profit or loss were
not reversed through profit or loss in a
subsequent period.
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If the fair value of a debt instrument EIRBHRE - 2EAT
classified as available-for-sale increased in a HEEZEHTAERF
subsequent period and the increase could BN BEE LEE
be objectively related to an event occurring FFABERNRBEEERE
after the impairment loss was recognised BREBEENETEE
in profit or loss, the impairment loss was B REERABEEE
reversed through profit or loss. TLAEE - 5FAE B8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_-_A=1+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group has also
entered into arrangements that do not meet the criteria
for offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to
be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
using specific identification of their individual costs.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are amounts due from customers
for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of accounts and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Accounts receivable are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
accounts receivable with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 16 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 3.1 for a description of the Group's impairment
policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts
are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Accounts and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Accounts and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised
in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Fees paid on
the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.19

2.20

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group
comprise convertible bond that can be converted
to share capital at the option of the holder, and the
number of shares to be issued does not vary with
changes in their fair value.

The liability component of a compound financial
instrument is recognised initially at the fair value of a
similar liability that does not have an equity conversion
option. The equity component is recognised initially at
the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component, which is included in shareholders’
equity in other reserves. Any directly attributable
transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their initial carrying
amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a compound financial instrument is
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component of a compound
financial instrument is not remeasured subsequent to
initial recognition except on conversion or expiry.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EHE®

(continued)

ATRERBE(E)

221 RERIELEFMBHIE (&)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate
to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally

AL S8 (&)

(ORANGIE 2 I%U?ﬁé@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ’]%
B Mz E A TSR A R FR
B E\'JTEFMI\%F&QVPEE
BEEREHNEREZRETELT
HRRABMEE -

28 ATROR 58 B BT T BRI S B A
HMIBREERRAEERE  MELHE
AR EF — BB R - RIE
FELEHIAEERBEERE B8
BAAMRERBHINITEHEENESR

enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle BN FRRELEESRREREE
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the MEEaER  BIBEARIEE EE

liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.22 Employee benefits

(i)  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services
up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated balance sheet.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Bonus plans

Provisions for bonus plans due wholly within 12
months after the end of each reporting period
are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution plans.

Pension obligations

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays
contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EES:HHERE (&)

(continued)

2.23 Share-based payments 2.23 DA X A3 2 3R B
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions KRR ZATHI IR (7 3R 5 2
The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based RNEERB AR R RN E
compensation plan, under which the entity receives FTE - AAREEMRATA (BR
services from employees as consideration for equity B)EREGREERG 2RE &
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of B AR T B AR 12 ) AR 755
the employee services received in exchange for the WA EERASER < JIERZ A
grant of the options is recognised as an expense with BeEDN2RERLBRENAT
a corresponding increase in equity. The total amount BEE

to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for o BEAMTSERBEER (HlLR
example, an entity’s share price); NAERRE)

e excluding the impact of any service and non- o T HEEFEMEBRSKRIET
market performance vesting conditions (for %5 < IR HY 55 B 1 (1l 2n & A
example, profitability, sales growth targets and B HENREERR —
remaining an employee of the entity over a BREEHENRE —& AT
specified time period); and EE)NTE &k

e including the impact of any non-vesting o  BIEEIEHE G (FlanE
conditions (for example, the requirement for ElEEFRBEIEREERH
employees to save or holding shares for a specific RAERG) ZE -

period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, ERANACHETRBERRENER
which is the period over which all of the specified SEEEER TS M ARERIITHE
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. BV R HART -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.23

2.24

BRERARA

Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (and share premium).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EES:HHERE (&)

(continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition 2.25 AR
Sales of goods HEHqm
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has HESRNEEERERATFRM
delivered products to the customers, the customers Em BFEHEEERZENS
have full discretions to sell the products, and there is no EZR - BREAGETEREPERE
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’ mRRBITEERER BEEEm
acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur BRERTEHME  EmiEtlEes
until the products have been shipped to the specified BTEP UEREFEREBHES
location, control of the products has been transferred W E R BURIEIRE R %
to the customers, and either the customers have AEBEEREEBEEREEEZEMA
accepted the products in accordance with the sales BEIR MR - FR BN o

contracts, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Deposits payments on sales of goods received prior P ES FERR B HA AT H & & W e
to the date of revenue recognition are included in the ReNHERIGHNERIFALSE
consolidated balance sheet as “contract liabilities” BEEBERRBAGBET -

under current liabilities.

Burwill Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018 117



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.26 (Loss)/earnings per share

(i)

(i)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

. the (loss)/profit attributable to owners
of the company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of basic
earnings per share to take into account:

] the after income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares; and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.27

2.28

Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) and at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
(2017: from financial assets at FVPL and available-
for-sale financial assets). Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right to receive
payment is established. This applies even if they are
paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of an
investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised in
OClI if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
However, the investment may need to be tested for
impairment as a consequence.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Group
as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.29

2.30

BRERARA

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included
in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
and financial assets at FVOCI (2017: available-for-sale
financial assets and loans and receivables) calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

2.30 Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any number of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

BEERARRD

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by board committee(s)
under policies approved by the board of directors. The
committee identifies, evaluates and hedges financial
risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units. The board lays down principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and
non-derivative financial instruments, and treasury
investment.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’
functional currency. Approximately 79%
(2017: 71%) of the Group’s revenue are
denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the operating units
making the sale, whilst approximately 23%
(2017: 17%) of costs are denominated
in the units’ functional currency. The
Group manages the foreign exchange
exposure arising from its normal course
of business activities and investments in
foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash
flow generated from business transactions
locally. The management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and forward
exchange contracts are used for hedging
purposes when required.

\&] F3R 2018

3.

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

B35 EL B E
3.1 HBEREZE

REEMERS AR ZEZREN IR
Ba T35 E R (@%ﬁl\liﬂ I
B 2= & b i//m%ﬁjtﬂ

REBRRR)  FERRNKREE
SRR - $§1’E<IE’JE%3 % B IR AT
BB IR MBS MR - I
SREEREHRNEEVBERED
BERNZE -

RREEHESZEERBEESRR
?tt/EZE RHAT -RESBBER
BREERN BEAE AR
E o RHERERSREER - EER
PERAREEGFTRA - X FMI\
R - MERER - SERR T
i/ﬁﬁﬂlﬂiﬁi#miﬁrﬂIEZﬁg
AR EREZHIEHIRTBUR -

(a) MHEERE
(i) SrEEE

ZKEIE‘%W;%T‘%
B o ZERMRKRE EE
BAFEAEMNEE
LASNEY B 7T S B B,
K- AEBEANT79%
(ZE—EF: 71%)2Z
WA AHETT S E 1 218
BRI ER AN E
WBI(E - #923% (=8
— 4 E 17% VAR
LA Z AL e & ¥ 7
BE-AEEBBEHE
BRBFIEEZRER
AEEMEERRER
HES  UBERTHE
5B MR EREIN
ETSEA ZINERK o
EEERYERINER
BRERERZEN 27
Fi=HINE S #) (e H
i o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 54 B &SRR KM =E
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

In view of the fact that Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$") is pegged to United States dollar
("US$"), the Group’s exposure to change in
US$ exchange rate is minimal.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change
in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB"), Singapore
Dollar (“SGD") and Euro (“EUR") exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s loss after income tax (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities) and the Group’s equity. 2%—
5% (2017: 2%-5%) increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in RMB, SGD
and EUR exchange rate which have the
most impact on the Group over the period
until the end of the next reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_-_A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

()  Foreign exchange risk (continued)

2018

If HKS weakens against RMB
If HKS strengthens against RMB

If HKS weakens against SGD
If HKS strengthens against SGD

If HKS weakens against EUR
If HKS strengthens against EUR

2017

If HK$ weakens against RMB
If HKS strengthens against RMB

If HK$ weakens against SGD
If HK$ strengthens against SGD

If HK$ weakens against EUR
If HKS strengthens against EUR

124 BRI AR AR £k 2018

BT EARBES
BT i ARBER

iR ES
i AR MR E R

CEpA o £
fis 5B T B

HETAARKES
HETAARKER

AR AR KBS
AR AR K EER

T BT 5
AR R TER

HEEREE(E)

3.1 MBEABRER(E)

(a) THEERE (&)

(i) SMEEE(E)
Increase/
Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/
(Decrease) in loss after (Decrease) in
RMB/SGD/EUR income tax equity
AR/
Fmge/ BRAEH&
Brt#/ FiEEm/ EREm/
(TH) (HD) (B2)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BB
5 (4,449) 4,449
) 4,449 (4,449)
2 1,232 (1,232
2) (1,232) 1,232
2 (407) 407
2) 407 (407)
5 1,102 (1,102)
(5 (1,102) 1,102
2 1,159 (1,159)
2 (1,159) 1,159
2 (1,288) 1,288
2 1,288 (1,288)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i1)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from investments held by the
Group and classified in the consolidated
balance sheet either as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (2017: available-for-sale financial
assets) (Note 13) or financial assets as
at fair value through profit or loss (Note
15). To manage its price risk arising from
investments in equity securities, the Group
control its portfolio size. The Group’s
investments listed in Hong Kong and
overseas are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to 5% increase/decrease in the
fair values of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
(2017: available-for-sale financial assets)
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with all other variables held
constant and after any impact on income
tax, based on their carrying amounts at the
end of the reporting period.

3. HERKRERE(E)

3.1 MBEABRER(E)

(a) THEERE (&)

(i1)

E1%E

AEERRGEEER
BRF 2L FHFENR
B BERBRATEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_-_A=1+—HIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HXEAKRERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBEREBREEE)
(a) Market risk (continued) (a) WHEEE (&)

(ii)  Price risk (continued)

Increase/
(Decrease) in
carrying amount of
financial assets at
fair value
through other
comprehensive
income/
financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss
BEATEEBAM
2ARATIREE
BE/BAYE
ERERIIRN
BREERERE
i/ (B5)
HK$'000
BETT
2018
5% increase in fair value of BATERBREMR2EMA
financial assets NGB EENATE
at fair value through other E#5%
comprehensive income 1,080
5% decrease in fair value of BATERREM2EMA
financial assets at fair value NRNSEEENATE
through other TR5%
comprehensive income (1,080)
5% increase in fair value of BATEBBREIIRN
financial assets at fair value HBEENATE
through profit or loss E#5% 6,697
5% decrease in fair value of BATEEBERIIRN
financial assets at fair value HBEENATE
through profit or loss THB5% (6,697)

BRI AR AR £k 2018

(i) EEERE (&)

Increase/
(Decrease) in other

comprehensive Increase/

expense/loss (Decrease)

after income tax in equity
Et2EXE/
RAEB%

ERgEn/ EzEn/

(") (")

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

(1,080) 1,080

1,080 (1,080)

(6,696) 6,696

6,696 (6,696)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(ii)  Price risk (continued)

2017

5% increase in fair value of
avallable-for-sale financial assets

5% decrease in fair value of
avallable-for-sale financial assets

5% increase in fair value of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

5% decrease in fair value of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

AHHENBEE
BATFELTS%

HHENBEE
HAFE TR 5%

ZRFEEBREIRN

FBEENATE
FF5%

BATEEBRRIRN

FBEENATE
TB& 5%

3.

g EkEE

B (&)

3.1 MBEABRER(E)

(a) WH5EE (&)

Increase/

(Decrease) in

carrying amount of
available-for-sale
financial assets/
financial assets at

fair value through
profit or loss

AL ENEEE/
BATERRER
SIRME B EE
IREEEN/ (D)
HK$'000

BB

1,253

(1,253)

8,504

(8,504)

Increase/
(Decrease) in other
comprehensive
expense/loss after
income tax

Et2EXH/
PRAAfR B
BREn/ (84)
HK$'000

AR

(1,253)

1,253

(8,502)

8,502

(i) EEERE(E)

Increase/(Decrease)
in equity

B/ (52)
HKS$'000
AETT

1,253

(1,253)

8,502

(8,502)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

BRERARA

(iif) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk

As the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
borrowings at variable rates. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. During 2017,
the Group's borrowings at variable rate
were denominated in US$ and HK$.

During 2018, the Group were not exposed
to significant interest rate risk on floating
rate borrowing.

The Group has not hedged its exposure to
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk,
as the management considers the risk is
insignificant to the Group.

\&] F3R 2018
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(iif) Cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s loss after
income tax (through the impact on floating
rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity for

2017.

2017

Us§ e
HKS BT
Us§ e
HKS BT

3.

MBERER (&)

3.1 MBEABRER(E)

(a) WH5EE (&)

(iii)

Increase/
(Decrease) in
basis points

MEREH
g/ (h4)

HEREBR A FEFE
B (&)

TREIR -_F—+tF
EMAEMEHTE
- NEEZBRAEHR
‘BB CERFBN X
EREHFE) A
SEESH AN RE
B HRE ©

Increase/
(Decrease) in Increase/
loss after (Decrease)
income tax in equity

BFiEHiE
EREn/ EwEm/
(A%) (A2)
HK$'000 HK$'000

BETTL BBTL

40 (40)
471 (471)
(40) 40

(471) 47
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

BRERARA

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and deposits with
banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables.

()  Risk management

The Group reviews the recoverability of its
financial assets periodically to ensure that
potential credit risk of the counterparty is
managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision for impairment allowance is
made for possible defaults. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2018,
substantially all of the Group’s bank
balances are deposited in major financial
institutions. Management does not expect
any losses from non-performance by these
banks. The credit quality of cash and cash
equivalents has been assessed by reference
to external credit ratings or to historical
information about the counterparty default
rates. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past.

The credit risk of the Group’s other
financial assets, which comprise cash and
cash equivalents, due from associates, due
from joint ventures and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i1)

Impairment of financial assets
Bills and accounts receivable

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
bills and accounts receivable. The Group
measures the ECL on a collective basis.

Receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant
doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. The Group also
estimates the provision for ECL on a
collective basis by grouping the accounts
receivable based on shared credit loss risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for
likelihood of recovery, taking into account
the nature of the customer and its past due
ageing category, and applying ECL rates to
respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables. Having taken into account the
historical credit losses experienced in the
group of receivables for up to 3 years, the
ECL reflect current and forward looking
information on factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
As at 31 December 2018, the ECL of these
collectively assessed receivables balance
was approximately HK$4,235,000.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMEEAREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B¥REKBREEE)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b)) ZEERE(E)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i) HBEEERE (&)
Bills and accounts receivable (continued) JiE U 2= 4% K e W bR 18
(%)
The closing loss allowances for bills and FE W R R FE W IR 1B
accounts receivable as at 31 December RZE—NFE+=A
2018 reconcile to the opening loss =+ —BREREER
allowances as follows: B2 BR AT e 1R R A
PRAAT
Bills and accounts receivable
W EE K FEWIRIE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BET T
31 December - calculated +ZA=+—H-RE
under HKAS 39 BB ERERHE 5,416 6,024
Amounts restated through FERTREB R
opening retained earnings KEH 4,185 =
Opening loss allowance RZE—N\§—H—H
as at 1 January 2018 - BB IR R A - RIR
calculated under HKFRS 9 BB RS R
FoRHE 9,601 6,024
Increase in loss allowance FAR B ERA
recognised in profit or loss BEREEM
during the year 198 -
Receivables written off during FRERDAIIEE
the year as uncollectible P LT i K A 3 (5,564) (1,904)
Currency translation differences ~ S [E X =% = 1,296
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 4,235 5,416
Accounts receivable are written off W28 & EMNKEE

when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group.

Impairment losses on accounts receivable
are presented as net impairment losses
within operating loss. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_—Z

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Previous accounting policy for impairment
of accounts receivable

In the prior year, the impairment of
accounts receivable was assessed based
on the incurred loss model. Individual
receivables which were known to be
uncollectible were written off by reducing
the carrying amount directly. The other
receivables were assessed collectively to
determine whether there was objective
evidence that an impairment had been
incurred but not yet been identified.
For these receivables the estimated
impairment losses were recognised in a
separate provision for impairment. The
Group considered that there was evidence
of impairment if any of the following
indicators were present:

o significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

o probability that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; and

o default or late payments.

Receivables for which an impairment
provision was recognised were written off
against the provision when there was no
expectation of recovering additional cash.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_-_A=1+—HIFE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

3.

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include amount due from associate,
amount due from joint venture, deposits
and other receivables.

The loss allowance for other financial assets
at amortised cost as at 31 December 2017
reconciles to the opening loss allowance

on 1 January 2018 and to the closing loss
allowance as at 31 December 2018 as

follows:

Closing loss allowance as at
31 December 2017
(calculated under HKAS 39)

R-8-tF1-A=t-A
LERERRG (REER
EREEERE R

Amounts restated through opening EBEIRBEFET

retained eamings

Opening loss allowance as at
1 January 2018
(calculated under HKFRS 9)

Increase in the allowance
recognisedt in profit or loss
during the period

Witten-off against uncollectible
receivables

Currency translation differences

Closing loss allowance as at
31 December 2018

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018

Pk

RZE2-N\F-A-HZ
ENBERE(REES
HRREENZ9EHE)

BAnBaED L BR
B

MEATRERAR

HEELZR

RoB-NETZAZ-R2
EREREN

B 7% L B i R

/485 )

=
31 BBEABREE)
(b) EEREEE)
(i) HHBEEERE (&)
HAIR# H RN ET 81
s A
BEKANEMIEE
= B WL R A
IR Bl A ERER
|~ BE M H A KR
1 o
RZZE—tF+=A8
=+ — BB HEA ARG
ENHMPBEEEZE
BREEER-_Z—N\F
—A—RAZFEER
HEAERZZE—-N\F
TZRA=+—HBZHF#HK
EEREZ HIRMT -
Amount Amount Deposits
due from due form and other 2018 2017
associates  jointventures  receivables Total Total
#ER
BEQEAR REQERR  HMEYR it &3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000. Hk$'000
BT BETT BETT BT BETT
= = 91,927 91,927 85,775
256 - 5599 5855 -
25 - 97,526 97,78 85,775
268 - 15,988 18,616 1444
(2,706) - (91.927) (94,633) -
= = = = 4708
178 - 21,587 21,765 91927
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(©

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves and reserve borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

2018

Borrowings X

Due to associates RBENTIHAE

Bills and accounts payable ENZEREMRE
Other payables and accruals EEARERETER

3. UBEMEEE)

3.1 MBEREBREZEE)

(0 mEBELEE
AEBEZFRARDELR
RERAEZRKREE XC
RAEEZESR FHEK
HECRELMRBESFR
WEREY —BAAEZRY
BeRRERER - ~"&H
ERTIEERBARERE S
moUMBEERBEZFH
% MR R REERE
ER-EERpESRER -
RIBE LA ARBEIR 2 3K
AECAEERBEAHR
MBREZFHMT

Carrying

amount
as per Total On More than
consolidated contractual demand 1 year but
balance  undiscounted or within less than
sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years

BRERRE BUMmK

BERL ERZRE S E -ENL
REE REAR -FARE EREER
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BRI BRTR
665,172 690,038 610,343 79,695
516 516 516 -
88,000 88,000 88,000 -
214,776 214,776 214,776 -
968,464 993,330 913,635 79,695
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HMEEAREREE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BBEREBREZEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () mEEZERE(E)

Carying

amount
a per Total On More than
consolidated contractual demand 1 year but
balance undiscounted or within less than
sheet cash flows 1 year 5 years

BEREE BuHmA

BfERL ¥R EEsky —E F
EEE nELE —EnEE ERRLER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

BETT ERTT R BETTL

136

2017

Borrowings B 471,118 499,271 268814 230457

Due to associates REENEFE 568 568 568 =

Bills and accounts payable ERZBRERRE 116,916 116,916 116,916 =

Other payables and accruals AENRERETER 227,015 227,015 227,015 =
815,617 843,770 613313 230457

BRI AR AR F; 2018
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity (including
share capital, reserves, accumulated losses and non-
controlling interests as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) and other loans from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries.

During 2018, the Group’'s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2017, was to maintain a debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio below 90%. The debt-to-
adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2017 and 2018
were as follows:

MERBRER (&)
32 BESEE

AEHERES 2 BBRRRER
SEFELEZRS  URERS
KEHR - BEMESRH A SR
73 REFEEESABAREER
ZND RN

RERARHBERER  AEEHK
ERBRABREKNBREZERE [
BRRBEES BT ©

AEBRERHERHBERA L RE
P o L RIREFFERER AR
ABBRAFE - EFFEREER
(BREAEERBERMIIRZR
BRIFRDEFORAS LRSS
EYWE KHABRABEMARE
@@ (BREEEERERMY
RHRA ~ i~ REtEB R R IFE
Pt as) BB BB~ B FE PR AR AR R Y
HMER -

RZZE—NF XEEBZEKEA
HREBELABERARL RER
90%  HM-F—tFHE - R=ZF
—tEER—_E-N\FE+_A=1+—
A2 ERL QAR RT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BEETIT

Total borrowings BER 665,172 471,118
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BRekBEEEED

(Note 34(b)) (K752 34(b) (65,628) (121,530)

Net debt (EC R 599,544 349,588

Total equity HarEs 816,048 951,806

Adjusted capital KA 816,048 1,008,466

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BT B AR AN b & 73% 35%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial assets and liabilities

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an

indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of
each level follows underneath the table:

At 31 December 2018

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income
- Listed equity securities
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
- Listed equity securities

BRI AR AR £k 2018

BRRREE(Z)
3.3 AFEME
HBEEEREE
R FEEAR
AETREEEEWBERRPIEATF
BERERMTENESBRTENATE
BrFTVE D A HI B R b 5T - BB HE
EAFERAHASENAEERE
2 AEERESENBESR
TESA=A FEANEELRT
% :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£- £ £=4 a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BB BRI BETT BRI
RZE-NE+ZfA=1-A
HBEE
BOTEBREMZEUA
SIRHEREE
- LilAES 21,601 = = 21,601
BATEERBRIE
MEHKEE
- LilAES 133,937 = = 133,937
155,538 = = 155,538
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

At 31 December 2017 RZF-tE+ZA=1-A
Financial assets HBEE
Avallable-for-sale financial assets R ENBEE
Financial assets at fair value BATEABERSIR
through profitor loss METBAE
- Listed equity securities - L mhAES

There were no transfers among level 1, level 2 and level
3 during the year.

3. HERKRERE(E)

3.3 ATEME#E)
HEEEREE (&)

RFEER ()
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—4 £-4 £=8 &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTL AR BETTL BETTL
25,063 - - 25,063
170,086 - - 170,086
195,149 - - 195,149

RERDBR2E—F F_MEB

=&z R ER

& o
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group
is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity securities.

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018

3.

MBERER (&)

3.3

DFEMbE ()

HMBEEEREE (&)

RFEER(E)

(ii)

(iii)

o

F—RETHIEA

30|

EEEMSEEEZ ST A
ZRFEDRREARRL
MmSREE - RAREAE
MBEEMAMESRERR
TEE -ZETEBF 4 -

o

F_RETHMIEA

30|

VIHETRMSEREZ SR
THWSIRZITETR)
ZAHERRAGEXMERE -
ZFHERMARARE £
BT AESHNABERTSEHR
B OBHEBEREEMGAK
FEFE B &K - ik X FER
E-RIANMBEEARBA
BEOREBRES AIZAT
BEBE & -

it — @k Z EEANE AEL
FRBETBETEEEEE
BlZIBETABE=f-FL
MRRAEFTIZEIBMR °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 54 B &SRR KM =E
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i)  Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision for taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the periods in which such determination
are made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
as management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and income tax in the
periods in which such estimate is changed.

BREEHMERAE

HEMAE 2w E NG WREEE
REBEMEBRERETHE BREAR
BRTHRERAENERKEHTEAR -

REETMERRER

AEBYRKELBHEMBERR - EH
SRIEEONEER  RIOGEHEERG
RIERE - RAKEEH T EHBFEHN
BEMABENIIRAEFELDERFHENG
BMREAWMT o

() FrE#RELZEH

AEBFTEETEARE AN
HekBERARBSBRANE
FAMIAN R EE - F2EHEKRH
B - E—REBEEF  BHZX
ST E S M A RE TS E T #
ETHEER o Wt FF R RETH
BRRESZICENSETR - It
EFERBFEFLLFEERAR
PRS T AIEE PR 1S BL R 8 o

B EEERAARKA] BT R
BH - SEREZRLHBEARN
A FRZERERENBIENIETE
FISHEESKIER - ETRHENR
BRIREGR  ZZEZSHEBR
BENHRATERERSHEE
TSR AORER ©
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the board of directors of the Company. The directors review
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of profit or loss from
continuing operations before income tax for the year. The
information provided to the directors is measured in a
manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is organised into two major operating units in
its continuing operations: (i) steel trading and (ii) lithium
business. The mineral resources segment, presented as a
separate reportable segment in the previous year, is classified
as discontinued operations.

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

Continuing operations &
Sale of goods HE

BRI AR AR £k 2018

REeThERAE(E)

RESTMERBR(E)

(i) BIHEEERE

M EENBRERERLEED
R R AR R R EHARR
SERBEASEREES -BRAM
AREREMROATREEG R
EHZERRLEERESENER
AN B B {50 R 41 b

72 BEHR

TRLERRECHEERARAES
B-BEFTEAKBENRNEHRE - LT
BEGEMOEER - EEMABRIEE

LERERE TREDES

EERBEAFERARBRERBEM
SR B g EE AR EEE D R %
o MEFMENERMERGS MR
REMBENT BB

AEERBCEXRTHEMEEIRLES
fLAER (VI E 5 R>EBER - &
EERAMFERSER—BLOM) 2

BIEERILEEEXRE -
AEERRZWALT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T AT T
2,305,467 2,491,789
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2018

are as follows:

Total segment sales
Inter-segment sales

Sales to external customers

Operating profit/(loss) before
below items

Fair value losses on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Net impairment losses on financial
assets

Operating profit/(loss)

Finance costs

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Share of profits of associates

Share of losses of joint ventures

Segment results

Income tax expense

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year

HETINDEP

Rt TR R A8
B/ (B8)
BRFEEBERIIRN
MHBEAHERR
MHEERERR

FE

BERN/ (BR)
REMKA
HEME  HE L
REER
INGE NIl
fritaEAREBE
DEFE

FrEpx it

FRREHELLEXBER

EERBDRILE
EXRBERN

FRER

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

5. oHERE)
BE_T-\F+_A=+—HIEFE
Wﬁ%%ﬁWT

Continuing operations
RERERR
Steel Lithium
trading business  Unallocated Group
HEES S AW £E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETR BETT
2,305,467 - = 2,305,467
2,305,467 - - 2,305,467
16,454 (9,949) (63,478) (56,973)
- - (68,671) (68,671)
(2,990) (125) (15,699) (18,814)
13,464 (10,074) (147,848) (144,458)
(11,206) (5,189) (41,549) (57,944)
(M = = (M
- - 2,023 2,023
- (1,259) (4) (1,263)
2,257 (16,522) (187,378) (201,643)
(2,570)
(204,213)
94,451
(109,762)
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

are restated as follows:

Total segment sales
Inter-segment sales

Sales to external customers

Operating profit/(loss) before
below items

Fair value gains on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value losses on derivative
financial instruments

Gains on reclassification of an
associate to available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment losses on amount due & A 5] X R E

from associates
Impairment loss on available-
for-sale financial assets
Impairment losses on deposits,

prepayments and other receivables Ji &

Settlement of customer claims
Dilution loss on an associate
Share option expenses

Operating profit/(loss)

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Share of losses of associates

Share of losses of joint ventures

Segment results

Income tax credit

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2017 BHE_Z—+&F+-_A=+—HIFE
E‘A\]/\igﬁiz z«<$7j”)gu‘|’ :
Continuing operations
Steel Lithium
trading business Unallocated Group
MAE 5 BET A £E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AET T BETT BET T BETT
DEVHE BT 2,491,789 = = 2,491,789
HEEEE = = = =
HETINDER 2,491,789 = = 2,491,789
R MlIB B MEE
&7/ (EE) 16,136 (12,530) (45,378) (41,772)
BRATFERBERIIRM
UBREEATERE = = 48,014 48,014
TESRIANTERSRE
(445) = = (445)
BENRENEATHNE
BB E e
= = 17,392 17,392
= - (75) (75)
AEHERKEERE
= = (33,536) (33,536)
e BNREETCERT
(1,444) = = (1,444)
BEPRERE = = (85,801) (85,801)
BENREEER = - (26,343) (26, 343)
BiRES - - (26,160) (26,160)
TRERR,/ (FE) 14,247 (12,530) (151,887) (150,170)
BLERA (11,465) (2,036) (5,535) (19,036)
HEME - BRRRERE
= = 202,445 202,445
b= AR EE - - (86,840) (86,840)
FriE& & AREE - (160) (4) (164)
NEEE 2,782 (14,726) (41,821) (53,765)
FEHEE 1,188
FRRERELEELER
(52,577)
FERBERELE
vl 37,700
FEEBE (14,877)
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) earned by each
segment without allocation of unallocated corporate
expenses including directors’ salaries, dilution loss on an
associate, impairment losses on an associate, gains on
reclassification of an associate to available-for-sale financial
assets, fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets, other operating expenses, share of profits/
(losses) of associates and joint ventures and share option
expenses.

Other segment information

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018,
depreciation and additions to non-current assets for the year

ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Assets BE
Liabilities =V
Depreciation e

Additions to non-current assets R IERENE E

DEE R (E)

DEEEEHSH BB AN, (B
B)MYTERERD R OEMHY - B
BEEEHS HMLATEEER B
ENEDRERE  BE AR ENE]H
HEMBKEEKS  BRATEBEBER
PIRE B S EE R FEWS (FiE) -
AL EVKEERERBE Ev&E
THCFEBMARAT  AYAREMNS
(E18) RERELE -

R-E—N\EFEF+_A=T—HADE
EMEEUAERBEE2-_ZE—\F+=-A
—t+—HIEFEMNNERERIERHE
EWT :

Continuing operations

HEEEEY

Steel Lithium
trading business  Unallocated Group
HEES S AW £E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETRT BETT
1,116,118 96,647 605,863* 1,818,628
512,240 102,625 387,715 1,002,580
1,112 - 33 1,145
- - 6 6
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017
and depreciation, amortisation and additions to non-current
assets for the year ended 31 December 2017 are restated as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_-_A=1+—HIFE

PEER(E)
HeaHER (&)
R

A_E—+F+_A=+—HHOHE
EMBEBEARBE_T—tF+_A
=t BLEFENFE  #HRIERFE
MEBEESHNMAT :

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

B IHEE

Steel Lithium Mineral
trading business Unallocated resources Group
WEZE 5 BEK S BEAR £H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
Assets BE 990,845 125,152 584,384* 92,352 1,792,733
Liabilities =L 404,189 69,531 226,119 141,088 840,927
Depreciation e 1127 = 538 650 2,315
Amortisation B - - - 160 160
Additions to non-current assets  SERIERBEE 8 - 54 - 62
o Including investment in the listed shares of Alliance Mineral Assets * BREABBEI1ET(ZT—LF : BK17

Limited of approximately HK$134 million (2017: HK$170 million)
which were not elected to recognise fair value gains or losses through
other comprehensive income.

Segment assets exclude club debentures, deferred income
tax assets, investments in associates and joint ventures,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (2017: available-for-sale financial assets), income tax
refundable and other unallocated head office and corporate
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred income tax liabilities,
income tax payable, corporate borrowings and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018

f&7t) % Alliance Mineral Assets Limited )
TRNIEZE ZERETIEEREEEE
WA R R A FERREIERE -

DHEETBRERBES  BEMENR
BE MZ /2QFKE HAYE
BREMEMBRAIIRNPYBEEE (ZF
—tF AEREMBEE) - KB
BHEREERDEERBREREE
RELEENSETAEE -

SHEETLEBLEMEHEE -
FEH - CEERRETADRERR
ROEAE RELa@EUEEsRE
I8 o
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s business segments operate in four main
geographical areas, even though they are managed on a

worldwide basis.

Continuing operations
Revenue (by location of customers)
— Europe
— Mainland China
— Hong Kong
— Asia (other than Mainland China
and Hong Kong)
— Others

Non-current assets
— Mainland China
— Hong Kong
— Europe
— Others

5. oSWMERGE)

i & & R

75 1 (B B A

AEENEBOHAZRTAERE - =

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET I
WA (BRI E D FE)

— &M 858,302 1,188,167
—rh 567,654 432,897
— BB 440,771 109,500

— M (B iEH
LB 407,345 418,567
—HE 31,395 342,658
2,305,467 2,491,789
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BE T

IEREEE

— 80 91,636
—BB 1,723 2,791
—BUM 66 100
—HE = 1
1,869 94,528
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (continued)

The non-current assets information above is based on the
location of assets and excludes club debentures, deferred
income tax assets, investments in associates, investments in
joint ventures and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (2017: available-for-sale financial
assets).

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group did not
have any single customer with the transaction value above
10% of the external sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had sales
of approximately HK$283,623,000 to a single significant
customer of the steel trading segment, representing
approximately 11% of the sales to external customers.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS
The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land use rights

represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net
book amounts are analysed as follows:

Outside Hong Kong, held on:
Leases of between 10 to 50 years

Movement of the leasehold land and land use rights during
the year is as follows:

At 1 January R—A—H

Currency translation differences B N E

Amortisation of prepaid operating lease B+ & & 1 & Z 1A #
payments

Disposal of subsidiaries & I E A A

At 31 December W+ZA=+—H

ERIERABR AT F3R 2018

EEHBAIMNTE -
TERTFHNEE

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

DEER (E)
@& R (F)

LAJ:;F//\L@Jé%?ﬁ(ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ:i‘m@iu/\’
BETEEeEES BLEMEHEE -
?%’AT&% EENAREREAT
BEEBETEEBATIIRNIBEE (=
T—+F  AHLENBEE) -

BHE—_Z2—\F+_A=+—HILFE -
AEBWES —XF  (EAREE 2N
HE10% A L -

HE_FT—+tF+-_A=+—HLHF
B AEEHEESOHAHEENBE
283,623,000 cF —UEBE—FREF ' {h
AEEZINEBSHEL 1% ©

HELH R+ e AE
AREEREL R EREOES
EEMZERER  REKREFEDN

e

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
- 3,754

&+ 3 Ko £ b {5 A B F P ) B B 4
T

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
3,754 7,906

- 298

(56) (212)
(3,698) (4,238)

- 3,754
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7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Year ended 31 December 2018

Opening net book amount
Currency translation differences
Additions

Disposals

Disposals of subsidiaries
Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2018

Cost
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book amount

7. WE - HBERERE
Furniture
Leasehold and Motor  Construction
improvements Machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total
g &
BFEE Ba ET L] ERIE ag
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BRI
HE-Z-)\F
TZA=t-RLLEE
BNEESE - 1,944 315 2830 85,625 90,774
ERENES - - () @ - 1]
i - = 6 - - 6
& - - (1) - - (1)
HERBAR - (1,720) (104) 82) (85,625) (87,531)
ik = (226) 85) (1,063) - (1372)
HREEFE - - 186 1,683 - 1,869
RIE-N\E
tZh=1-H
AR 3363 - 4357 5,153 - 12,873
ZEEREE
(3.363) - @17 (3470 - (11,008)
REFE - - 186 1,683 = 1,869
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. VX BBERREE)
Leasehold
landin
Hong Kong
under Fumiture
long:{erm Leasehold and Motor  Construction
finance lease Buidngs  improvements  Machinery ~ equipment vehides ~ in progress Total
REARHS g 2

BAEELH BF  BYRE pE Rkt B ERIR 8%
HCPOD  HKSOD  HKSO0D  HKSOOD HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO  HKSONO
RETL B8 AT BT TR Akt BT BT

Vearended 31 December 2017~ HZE-F-t%

tZA=t-BLEE

Opening net book amount SERSE 53,605 14290 - 2438 50 4218 %2853 171,906
Currency ranlaton diferences £ EH 2% - - - 3 il 10 178 7490
Additions 5 - - - - 62 = - 62
Disposals it (53,191) (6739 - (15) (%) B17) - (60,354)
Disposal ofsubsicaries HENBAR - (6,958) - - - - = (6,958)
Impairment charge A - - - - - - (18,506) (18,506)
Depreciation charge e (414) (597) - (652 (12) (1,081) = (286)
Closing net book amount BhRERE - - - 194 305 2890 85,625 90,774
At31 December 2017 RIB-tE12A=1-H
Cost RA - - 3363 8784 5406 6,09 311,83 335,645
Accumulated deprecationand ~ ZiTHERAE

mpaiment - - (3363 (6,340) (5,031) (3919 (225,658) (244.871)
Net book amount RETE - - - 194 375 2830 85,625 90,774
No depreciation expenses of continuing operations has been BMERELSEEBITEEBRA AHERK
charged in cost of sales, approximately HK$ 1,112,000 (2017: IR A 1,112,000 (2B — 4 ¢
HK$1,137,000) has been charged in selling and distribution B #1,137,00070) sTASBHE RS HEE
expenses and HK$33,000 (2017: HK$1,178,000) in general A - % 33,000 L (ZF— 4 : B
and administrative expenses. 1,178,000 7%) BIFF A —M RITHER -
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7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Impairment test of the construction in progress

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the construction
in progress is included in the mineral resources operating
segment. It relates to processing plants being constructed on
iron ore mines in the Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, the construction in progress would be able to be
operated efficiently for the function for it was designed, built
and erected after certain refurbishing.

Due to the market prices of iron ore concentrates in
Mainland China decreased to a level lower than the
projected production cost of the mineral resources
operation, the Group had halted operation of the assets
pending improvements in the market conditions for iron
ore concentrates, and impairment charge was made for
construction in progress of approximately HK$18,506,000
in 2017. The recoverable amount of construction in progress
is determined based on the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use calculation. As at 31
December 2017, the recoverable amount of construction in
progress was determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal, management has taken reference to the valuation
reports conducted by an independent valuer. The fair value
measurement of the construction in progress was classified
as level 3. The market value of construction in progress has
been derived using cost approach and this considers the
cost to reproduce or replace in new condition the assets
appraised in accordance with current market prices for similar
assets, with allowance for accrued depreciation. The key
assumptions are that the cost of reproduction/replacement
new of the subject assets, accrued depreciation and the
assets will continue to be used in its present existing state
with the benefit of continuity of the tenure of land and
building during the foreseeable future.

7.

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

M - HBRRRE(E)
ERIRRBERR

BE_TtHF+-_A=t—HLEFE"
ERTiERBREEERKEDH - 1
BRI TR P B iR 1L S - RIBE
ERER EEIREREBERT BY
R Joll 3 6 BB WU A ©

AR EEERATISEREE L TEH
BEERELNEEXNAR  A£EE
FILEEZEEEE#HBENT SN
WE - R_T—+tF GCEIRRES
FH #9785 %5 18,506,000 7T ° FEZ T2 H9 A
U [B] & BE 35 BB A B R S AR K fF
BEMEPEamMET KR_E—+tF
+=—A=+—H EBEESRE(HEM
EERE > EE TR RD &5 IRER
AFERBREERAMEE - FELIED
ANFEEAEEDEAF = -EEIRE
WMEEBEERAKAE (FTEEERAR)
STEWEEBEERRET G NIER
BRI REEENTSERITNKRETITE
A - TBERB[EENER EE Lt
BEMKA @ BITE REETRiER
T AT EHAEEE T AR o
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ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 8. HB/EEE
Domain
names,
Exploration trademark
and and
evaluation computer
Mining right assets software Total
BHEE HE - EE
R TEEE REREH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETT BETR BETR
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—t+t%—HA—H
Cost AR 180,382 17,020 193 197,595
Accumulated amortisation and RS PR
impairment (180,382) (17,020) (193) (197,595)
Net book amount IREFE = = = =
Year ended 31 December 2017 ~ HE-T—+4
+ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net book amountand ~ HANIREAFE K
closing net book amount B AR IRTE S (B - = = =
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+=-A=1+—H
Cost B%N 195,595 18,454 193 214,242
Accumulated amortisation and B PR
impairment (195,595) (18,454) (193) (214,242)
Net book amount bRE#E = = = =
Year ended 31 December 2018~ HE_Z—)\F
+TZA=+—RLEE
Opening net book amountand ~ HA¥IREFE X
closing net book amount HY AR ORI (B = - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
+-A=+—~H
Cost B%N - - 193 193
Accumulated amortisation and RErEERE
impairment - - (193) (193)
Net book amount bRE#E - - - -
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C).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

C).

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2018:

Name

1

Directly held:

BEERA:

Burwill and Company Limited

Burwill HK Portfolio Limited

Burwill Network Investment
Limited
ERMBREERRAR

Indirectly held:
RERA

Burwill (China) Limited
ER(HE)BRAR

Burwill Commercial Holdings
Limited
ERARMERRAT]

Burwill Cobalt Company Limited
BRHREARAA

Place of
incorporation/
operations
and kind of
legal entity
SR
Bewy
RAEE A

Hong Kong limited
liability company

BEBRALAR

The British Virgin
Islands limited
liability company

RBRAEEEAR
LN

Hong Kong limited
liability company

BEBRALAR

Hong Kong limited
liability company

BEBRALAR

Hong Kong limited
liability company

BABRALAR

Hong Kong limited
liability company

BEBRALAR

Issued and
fully paid
capital

ERTR
EHRRE

HK$50,000,000 and
£50,000

750,000,000 7T &2
50,000 &

Us$2
VEY

HK$1
BRI

HK$200
B 2007T

HK$1
AT

HK$1
AT

Burwill Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

FENBAAF

RZE-—N\F+A=+—HZFEMN

BRARIATE :

Percentage of
equity interest/
voting capital
attributable to
the Group
rEERAZ
Ei/ BRE
ERAEDL

2018 2017

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100%

Principal
activities

FERBMHE

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Metal trading
tEES
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9.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 9. TEWEBRAR(E)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interest/
operations Issued and voting capital
and kind of fully paid attributable to Principal
Name legal entity capital the Group activities
SR rEEHEZ
Fdg b BRTR Ei/ BRE
a8 REEAL ERRRE ERAEDL FEXRBUE
2018 2017

Indirectly held: (continued)

RERA (&

Burwill Lithium Company Limited Hong Kong limited HK$1 100% 100% Concentrate
(Former known as “Burwill liability company BT procurement, lithium
Commodity Limited”) AREREMERA carbonate processing

BEREEERAA and sales
(AifE[ERMHBRAR]) TERAEE - REREE M T

MIHE

Burwill Resources Limited Hong Kong limited HK$41,000,000 100% 100%  Steel trading

ERYEERERAR liability company 76 41,000,000 70 MEES

BEAREARA
Burwill Resources Europe, S.A. Spain limited liability ~ EUR62,000 70% 70%  Steel trading
company 62,0008 7T HEE 5
ARTEREAEAT

Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Mainland China US$1,200,000 100% 100%  Steel trading
Limited (Note (;)) i 1,200,000% 7T HHESH

BRAR(LE)BRAR
(HiaE)

Century Capital Investment Limited  Hong Kong limited HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding

LEABREBRAR liability company BT REER

BEAREARA
Ever Century Investments Limited The British Virgin US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Islands limited 1%L REER
liability company
RBRAEEER
LN



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 54 B &SRR KM =E
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=—ZE— \F+_-_A=1+—HILFE

(i) Burwill Warehousing (Shanghai) Limited and B ( E/8) £ B2 5H
[ 22 @] are wholly foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China to be operated for 50 years up to March 2050 and 50 years up

to August 2055, respectively.

None of the above principal subsidiaries have material non-
controlling interests for the year ended 31 December 2017

and 2018.

9.  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 9. TEWEBRAR(E)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ equity interest/
operations Issued and voting capital
and kind of fully paid attributable to Principal
Name legal entity capital the Group activities
SR rEEHEZ
Fdg b BRTR Ei/ BRE
a8 REEAL ERRRE ERAEDL FEXRBUE
2018 2017
Indirectly held: (continued)
RERA (&
Grand Triumph Global Limited The British Virgin US$1 100% - Investment holding
Islands limited (E RAER
liability company
RBRAEEEAR
LGN
Hillot Limited Hong Kong limited HK$500,000 100% 100%  Securities investment
liability company 7% 500,0007C FHHEE
BERREARA
Super Ace Holdings Limited The British Virgin US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Islands limited 1%L REER
liability company
RBRLEEEAR
EEAR
Bl (LB e BESARRA Mainland China HK$10,000,000 100%  100% Steel trading
(Note () (HTé£ () i 7% 10,000,000 7T P
Note: Htet -

0] ERAMH (LB BERARRER(LE) 2B
B5AEBR ARG RRTEKRIZZINEBEE D
X ERHOFATITFE_TATE=A
FE+EZ"FRARFNA -

BE _Z—+tHFE-_ZFT—NFE+_-A
=t+t—HIEFER FRFEHEQA
BiEES & RIEERER -
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10. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES
(i) Investments in associates

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet are as follows:

10. BEQATRERGEER
(i) BEQARAKRE

FABERBRANERSBLT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 208,026 217,665

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement are as follows:

HEBRRANERSEMNT

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET I

For the year ended 31 December HEt+-_A=1+—BItFE 2,023 (86,840)

Set out below is the associate of the Group as at 31
December 2018 which, in the opinion of the directors,
is material to the Group. The entity listed below has
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which
are held indirectly by the Group. The proportion of
ownership interest is the same as the proportion of
voting rights held.

BRIERBER AT FI; 2018

TXHEINR=-_F—-NFE+ A
=+ HEERA/YAKEMNSE
BEAZMERA] - THATERR
AEBEREFAEALBRIBKRZ
B - PRt S DI RET R 2
RERELLHIER -
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10. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 10.
(continued)

0]

Investments in associates (continued)

Nature of investments in associates as at 31
December 2017 and 2018:

BMENRRERLERR(F)

() BMEQXIRE(E)

R-B-—tHEK=-2-N\§+=A
St+t-BEBERAAREZME .

Place of Country of Percentage of Nature of Measurement
Name business incorporation ownership interest relationship method
a8 B Eg A E REEZEOL BENMEE SRR
Indirectly held:
RERA
2018 2017
China Land Assets Mainland China Hong Kong 45% 45% Note Equity
Limited H B izt e
MEEERRRA
Notes: Hat -

China Land Assets Limited (“CLA") is engaged in the commercial
property investments in Mainland China.

CLA is a private company and there is no quoted market price available
for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in
CLA.

Burwill Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

MBEERARAR([FBEE)TEET
NETHMEREER

MBEER—HLERR  ERHIETS
HE -

AEERFEEENRRIEEXRALE -
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10. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATES 10. B ATIRER & (&)

(continued)

(i) Investments in associates (continued) (i) BEATRE(E)
Individually immaterial associates FHEFIEABBE L A
In addition to the interests in associate disclosed above, Br AT R & A Al N - AN
the Group also has interests in a number of individually SENER ZHIEE R E QA
immaterial associates that are accounted for using the = B EAEEEALR -

equity method.

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T PR T T
Aggregate carrying amount of fERIFEE R 2 B A A
individually immaterial associates SLAREE 68,042 70,327
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share 7S£ B (i B & A 7
of associates FERE
Profit or loss W kB 1R 2,454 3,925
Other comprehensive expense Ht M| - (1,555)
Total comprehensive income ZERA LR 2,454 2,370
(ii) Balances with associates (i) H=ENTER
Except for the amount due from CLA amounting BRI B EERKRAD BB
to approximately HK$13,110,000 (2017: 13,110,0007C (=T — 4 : B
HK$13,110,000) which bears interest at 18% (2017: 13,110,0007T) st F R R18E (=
10%-18%) per annum, all the outstanding balances T—+F:10218F) ' FAEHM
with associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing EARR N AR R MR - R R
and repayable on demand. RRERKFEER °

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018
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11. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH JOINT 11. A2 ARRBRERERH
VENTURES
(i) Investments in joint ventures (i) EERAARE
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance FEEEABRABRSENT
sheet are as follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 49,695 5,737
The amounts recognised in the consolidated income EERRKRANBEREEOT
statement are as follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
For the year ended 31 December HE+t-A=1+—BHIt&E (1,263) (164)

Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at 31
December 2018 which, in the opinion of the directors,
is material to the Group. The entity listed below has
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares,
which are held indirectly by the Group. The country of
incorporation is also their principal place of business,
and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as
the proportion of voting rights held.

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

TXH#HINR-_ZF-NF+_-H
=+t BEERREAEEMSE
BARZAERA - THARERH
AEBEREFAEATBRBKZ
PRI o A MBI R B R T EL
By MAAEHREZERLPIERER
ZIRERLBIMER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE—

11.

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

BELNRARERK

/435 )

INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH JOINT 11. R (A5 )
VENTURES (continued)
(i) Investments in joint ventures (continued) (i) BERATRE(E)
Nature of investments in joint venture as at 31 R-B—tFER=ZZF—NF+=A
December 2017 and 2018: =t+—HEEARREZME :
Place of Country of Percentage of Nature of Measurement
Name business incorporation ownership interest relationship method
% Y3 FMAELER BEEERAEA BRNMEE TERE
Indirectly held:
HERE
2018 2017
TRETEE Mainland China Mainland China 50% 50% Note (3) Equity
ARAA FE HE Hi#(a) B
(DIREI))
Notes: Kiaz -
(a) JT P8 /Tis principally engaged in the processing of lithium (a) AT ERFEBEMI - HE
concentrates and sales of lithium carbonate and lithium B SE A AR -
hydroxide.
(b)  JTPEE T is private company and there is no quoted market (b)y TIEBIRLEAR  HRGOILED
price for its shares. HE o
Commitments in respect of joint ventures BE QN ZEE
2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$’000
BET T BE T
Commitments — joint ventures RIE—EENA]
Capital commitments EZIS%% - 48,192

ERIERABR AT F3R 2018
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11. INVESTMENTS IN AND BALANCES WITH JOINT 11. 88 QTR ERLEE (&)
VENTURES (continued)

0]

(i)

Investments in joint ventures (continued) (i)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s joint venture, ;T 78 & )T,
extracted from the financial statements:

Current assets mENEE
Non-current assets EMENEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Net assets BEFE
Revenue LN

Expenses X

Other comprehensive expense HM2HEX

Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ FE &M L4485

Individually immaterial joint venture

In addition to the interests in joint ventures disclosed
above, the Group also has interests in individually
immaterial joint ventures that are accounted for using
the equity method.

Aggregate carrying amount of BERIFEERE & A RIAY
individually immaterial joint ventures PR E 4218

Aggregate amounts of the Group's REBEEAEQRIER
share of joint ventures

Profit or loss B

Other comprehensive expense 2=

Total comprehensive income ZHERA BT
Balances with joint ventures (ii)

All the outstanding balances with joint ventures are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

BELRARE(E)

7

TRUBEE A BHRROAEH
BERARNIAEINGZNBE

2018
HK$°000
BT T

227,193

209
(139,248)

88,154

662
(3,172)

(2,510)

AR EX S E 2

fr EXFTREEA S & A B
RERE A AR A AR {5

FERGERRIELS
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET BT
5,618 5,737
@) (164)
(8) (164)

FIAEAERARIBRYERR %
%'J,%\&ﬁé%“éiﬂﬂam g
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 12. RERES2EMIT A
Carrying
amount
R E &
HK$'000
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZB—N\E+=ZHA=+—H BT T
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet HEAERARRFIIEE
Financial assets at fair value through other RATEEBEMEEATIRE I
comprehensive income BE 21,601
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: & A F(EFE BIBZFIRM B EE -
— Held for trading —REIEEERE 157
— Recognised at fair value through profit or loss —ERARATEERERTK 133,780
Financial assets at amortised cost: LB AR AR B & 2
— Bills and accounts receivable — FE IR I e IR 1R 699,462
— Deposits and other receivables — iR e R H fth fE K 261,752
— Due from associates 5? VNG 129,062
— Due from joint ventures — B & RAIRK 58
— Cash and bank balances *Iﬁfﬁ)}ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ : 70,251
1,316,123
Carrying
amount
IR EE
HK$'000
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\F+=A=+—8H BT
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet FEEERBRKMIAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: R AR A E :
— Borrowings —BEX 665,172
— Due to associates — REE & R B FRIE 516
— Bills and accounts payable —ENERREMNIRIE 88,000
— Other payables and accruals —HAh EFIIRIA R fEET B A 214,776
968,464
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12. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 12. #RERE s 2L I E (&)

Carrying
amount
REAE
HK$’000
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=-—H=+—H BEETIT
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet HEBAERARRFIIEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEMBEE 25,063
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: & A F(EFE BIBZEHIRM B S EE -
— Held for trading —REEEE 294
— Designated at fair value through profit or loss —EEERA T EEBIERTK 169,792
Financial assets classified as loans and receivables: %348 /& & 5k F1 fE W R IB M) B 75 B E -
— Bills and accounts receivable — W ER R EWIRIE 704,600
— Deposits and other receivables — iR & R H fth fE K 90,257
— Due from associates L NEISE 120,163
— Due from joint ventures —BERAIRK 43
— Cash and bank balances *Iﬁi INE EEE = 149,226
1,259,438
Carrying
amount
1REE
HK$'000
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=A=+—H BT T
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet HEEERBRRMIAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: R AR EE
- Borrowings —Bx 471,118
— Due to associates — REE & RN B RIR 568
— Bills and accounts payable —ETTmT)ﬁ&EHfPEIE\ 116,916
— Other payables and accruals —HthEMAIRIERESTE A 227,015
815,617
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13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

0]

(i)

Classification of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) comprise equity
securities which are not held for trading, and which
the Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition
to recognise in this category. These are strategic
investments and the Group considers this classification
to be more relevant.

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Equity investments at FVOCI comprise the following
individual investments:

Non-current assets FRBEE
Listed equity investment, at fair value M AZHEIRE

— Kazakhstan Potash Corporation
Limited ("KPC") (Note)

13. BAFEZEBHEMEEVASR M

&E

0]

(i)

 RAFE
— Kazakhstan Potash
Corporation Limited

(TKPC ) (K7az)

Note: The investment was classified as available-for-sale in 2017.

On disposal of these equity investments, any related
balance within the FVOCI reserve will be reclassified to
retained earnings.

In the prior financial year, the Group had designated
equity investments as available-for-sale financial assets
where management intended to hold them for the
medium to long-term.

Note 2.2 explains the change of accounting policy
and the reclassification of certain equity investments
from available-for-sale to at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Note 2.11 sets out the
remaining accounting policies.

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018

BAFEZBEMZEBASIRN
MBEEESE

BRAFHEBBEMEEBATIKRE
MBEEBRIIIFAEEENKR
A8 A NS BN A FER M BOR
EERERIL D - LB ARIKRR
EMAEERASDBRENEREHE

BAFEZBEMZEBASIRN
RERE

BAFHEBBE M2 EBATIKRE
R E BIEA TEBIRE

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT B TIT

21,601 -

Bt - ZRER T —LFROBAAHH
& o

=

RHEZERERER  RATE
FREMEEWATIIR A E AR
ERERRESR B ER DR ERE
7 o

RE—EMBRFE  AREC KK
REBRERAHHEMBEE -
RASEEEBREESAEENRY -

M2 2@ ES T RN ES RS
FRAKERTHEEEFHHEE
RAFESBEMEEBATRE -
Bt 2.11 &5 E R 5T BUR ©
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13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER  13.
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

BRAVEZEBHMEEBASRE T

(i) ZASEAAHRLEMBEE (=

(iii) Financial assets previously classified as available-

for-sale financial assets (2017)

2+ 4)

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Listed equity investment, at fair value ~ _EWARIEIRE - I AFE
— KPC — KPC - 25,063

Classification of financial assets as available-for-
sale financial assets

Investments were designated as available-for-sale
financial assets if they did not have fixed maturities
and fixed or determinable payments, and management
intended to hold them for the medium to long-term.
Financial assets that were not classified into any of
the other categories (at FVPL, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments) were also included in the
available-for-sale category.

The financial assets were presented as non-current
assets unless they matured, or management intended
to dispose of them within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

Impairment indicators for available-for-sale
financial assets

A security was considered to be impaired if there had
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost. See Note 2.11 for further details about
the Group's previous impairment policies for available-
for-sale financial assets.

KRB EED R TR EEE
E

i $52 & 3 428 6] HARR M2 [ E kAl B
ENMRAEEERHEFEES
R AIRESEE /AT HLEM
BEE - ADBEEMEMER (&
RNHEFEBBHIIR - BB
FRAXBFAZIHRRE) WM BE
ETNsT AR ERR

BRIV BEETHREEERAER
EHRPRET—_EAARLE - B
MBEEFRBEERT °

o 4 ] R B B Y BB PSR

WAFEAEREYR THREERE
R - AR AR RIRIE © B RA
5 A] 4R B B B B ST AT RO ORL
BERROE—FFE - FLHME
211 ¢
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14. INVENTORIES 14. FE&
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Finished goods — steel products held for R —FEH L E

resale Z S E M 86,024 35,190
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in FERAPHERAHE RIS AHEEKAR
cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$2,238,745,000 /)< B8 H AT 4975 % 2,238,745,000 7T (=

(2017: HK$2,294,845,000). T—+ 5 : #%2,294,845,0007T) °
At 31 December 2018, the Group had certain inventories R-ZEBE—NF+_A=+—H xKE
of approximately HK$67,601,000 (2017: HK$27,355,000) B DT EX B 67,601,000 (ZF
pledged with the banks (see Note 37(a)). —+4F : M 27,355,000 7T) #H I T ER1T

(RFIEE37@)) °

15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 15. RAFEHEBBEZIIRNTEEE

OR LOSS

(i) Classification of financial assets at fair value (i)
through profit or loss

The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL):

o equity investments that are held for trading; and

o equity investments for which the entity has not
elected to recognise fair value gains and losses

through OCI.
Current assets REEE
Financial assets held for trading: REEEENUHEE :
Listed equity securities ETRAE
- Hong Kong —&BH
Financial assets recognised as at fair ~ #R AEATFEE B
value through profit or loss BaRIIRMNT G EE
(2017: designated as at fair value (ZE—+F EEH
through profit or loss): BRAFEFBERIIK)
Listed equity securities TR 5
— Overseas (Note) — oMKt EE)

Market value of listed equity securities _E I AZE A 2 H{E

ERIERABR AT F3R 2018

BAVEHEBBBIIRNUBEE
Pkl

$’$I%HLAT“* BAHEEBE
mIIRE I B E -

s REFEEMNRERE

. ERVEEERZATESESR
H fth 2 [ WA B bR FE R A A
wWwIH o

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT

157 294
133,780 169,792
133,937 170,086
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS (continued)

0]

(ii)

Classification of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (continued)

Note: The financial assets represent the investment in Alliance
Mineral Assets Limited (“AMAL") which are dual-listed on
the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX") and Singapore
Stock Exchange Catalist. As of 31 December 2018, a total of
93,388,728 (2017: 76,510,228) ordinary shares of AMAL are
held by the Group, representing 7.16% (2017:13.77%) of
AMAL's total issued ordinary shares.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in “other income
and net gains” in the consolidated income statement
(see Note 26).

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

At 31 December 2018, equity securities with market
value of approximately HK$115,157,000 (2017:
HK$169,792,000) were pledged to secure other loans
of the Group (see Note 37(b)).

Previous accounting policy: Classification of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

In 2017, the Group classified financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss if they were acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term,
i.e. are held for trading or financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. They were presented
as current assets if they are expected to be sold within
12 months after the end of the reporting period;
otherwise they were presented as non-current assets.
See Note 2.11 for the Group’s other accounting policies
for financial assets.

15. RAFEEBBERIRNUBEE (F)

0]

(i)

BAFEZBRRAIIRNMBEE
o8/ (&)

Kiat - kil B 75 & B A R Alliance Mineral
Assets Limited (TAMAL ) B13& & - 3%
ARERMNBEH R ST (DR &
HNFEER S Catalist EE 7 -
R-ZE—NE+=-A=+—10 £&
B 35 5 AMAL93,388,728 ik (=&
—+ % 76,510,228 %) L@ - 1h
AMALE BT EBREE 7.16% (=
T—+F:13.77%) °

BRAHEEBERIIRNTBEEE
MAFEZES ERaBaRA[E
W A R Uz 588 | P DIk (R RE
26) °

FIARAZ S A FETRBEER
Bz REHEFSE -

R-_EBE—NF+-_A=+—8H"
% 72K 55 % B 4978 # 115,157,000
TL(ZZF—+F : ¥ 169,792,000
TL) BEAREEEMERERT (R
B 5E 37(b)) °

EAEEE  RATVEEBRER
IR BEED B

REZZE—tF  WKEMKEED
BEMEZAREHAEE (EFEE
EEESIEER AT EB BB
&) AIAEERESEAKRAF
BEBERIIIRATEEE © W
BEERFRRERREN121EA
AHE @ AIEE2FBRBEE
GBRIEEZ2S RIERBEE - B
REENBEENEMESTHRR
BsE2.11 °
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16.

BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. EWERE - BWIRE R H it E KR
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Bills and accounts receivable U ZE 4 K e R IR 1E 703,697 710,016
Less: Allowance for impairment of R FEMONR TR (B R
accounts receivable (4,235) (5,416)
Bills and accounts receivable, net UG E R & R UIR IR - JH R
(Note (i) (BHEE () 699,462 704,600
Deposits, prepayments and other Ze s B R E AR
receivables 423,902 344,938
Less: Allowance for impairment of W R BRI E AL EK
deposits, prepayments and PO ERAE
other receivables (21,587) (91,927)
Deposits, prepayments and other e BRI E A EUGK
receivables, net EEL 402,315 253,011
1,101,777 957,611
Notes: Hiat -
(i) The following is an aged analysis of bills and accounts receivable net (i) LA AR R BAR (B4R B e A\ W 2R B HA 48

of allowance for credit losses presented based on the invoice date at
the end of the reporting period, which approximated the respective

revenue recognition dates:

Within three months

Over three months but within six months
Over six months but within twelve months
Over twelve months

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018

=EAR

BB=EAm T BRENER
BB E A m A RE T = @R
R+ @A

w)IREBEEE 270 R KRR R KR

I8 (B HIBR A MY IRER D AT
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
284,226 484,370
64,319 94,118
216,132 126,112
134,785 -
699,462 704,600
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16.

BILLS, ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16.
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the ageing analysis of bills and
accounts receivable based on due dates is as follows:

Within three months: =BEAA :

- not yet due - R Ef

— past due within three months -EHA=EAR
Over three months but within six months BB =18 A m T HRESEA
Over six months but within twelve months BB EA M EAT —E
Over twelve months BiEtT A

There is no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to bills
and accounts receivable as the Group has a large number of customers,
which are internationally dispersed.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts receivable are
denominated in the following currencies:

us$
EUR

S
SISl

At 31 December 2018, the Group had certain bills and accounts
receivable of approximately HK$38,655,000 (2017: HK$126,436,000)
pledged with the banks (see Note 37(c)).

Burwill Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

FEWRE - EWIRER AWK (2

Hiat - ()

(ii) R=B-N\EFER=FT—+F+=-A=1+—8"
AR 4R 78 H A HA A FE U Z2 R T KR K A O i

DT
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
B¥TT BET T
346,005 577,206
89,664 40,866
125,894 86,528
H 137,246 -
653 =
699,462 704,600

FEW SR 15 I MR IR S B K W EE A
B AAAKEERZEP BMAERASM -

(i)  AEEERERRERIRBNREEIT
B R REBAL

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
661,142 574,687
38,320 129,913
699,462 704,600

RZZE—N\E+_A=+—08 AE=EHZH
193 FE LS 22 4% T2 JRE MR MR 781 4075 K 38,655,000 7T
(ZZT—+4F : 8% 126,436,000 7T ) K1 TR
1T (RBIE37(0) ©
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17.

18.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at banks and on hand

At 31 December 2018, the Group had certain bank balances
of approximately HK$346,000 (2017: HK$27,696,000)
pledged with the banks (see Note 37(d)).

At 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$11,788,000 (2017: HK$1,769,000) are
denominated in RMB and placed with banks in Mainland
China. The remittance of these funds out of Mainland China
is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the

Chinese Government.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

At 1 January 2017,
31 December 2017,
1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018

Issued and fully paid

At 1 January 2017

Repurchase of shares (Note (a))
Share options exercised

At 31 December 2017 and

1 January 2018
Repurchase of shares (Note (b))
Share options exercised

At 31 December 2018

BRI AR AR £k 2018

17. RERBITEE
2018
HK$"000
BT T

RITNEFRS 70,251

2017
HK$'000
BT

149,226

(RHFEE37(d)) °

BEE B Il AR A

R-ZEBE—-NFE+-_A=+—0 Kr&£E
BEMDIRITE R A B4 346,000 T (=&
— -+ : & # 27,696,000 7T ) IR T ER1T

R-ZBE-NF+-_A=+—0 #HE K
IRITAEERA7E5 11,788,000 T (— T —+
& 1,769,000 T) RAARKE AR
BN WA PR ZEIT - HhHE
HZEESe X RPN RBRMFE K2

18. KX
Number
of ordinary Nominal
shares value
EZEREE HE
(thousands) HK$'000
(F&0) BETIT
JETE
R-_Z—+F—HF—H"
—2—+F+=—A=+—H"
—E-NF—A—HBK
—E-NF+=-_A=+—H 6,800,000 680,000
B TR E
R-ZE—+F—H—H 5,016,565 501,656
BRI, (it @) (53,136) (5,313)
1715 B8 R 9,400 940
RZZE—+tF+=—A=+—8H
r—Z—N\&E—HF—H 4,972,829 497,283
BB R (A2 b)) (36,506) (3,651)
7710 B8 N 173,300 17,330
R-E—NF+_-_A=+—H 5,109,623 510,962
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18.

19.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company via Hillot
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, repurchased a
total of 53,136,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the general mandate granted by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting held on 22 June 2016.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company via Hillot
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, repurchased a
total of 36,506,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the general mandate granted by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting held on 7 June 2018.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
8 June 2011 (“2011 Option Scheme”) and 7 June 2018
("2018 Option Scheme”), (together the “Share Option
Schemes”), shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of Share Option Schemes. Under the Share Option
Schemes, the Company may grant options to employee
(whether full-time or part-time), officer, buying agent,
selling agent, consultant, sales representative or marketing
representative of, or supplier or provider of goods or services
to, the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including any
executive or non-executive director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time excluding for
this purpose shares issued on exercise of options.

The subscription price will be a price determined by the Board
and will be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant (subject to acceptance) of
the option, which must be a business day; (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant (subject to acceptance) of the
option; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

2011 Option Scheme was terminated after the adoption of
2018 Option Scheme on 7 June 2018, after which period
no further options will be granted nor accepted but the
provisions of 2011 Option Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect in all other respects.

2018 Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of ten years commencing from 7 June 2018, after which
period no further options will be granted nor accepted but
the provisions of 2018 Option Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects. No share option is
granted, forfeited, exercised or expired under 2018 option
scheme since its adoption on 7 June 2018.

18.

19.

Hﬁ $ \/%5 /\"

(a) HE_Z—+t&+-_A=+—HLEFERN"
ANRRVEBANR A2 ETE A & Hillot Limited
BER-_ZT—RNENA-+-HETZR
FRFAE L ERERTESRELBRMDZ
—BERE REXBERARRRKRGA &
53,136,000 A%

(b) HE-_T—\F+-_A=+—HLFER"
ARARBBAA R ENEB A A Hillot Limited
BE-T—NFNALBRITZRRBEFX
CLERERRTESERRG 2 —BEE -
FRESE X PR Bl R 1 RIAR19& #£ 36,506,000 A °

BARR 47 37 4% 2 % B

ARBBERRERBR -F——FXA
NBER-Z-NFRALARTZRRE
BEAE LM ERAERESE (=%
——FEREE D R(=2F-N\FH
Perest 81)) (e ha [ RE ARt &l 1) - R
FEER ) NARAE T ARBIHE
EAMBARZEE (ThESE2BN
B EE RBEAE - HERE B
A HERRIMHHER  HARFHE
KB AR Z B m RIS R R iR
HE (BRARASIEEMHBAR 2 E
AMITERLIFNITES) BAE - BE
RNE&Z AT TR EITRAZ30% °

ABERHEEREE UKD BT
EBfPzRSE @ BRNERK (BfFE
X)BBEER (WAREER) BN
BHBERMINZWHE : O)ROER
BERE(AHER) BREZ A B AE
SER EBRXAERAMERMIIZF
BYTHE - R(OBPZEE -

R-E-—N\FRALBRB_Z—N\F
BROER IR - — T ——FEREI
BRI RS TR HR D SEREMA
FEARE M —T — — F AR 8 2 &R
XEHEENESKDAEETRR -

—E-)\FEBREAI AR _F
—N\FERNALBEF BE+F HiR
AR BRI SRR - =
T \FRBREFEZBGXEREESN
EEDAEE+RE N - BZF—\FR
AEBRAAR » —F— N FRERE

&7 o

Burwill Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

171



172

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 545 B &SRR KM=
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_-_A=1+—HIFE

19. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 19. ARG XA 2| (&)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and MARITEE 2 RSB R E A BN
their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: FHTEEZESAT ¢
2018 2017

Average Average

exercise exercise

price in HKS$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)

SEkRE BERE
THITEE BRE  THOREE BikiE
(Bx) (F3f) (B7) (F&)
At 1 January R—A—H 0.217 426,600 - -
Granted ERE - - 0217 436,000
Exercised EfTfE 0.217 (173,300) 0217 (9,400)
Forfeited R 0.217 (4,900) - -
At 31 December W+=ZA=1+—~ 0.217 248,400 0.217 426,600

All the outstanding options were exercisable as at 31
December 2017 and 2018. Options exercised in 2018
resulted in 173,300,000 (2017: 9,400,000) shares being
issued at a weighted average price of HK$0.217 (2017:
HK$0.217). The related weighted average share price at the
time of exercise was HK$0.39 (2017: HK$0.34) per share.

The related transaction costs approximately to HK$41,000
(2017: HK$9,000) had been netted off with the proceeds
received for the year ended 31 December 2018.

BRI AR AR £k 2018

RZE—+FER-_FE—-NF+=-A
=+—HB  FTARTEZERESAT
11fF - RZZ— \F % 173,300,000 17
(== —+4F : 9,400,0001p) BERX HEIR T
HEK0.217 T (ZF—tF : B¥0.217
T) Z DR FIBITE o RITER 2 A8
INEFRRE B ERARD B 0.39 T (=
T— 4 F#0347T) °

HE—_Z—-N\FE+-_R=+—BItEE
HER SR ALY ABEEA1,000T (=
— 4 BH9,0007T) ¢ BB E WELFT

/8 = ==
BRIBEE °
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19.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year had the
following expiry date and exercise price:

Expiry date

—EF——FERESE
—E-AFtA+=H

2011 Option Scheme
13 July 2019

BUR 4 X4 2 B (42)

RERRBAITE BEEZ A RTT
EEMT :

Exercise
price in HK$
per share Options
option (thousands)
BER
BTEE MR AE
(% 7T) (F35H)
2018 2017
0.217 248,400 426,600

The vesting period of the options is from the date of the
grant until the commencement of the exercisable period.

According to Black-Scholes options pricing model, the
fair value of options granted in 2017 was approximately
HK$26,160,000 of which the Group recognised a share
option expenses of approximately HK$26,160,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2017
determined using the Black-Scholes options pricing model
was $0.06 per option. The significant inputs into the model
were summarised as follows:

Volatility 52.05%
Exercise price HK$0.217
Expected option life 2 years
Annual risk-free interest rate 0.79%
Share price at the grant date HK$0.217

The volatility represented the average standard deviation
of historical share price movement of the Company in
the relevant periods matching expected life of the share
options. The amount of share-based payments charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2017.

BREZGBEHHRLEARE/TES
FIAE B LE -

RIE D= — 2T T AT EE

RZE—tFERH2EREZ AFED
75 % 26,160,0007T - EF AKBEREZE
T+ E+-A=+—HItFEER
BE PR HE S H #4978 5 26,160,000 T ©

R-T—EFREZBRE  EmET
B RFEATAR N TR T E
BAEE  SHBREREHE0.067TT -
BARRAZEAEBEET ¢

eIl 52.05%
I{EE BE0.217 7T
B 2 TAET B A F
12 3 F I X 0.79%
R B B2 IRE BH0.217 7T

B ED R i AN 2 B 4 B A 7 I B A
B2 FHNELRERES 2 FI9T
ERE-BE_FT—tFT-A=1—
RILFE  NEABRRMERURN X
1 2 BN 2 BA -
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20. OTHER RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSSES 20. Hfif#EERRTEE
Capital ~ Contributed Capital ~ Avallable- Share-ased ~ Convertible
Share Teserve surplus— redemption forsale  Tranation  compensation bonds  Accumulated
premium (Note (i) (Note (i) eserve reseve  adjustments reserve eserve [osses Total
EXGE  HARR WRIAZH RS

BOEE  (MEO)  (WEG) ATEERE WELERE  MESE  ZREEE  RRER 2HER ]
HKSOD  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKFODD  HKSOD  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKS000
wETT  BETn  A¥TR AW iR BT B%Tr AR ARTR AR

At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-A-H 850865 (51,580) 9,172 12,037 - 61,665 - - (512,648) 459,511
Loss forthe year EEER - - - - - - - - (7,715) (7,715)
Share of other comprehensive FEBEATLN2E

expense of associates 2 - - - - - (3,845) - - = (3849)
Release upon disposal of HENBAR EaE

subsdiaries i - - - - - 98%) - - - (9890
Release of eserves upon NGB

redlassfication of associate o HBEEELGA

available-for-sale finandial assets - - - - - (9432) - - - (9432)
Change i far value of avalable-for- AT EBKEZATE

sale financial assets g - - - - (33,536) - - - - (33,536)
Reclasification upon impaiment o~ Rt EFKEERER

avalableforsale financial assets ~ EFAE - - - - 33,536 - - - - 3353
Currengy tranglation differences ~ SEERZ%

- Group -£§ - - - - - (10,383) - - - (10,383)

- Associates -BEQE - - - - - 33,759 - - - 33759
Repurchase of shares BERRD (3331) - - - - - - - - (3331)
Employee share option scheme: SBT3

- value of employee senvices -EEREER - - - - - - 26,160 - = 26,160

- share ptions exercised ~hiERE 1,663 - - - - - (564) - = 1,099
Isue of convertble bonds TS

- equity component -BRANSH - - - - - - - 1423 = 1423
At31 December 2017 3 S 3

t-A=1-A 849,197 (51,580) 99,172 12,037 - 61,874 25,5% 14236 (520,363) 490,169
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20. OTHER RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSSES

20. HittFBERASER (&)

Financial
assets Share-based ~ Convertible
atFvoCl  Translation compensation bonds  Accumulated
reserve  adjustments reserve reserve losses Total
BRATEES
R 2EUA
SRS HRERA TR

KER@f  BERE ZRRER  REER Z0ER ]
HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000
ERTR  RBTR BMTR RRTR ERTR AR

- 618 255% W36 (520363) 490169

- - - - (10,040) (10,040)

(continued)
Capital ~ Contributed Capital
Share reserve surplus  redemption
premium (Note () (Note (ii)) reserve
BAfkE  40E
REE  (WEG)  (WEG) EAERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AETn  BBTn BETR
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t5-A-H 849,197 (51,580) 99,172 12,037
Reclasification on theadoption VBB RS £
of HKFRS 9 ZORMENAR - = = =
1 January 2018 RZF-\5-A-H 849,197 (51,580) 99,172 12,037
Loss for th year FEER - - - =
Share of other comprehensive B ARE
income of associates 2EHA - - - -

Release upon disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBATRRE LR - - -
Changes in the farvalue of equity ~ RAFEFEBE

investments at fairvalue through ~~ 2EAATIRA

other comprehensive income ERTANTEZY - - -
Currengy tranglation differences ~ E®ER 2%

= 61,874 25,59 14,236 (530,403) 480,129
= = = = (109,4%)  (109,4%)

= 409 = = = 409
= (55,515) = = = (55,515)
(3463) = = = = (3.463)
= (5,363) = = = (5,363)
= (11,320) = = = (11,320)
- - - - - (1,858)
= = (10,400) = = 20,233
- - - - (51,580) =
- - (292) - 219 -

(3463) (9915) 14904 14,236 (691,187) 313,756

- Group -5H - - - -

- Assodiates -BERA - - - -
Repurchase of shares EERH (1,858) = = =
Employee share option scheme: B BREs -

- share options eercised e 30633 - - -
Disposal of subsiciaries LENBAT - 51,580 - -
Transfer of share option reseve upon - KR IER el

theforfetue orexpiyof shae — ERBERERERE

options - - - -
At31 December 2018 RIE-)\F

tZA=t-8 8719m - 9,172 12037
Notes:
(i) Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between

(i)

the considerations paid over the proportionate share of net assets
attributable to the acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries.

Contributed surplus represents (a) the difference between the nominal
amount of the shares issued and the book value of the underlying net
assets of subsidiaries acquired; and (b) transfer from share premium
account. It can be utilised for issuance of bonus shares or for capital
redemption upon repurchase of shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders subject to the condition that a company
shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if (a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (b) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

B&E :

0] ANER [ O B AR A4 P S AN XM ER UK R BT TR
RAFEIMERIRLL DI EEEEFE L HNE
e

(i)  BMABRBRT()ROBEITZEERBANER
AlZFEERIEZZRE  Rb)BBMDEE
IREEA o BB ERA] L EITAL A SE = A 1D
R EE AR

REBEBRE-NN\—FREE  BARKRA
DIRARRIR - B @ R DIKER * RRIAREE
EIBMEBRO) EEEATZREEINHE
B CETRARBRMDEERZEM 2
A TR E M IR D IRBA R -
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21. BORROWINGS 21. BEX
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
Non-current IERED
Convertible bonds (Note (i) AR &S (15 () = 140,300
Notes payables (Note (i) FEAST =35 (K722 (i) 71,301 23,065
Other loans from non-controlling B /8 A B FEFE AR AR 3R Y
shareholders of subsidiaries (Note (i) E G (BT 2F (i) = 56,660
71,301 220,025
Current mE
Bank overdrafts (Note 34(b)) RITE X (Kt 34(b)) 4,277 -
Bank borrowings due within one year AR—FRNEENRITER 221,350 181,714
Convertible bonds (Note (i) AR E S (A5 () 253,816 -
Notes payables (Note (i) FEAST =45 (K722 (i) 40,617 =
Other loans (Note (iv)) HMER (K7 () 73,811 69,379
593,871 251,093
Total borrowings BER 665,172 471,118
Secured borrowings are as follows: BEBERLAT :
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
Bank borrowings RITER 104,778 124,082
Other loans EMERR 73,811 69,379
178,589 193,461
At 31 December 2018, bank borrowings of approximately RZE—N\F+ZA=+—8 " RITE
HK$104,778,000 (2017: HK$124,082,000) were secured by KA 104,778,000 T (ZFE—+4F -
certain inventories, bills and accounts receivable and bank 785 5 124,082,0007T) AEB I FE - B
balances (see Notes 14, 16 and 17). ZE R EBOIRTE R IRTTAE R EHER (R

F14-16%17) ©
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21.

BORROWINGS (continued)

Certain banking facilities of the Group are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group's
balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in Note
3.1(c). As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, none of the
covenants relating to the drawn down facilities had been
breached.

At 31 December 2017 and 2018, the Group’s borrowings
were repayable as follows:

21.

2t /g8 )
BR (&)

AEBBHBITEEAIBITEAEE
ETEEBBLEEEMNRLFER -
ZEHNFEANESRBBERNEE
ZH - BEAEEERRZY  AERIME
KB ERERFER - AEESTHER
ZELZNBITER - AEEEERBE
TR E —FFBHRWEE3 () - R
2 tFR T NF+ZA=1+—
H AEBTEERGHECRIEER
24 o

R—_ZE—+ER_ZE—N\E+_H
=+ H AEEERNEEBRAT

Bank borrowings

and overdrafts

Other borrowings

RITERREX Ht &K
2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT T BETIT
Within one year —FR 225,627 181,714 368,244 69,379
Between one and two years —ZZF R
(Note) (Htat) - - 66,801 159,465
Between two and five years —ZRHEFR
(Note) (Htat) - - 4,500 60,560
225,627 181,714 439,545 289,404
Note: iz -

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements and ignored the effect of any repayment on demand clause.

BB & BRIH IR B SR h ik P 8 ) TEE (EE B 3T E
W AT R AR A RE R RSRER FR R E
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21. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(0]

Convertible bonds
2017 Convertible Bonds

On 25 September 2017, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement dated 25 September 2017 with Haitong International
Financial Products (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. in relation to the issue
of convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
US$20,000,000, carrying an interest of 7%, which is payable semi-
annually by the Company (the “2017 Convertible Bonds”), The 2017
Convertible Bonds will be due on 3 October 2019. Upon full conversion
of the 2017 Convertible Bonds at the conversion price of HK$0.26
per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments), a total of
603,846,000 new ordinary shares of the Company will be issued. The
shares will be allotted and issued pursuant to the general mandate
granted to the Directors of the Company at annual general meeting of
the Company held on 30 June 2017. The 2017 Convertible bonds may
be converted into ordinary shares of the Company commencing on 3
June 2018. The liability component of the 2017 Convertible Bonds was
calculated using the effective interest rate of 13.9% per annum.

2018 Convertible Bonds

On 20 March 2018, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement dated 20 March 2018 with Tongfang Securities Limited,
Haitong International Asset Management (HK) Limited and Mount
Everest Fund in relation to the issue of convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of US$13,000,000, carrying an interest
of 7%, which is payable semi-annually by the Company (the “2018
Convertible Bonds”). The conversion period of the 2018 Convertible
Bonds will be matured on 28 September 2019. Upon full conversion
of the 2018 Convertible Bonds at the conversion price of HK$0.32
per conversion share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments), a total of
316,875,000 new ordinary shares of the Company will be issued. The
shares will be allotted and issued pursuant to the general mandate
granted to the Directors of the Company at annual general meeting
of the Company held on 30 June 2017. The conversion period of
the 2018 Convertible Bonds will commence on 28 July 2019. In the
event that the convertible bondholders shall give conversion notice
to the Company to exercise the conversion right with respect to any
convertible bonds (the “Relevant Convertible Bonds”), the Company
shall have the rights (the “Early Redemption Right”) to redeem the
Relevant Convertible Bonds by giving a redemption notice (the “Early
Redemption Notice”) to the convertible bondholders within 15
business days from the date of the Conversion Notice at an aggregate
price (the “Early Redemption Amount”) of (i) the outstanding
principal amount of the Relevant Convertible Bonds, (ii) all accrued
and unpaid interest for the Relevant Convertible Bonds from the
issue date up to (and including) the date of the Redemption Notice,
and (iii) such amount as would result in an internal rate of return of
fifteen (15%) per annum on the outstanding principal amount of the
Relevant Convertible Bonds at the date of the Redemption Notice.
Upon maturity, the Company shall redeem at redemption price
determinate the same manner as the Early Redemption Amount. The
2018 Convertible Bonds is hybrid instrument as the conversion option
does not meet the definition of an equity instrument. The fair value of
embedded derivatives is determinate to be insignificant as at the date
of issuance and 31 December 2018.

BRI AR AR £k 2018

21. &

e =D
M (75 )

Hiat - ()

(i)

AR E S
2017 AT AR &

RZZE—+tHFNA=-+HB  ARAFHE
Haitong International Financial Products
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. s M2 BEA A =T —+F N,
AZT+HBZREGZE  NEERBRTEE
#8%620,000,0003 7T * R7[ET S - AA R
REIGFEEBNAHRRES (12017 AT
&% 1) ° 2017 AR ESFER —E—NF+
A=BEIH - %2017 TR EFZRREST
BRI 7 %5 0.26 7T (A] T REEE FAE) B
#i0  52£603,846,000 B AR A AIHTE @ ARAR
DT ET - RHDBBER=-F—EF<A
ETERTZARARRAFRAG LR TE
B RUERERERET - BT —N\F
NAZHR% - 2017 AHARR &5 AT 8 R R AR
ARIEBAR - 2017 AT R E S 00 B EHEK S
PIERERENE139EFH -

2018 AT AR &

RZZE—NE=ZA=1+8  ARFLERZE
HFERAR FRBEREEER (BB AR
RAIRKERESHFTABRA-T—\F=FA
—tHZRERE  NEEBRBETALBE
13,000,000 7T * R7ERT S - BRAR A
BYFEENATRRKRES ([2018 AT RRE
%) 2018 A AREBEHFMBHRBAKHR =T
—NENAZ+T/N\BEIH - %2018 AT LA (E
FIRRIRE TR D EE 0.32 70 (A] T/
SEFEE) BHEE - 43£316,875,000 AR
RIFT BRI 1S T 31T - RO IRIBER =
T—tFRNAZTABRTZARBRRAE
AEERTFEFZ —MERERE RET -
2018 AR E A M EIRHIIER — T — N F
A=+ N\BRA - W& AT RRESFE AR
7 BB H R BRI AN DAL AR A AT R AR B 4 ([ 48
BRRRES]) TTERRE AR R AR
([REERE]) RBRRRBHNBBRETR
AR ANRARRESFE AR L ELR
M(MEREEEA]) BEAE TR ES
BERNEBITRRESZAEARS - (i)HE
AR ESFNETAREZEDEMNAH
(BIEZRA) 22 HEHEBRRIMFE - &
(iR B E A A AR TR R EHF R ER
S 2ZNEFERIHE+F(15%) ([ FER S
) o REIHIES - AR R GIRAREER S
AR A = E E KB B EREE - 2018 AT
REFREETE BARRRETKHEER
TEMER RETAHE=-ZT—N\F+=
A=+—8 #AXTETANAFEHE
EATEK -
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21.

BORROWINGS (continued) 21. ER(E)
Notes: (continued) Hiat : (&)
(i) Convertible bonds (continued) (i) R ES (&)
The convertible bonds recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are EHRAEERBRERNAIRRESTEN
calculated as follows: T
2018 2017
2018 2017 2017
Convertible Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds Total Bonds
TR AR 35 RRES #st AR ES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BET T BT
As at 1 January n—A—H = 140,300 140,300 -
Face value of convertible RERBEITH RTEE R
bonds issued during the year BEFNEREE 101,400 - 101,400 156,000
Transaction costs R HKA (2,179) - (2,179) (3,508)
Equity component (Note 20) W B BB D (K17 20) = = = (14,236)
Interest expense MEZH 11,076 19,501 30,577 4,738
Interest paid and payable B4 R A RS (5.362) (10,920) (16,282) (2,694)
Liability component +=—A=+—HHY
at 31 December & BEK D 104,935 148,881 253,816 140,300
(i)  Notes payables (i) EAREE

On 17 May 2017, the Company entered into the placing agreement
with the placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent agreed
to act as a placing agent, on a best effort basis, for the purposes of
arranging placees for the issue of the notes with an aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$200,000,000 in multiple tranches. The placing
period was extended to 30 April 2019. At 31 December 2017 and
2018, the placing notes carry interest at 7% per annum and payable
annually in arrears on the anniversary date of the issue date of the
notes or on the maturity date.

In addition, during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, the
Company issued 5.5% to 12.5% notes. The notes have a one to five
years term and payable annually in arrears on the anniversary date of
the issue date of the notes or on the maturity date.

—T—+tHERA+TLA AQAHEEERE
RAIVEERHE Bt RERBEREETR
EREBEREZAB N - #1TAI A& 2E
TBiEBH 200,000,000 TLH 21D =i 2 HE&
RA REHCERE_ZE—AENA=1
H-RZE—+FR=F—\F+=ZA=1+—
B EREZBDIRFEMNERTE; Y BRF
B REERZETEHMNBES B R EIEA
XA e

o HUE =T —+FR =T \F+=A
=T —HIEFE FRRARETS5E125EF
B -ZERAH—EZRFIEREE  RER
BITEHMES B R BIBA X -
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21. BORROWINGS (continued) 21. BR(#&)

Notes: (continued) Bt ()

(i)  Other loans from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are (iii) MR A B IR AR AR R A H i B SR A -
unsecured, non-interest bearing and not repayable within one year. RAMBERTNER—FAEE -

(iv)  Other loans were secured by certain financial assets at fair value (iv)y HEFASBREBERTEREBZINIZR
through profit or loss in overseas, bearing interest at 7% per annum TEFERARIREEINIBEEER  F
and repayable on demand. L 7% F) 8RR ERFFERK ©

(v) Fair value ) AFZE
The fair values of convertible bonds are as follow: AR E AN ATENT

2018 2017

Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
IR E {8 AFE IR EE NTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BT BT T
2017 Convertible Bonds 2017 AR AR B 5 148,881 150,517 140,300 143,551
2018 Convertible Bonds 2018 AJ AR (B 25 104,935 105,089 - -
253,816 255,606 140,300 143,551

The effective interest rates at the end of the reporting period RBEHHRANERMNZNT :

are as follows:

2018 2017

uUs$ EUR us$ EUR
EP BT EIT BT

Bank borrowings and RITERREX
overdraft 5.8% 2.0% 4.7% 2.2%
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are AEBERIREENL TS AEEA]

denominated in the following currencies:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
us$ e 451,056 343,063
RMB AR - 3,899
HK$ BT 111,918 23,065
EUR B 7T 28,387 31,712
SGD ¥ AN TT 73,811 69,379
665,172 471,118
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22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22. ANAEE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BEETIT

Advances for sales of goods HEMmBRR 32,179 =

Note: /}/732' .

(i) On 1 January 2018, the balance of the Group’s contract liabilities (ii) RZZE-—N\F-—A—HBH AEENEHA
was approximately HK$20,359,000, of which approximately B4 R4 BB %5 20,359,000 7T + H A 49751
HK$15,597,000 has been recognised as revenue in 2018. 15,597,000 TER = Z — \FHRHKE -

(ii) In addition, the Group has received advance from its customers (ii) oy RZZE—N\E+=-_A=+—H K&
amounting to approximately HK$164,453,000 as at 31 December B s 2 = P TR S FRIA 4078 ¥ 164,453,000 7T
2018 (2017: HK$74,828,000) which are refundable and for which (ZZ—+4F : ##74,828,0007T) ' XS
the customers have not yet placed binding purchase orders with the EAREBERFHARNANER T EZANRA
Group. Accordingly, these amounts are classified as other payables HERAEETEE - it - ZERBEL B AEME
rather than as contract liabilities. HREMIEELHAE -

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 23. BEFREH

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is EIEFTISTIR B 2 E BT

as follows:

2018 2017
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETIT

At 1 January W—A—H 15,446 42,630

Currency translation differences BHIE N ERE (160) 489

Consolidated income statement (charge)/ fE4R& B35 % (k)

credit # IR (1,084) 1,220

Disposal of subsidiaries S B A A = (28,893)

At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 14,202 15,446
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23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as
follows:

23.

—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE

RSB (&)

FREEMSHEERBBEZEH (RE
EZRER —HBE  AREH) T

Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHREE
Accelerated tax depreciation
MEHEITE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
At 1 January R—A—H - (1,177)
Charged to consolidated income statement 7474 1825 %TDB? (4) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEA = 1,177
At 31 December R+—A=+—H (4) =
Deferred income tax assets ELEFfESHEE
Decelerated tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
AEBRBENE BB k)
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETr B¥Tn A¥Tr B¥Tx BT
At 1 January R—B—H (817) 340 16,263 43,467 15,446 43,807
(Charged)/Credited to EReERR
the consolidated (Ink) /iR
income statement (96) (333) (984) 1,553 (1,080) 1,220
Currency translation ERERZT
differences - - (160) 489 (160) 489
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKHBAR - (824) - (29,246) - (30,070)
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—H (913) (817) 15,119 16,263 14,206 15,446
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23.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority. The following amounts, determined
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated
balance sheet as assets/liabilities not realisable/due within
one year:

Deferred income tax assets RIEFTISTHREE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTISTRAE

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
The Group has unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$620,954,000 (2017: HK$849,404,000), which certain
amounts are subject to approval from the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department. Tax losses of PRC subsidiaries of
approximately HK$40,077,000 (2017: HK$3,746,000) have
an expiry period of five years, while tax losses of Hong Kong
subsidiaries have no expiry date. Tax losses can be carried
forward to offset future taxable income.

In addition, the Group has deductible temporary
differences arising from expected credit losses amounting
to approximately HK$25,999,000 as at 31 December 2018
which are not recognised as it is considered not probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise these
temporary differences.

23.

EEFREH (&)

fid 8 &% 5% BT THE A AT 35 2 HDR
BEREMHRBERAGE URBREME
MEERARER-RNERBMABR
FRERGNER R ABEEEHEER -
MIeEEFRAEERBRANTAR
—FRER PR EE BB :

2018 2017
HK$"000 HK$'000
BET T BT
14,206 15,861
(4) (415)
14,202 15,446

FEEFSHEE T EEARER A
375 38 R 2K JE BR 5 A 4 3R T Bh P A4S B
ZTIBIERER - AEEAARERTELD
75 % 620,954,000 7T (ZE —+4F : B
849,404,0007T) * HE O FERFEBH
B - R B R A S 2 M B A A8
FRIB47B % 40,077,000 T (T —H 45 -
7B #3,746,000) EREI R AT - ME D
BRI 2B ARIREEWEREA - f
18 0] 4588 DA SH R SR FE SR B LA o

N RZZE—-—N\F+_A=+—8 -
AEBERBHEEBEMEELNBE
25,999,000 7T K 7] 408 & BF 2= 22 () AR A
R ARRERTRESRAIAE TR LABE
HEZEEREZR -
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23.

24.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprise established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5-10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and associates
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2018, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2017: HK$388,000) for
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
the Group’s subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

BILLS AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The ageing analysis of bills and accounts payable is as
follows:

=EARN
fEiE+ @A

Within three months
Over twelve months

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bills and accounts
payable are denominated in the following currencies:

us$ ETT
RMB AR
EUR BL T

BRI AR AR £k 2018

23.

24.

RSB (&)

RIBEF AR EMSETE NP A
RS 2 INBI AR B (S F R INEI R & B R
2B AR 10% TR - R EN =
EEN\F—A—HEXTBEAN=-ZZF
+FE+-A=+—HUEBZEF - fHiF
B0 (A i B SN 35 & 2 P R VAR IR AT S
IR A - BISE 2 A R 7] gt & i@
A opASEmE  EAHEAS510% °
At NEBEERERFBE AL 2
ZEMBRARIREERGRNRZZEEN
F-A—HRBEEZBAMENZKRE
BARTEAOFL o

RZEBE—N\E+-A=+—8  #HEH®
AEEHRBAR  BHEQA KNG E QA
B9 R BE B B A i B 2 FRIB R E K
RIEFTER (ZZF— £ F : B 388,000
JL) °

FE A R B & B IR 1R

BN B M EMNIRERE DT -

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BET T B TIT
87,643 94,316
357 22,600
88,000 116,916

AR B R R IE KR A IR IR AV IR E B
ATHNERRBEM

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
70,912 83,682
- 22,227
17,088 11,007
88,000 116,916
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25.

26.

PROVISION FOR LAND RESTORATION AND

ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

At 1 January
Currency translation differences
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31 December

The provision for land restoration and environmental costs
is in relation to the estimated costs of complying with the
Group’s obligations for land reclamation. These costs are
expected to be incurred on mine closure, which are based on

current mineral reserve estimates.

OTHER (EXPENSE)/INCOME AND NET GAINS

Fair value (losses)/gains on:
— financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
— derivative financial instruments
Gains on reclassification of an associate to
available-for-sale financial assets
Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets
Interest income on:
— bank deposits
— other receivables
— due from associates
Dividend income
Dilution loss on an associate
Others

THERRRERARE

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT
4,125 3,804

- 321

(4,125) -

- 4,125

THERMRERABRGEERAEE
HERNE TR Z fET o LIRK
ALRBERBBEERFEHG - LA

IR AR E L

Hith () WA K K5 F 8

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
(restated)
BT T BT
(45 E%l|)
DFE(BE) WS
— AT EFEBEZIK
B HE 75 & B (68,671) 48,014
—TESMT A - (445)
& N R E 5 BT 4 & B 7S
& E W = 17,392
A EMEEERE
= (33,536)
FEUA :
—RITER 55 43
— & fib UL 5K 6,556 159
o A VNCISEN 2,360 2,190
A% S U A = 9
RN = - (26,343)
HAh 7,419 2,431
(52,281) 9,914
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-—Z— \F+_-_A=1+—HIFE

27. EXPENSES BY NATURE 27.

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution
expenses and general and administrative expenses are
analysed as follows:

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Operating lease rentals

Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ emoluments) (Note 29)

Provision for impairment of deposits,
prepayments and other receivables

Provision for impairment of amounts
due from associates

Provision for inventories FEEE

LEHEHES
(B1iE29)

B

Net exchange gains b 5% A
Auditors’ remuneration = E AN BN &
28. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 28.

Other operating expenses represent settlement of customer
claims in respect of disputes arose from the execution of
several sales contracts in 2017.

ME - R RREBITE

it & X R RO (B R

BEMESENEH

SIFESHERAN - HERDHERM—R
RITRERANEBERIITAT

BEBIAX (BREFTHE)

W TR E Al R YR

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)

BT T BETIT
(4= E %)

1,145 1,665
9,081 6,595
62,404 89,575
- 1,444

— 75

- (2,394)

(7) (14,817)

1,260 1,150

Hp Q& X H

HMKEXHRAR Tt FREET
HEARBTELMM IR ZEFPRR -

29. EEBAMAX
29. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
(restated)
BT T BT T
(45 E %)
Wages and salaries and other termination ¥7& T & R E BB BN

benefit 58,195 59,871

Share options granted to directors and BTESERIESNERE
employees - 26,160

Pension costs — defined contribution RIRK A — R E MG S
plans (Note (a)) (Biat @) 2,949 2,711
Staff welfare TR 1,260 833
62,404 89,575

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018
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29.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Pensions - defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to participate
in a defined contribution retirement scheme (the “Original Scheme”),
which is managed by independently administered funds. The Group’s
monthly contributions are based on 5% of employees’ monthly
salaries. The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the Group’s
contribution and the accrued interest thereon upon retirement or
leaving the Group after completing ten years of service or at a reduced
scale of 30% to 90% after completing three to nine years of services.

For the Hong Kong employees employed after 1 December 2000,
the Group has arranged for these employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme"), a defined contribution
scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
each of the Group and its employees make monthly contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. From 1 June 2014, both the
employer’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a maximum
of HK$1,500 per month per employee.

As stipulated by the rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China. The Group contributes to retirement
plans at rates of approximately 14% to 22% of the basic salaries of
its employees in Mainland China, and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s contributions to
the aforementioned schemes was approximately HK$2,969,000 (2017:
HK$2,821,000) without deduction of forfeited contributions of the
Original Scheme.

29.

BEBRAMAX (&)

(@)

BRE-REMKTE

FEBRBEERERHZERBUESER
ZAERFERNREE ([REHE]) - AEEET
HZHFIZER AFH 5%t E - RRIKEK
ERW T ERBEBEAARE  EEHERE
WOER 22 SR ER B B R R BT RIS, - e =
ENF R RITTHZ 30% F 90% Lk I 4R ©

AEBA_TTETF+_A—BEABREE
EEZH2EBHMAELHE ([aRESFT
) —(EABEBIZEATENREHRAKE
gl REmESHE  AEEREEESA
BIRBHRHIMEABSEONETE - FAKE
BHemMsnER - AT —WFENA—H
B EEREENSEERFESATEER
& AHEE1,5007T °

REBEHEDEPIRE  AREAETRHESS
HEREPHRNGE - AREREEER
REFEH14% Z22% HR o BREEFERID -
RE BB AAE M ERERS N RIERR
BRENNOEE - IRERRAGTEAER
NERRAEEMNZFREZSHE -

RER - AEBEE Fil s 8(FE A RE
A B 2,969,000 (Z T —H4F : B
2,821,0007T) * SWAEINKR R AT &80 R UL LK o
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29.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Name of director

EspE

Executive directors

Mr. CHAN Shing (Note (1))
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Ms. CHEUNG Kwan (Note (i)

Non-executive director
Mr. HUANG Shenglan

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming
Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa
Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai (Note (ii))

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018

HTES
BT A (FfE ()
HERAE
BERLE
SR EE
REXL (Hfa (i)

FUTES
RBERE

BUEHTES
EERLE
ZEERLE
REALE
BRERIESR A (A2t (i)

29. EERAEZ(E)

Bt : ()

(b) EBEREREEETMH
HE-Z-—\F+-A=+—HLFE &
BEERTBAAHNFMNT

Employer's

Salaries, contribution

allowances Discretionary to pension
Fees and benefits bonuses scheme Total

B 2H RIRGHE
e REH HiERS HEEH ot
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
- 6,098 1,000 266 7,364
- 2,880 150 144 3,174
- 2,160 150 108 2,418
- 2,130 200 107 2,437
319 - - - 319
446 - - - 446
240 = - - 240
240 - - - 240
300 - 200 - 500
1,545 13,268 1,700 625 17,138
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29.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Name of director

Esps

Executive directors

Mr. CHAN Shing (Note (1))
Mr. SIT Hoi Tung

Mr. KWOK Wai Lam

Mr. SHAM Kai Man

Ms. CHEUNG Kwan (Note (i)
Mr. WEI Jia Fu (Note (1)

Non-executive director
Mr. HUANG Shenglan (Note (i)

Independent non-executive
directors

Mr. CUI Shu Ming

Mr. CHAN Ming Fai (Note (ii))

Mr. TSANG Kwok Wa (Note (v)

Mr. CHEUNG Sing Din (Note ()

Notes:

HWITEE

B 5 A (1AL ()
HEREE
BEREE
SREE

RELL (L)
REBRE (Wt v)

FUTES
BBERE(Hiti)

BUFNTES

EEREE

BRERIB ok (Wit (i)
LEELLE (W)
REREEWE W)

29. EEBAMX(E)

Hiet - (&)

(b) ESKREREEEFME)
HE-ZT—+tF+t-A=T—HLFE &
BEFERITBAAROFHAT

Employer’s

Salaries contribution Employee

allowances  Discretionary topension  share option
Fees and benefits bonuses scheme benefit Total

e =B RIKGHE) ES
e RiEd miEEe HEFHR  BREER we
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETT BT BT BT
- 5,878 1,500 266 294 7,938
= 2,880 500 144 600 4,124
- 2,160 500 108 294 3,062
- 2,040 - 102 294 2,436
= 3,586 = 17 294 3,897
- 1,080 - - - 1,080
319 - - - 294 613
446 - - - 294 740
319 = = = 294 613
139 - - - 294 433
139 - - - 294 433
1,362 17,624 2,500 637 3,246 25,369

Hit -

(i) The chief executive of the Company is Mr. CHAN Shing, who is
also one of the executive directors of the Company.

(i) Retired on 7 June 2018.

(iii) Resigned on 10 December 2018.

(iv) Re-designated as non-executive director on 3 March 2017.

(v) Appointed on 2 June 2017.

(vi) Removed on 9 June 2017.

Salaries, allowance and benefits paid to or for the executive directors
are generally emoluments paid or payable by the Group in respect of
those persons’ other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

(@) ARBZITREERRBEE - TR

ARABZRITEEZ — -

(i) R=Z2—\FRALREE

(i) RZT—NF+=ZA+HBE-

vy RIE—tF=A=HFERIERT
BEx-

(v) RZE—tFARNAZHERE-

(v) RZZE—tFSANAEER-

XN TFROEFLARATESTIHNFS -
RU LB —RAARERZFEARF R
HIfB AR EHEEE M EMRY M
BAANENE=I
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29. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (continued) 29.
Notes: (continued)
(o) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include four (2017: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to
the remaining highest paid individual for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018 are as follows:
Salaries, allowance and benefits e EMKRER
Employer’s contributions to pension scheme RINGHEI B E K
Employee share option benefit & B BB AR A
For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018, no payments had
been made by the Group to the directors or the highest paid individual
in respect of inducement to join or compensation for loss of office,
and no directors or the highest paid individual waived any of the
emoluments.
The emoluments fell within the following bands:
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) < &= (Bx)
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 - 4,000,000 7 7T
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 — 4,500,000 % 7T
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 - 5,000,000 7% 7T
30. FINANCE COSTS 30.
Interest on: A
— bank borrowings —RITER
— finance lease liabilities —REHERE
— convertible bonds — AR B 75
- notes payables — BN EE
— other loans —HaE R

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018

BEBRAMAX (&)

Hiat - ()

()

hfUBEHFMAL

AEREESHHHORLALTBENL (=
T—tF M) EE - MFANHFMELX
EBNIMHARR - BE—_T—LFR-F
—NFF+-A=+—HLEFE BRTR=FH
ALEFBMNT -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT ST T
4,471 9,478
224 314

= 3,234

4,695 13,026

HE-Z—+t§E-"F—-\F+=-A=1+—
BIEFE » 7N 5 B4 4o R ot B oo it Bk i 8
MEFSZEE A LTINRIE  BESEEK
B o A TRERERME -

BB R A

EflesENT :
Number of individuals
AH
2018 2017
- 1
- 1
1 1
2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
(restated)
BET T BT T
(#&E )
11,073 11,415
- 50
30,577 4,738
9,772 797
6,522 2,036
57,944 19,036
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31.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
2035. The Company'’s subsidiaries established in the British
Virgin Islands are exempted from British Virgin Islands income
taxes. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong for the year.
Subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China are subject to
Mainland China enterprise income tax of 25% (2017: 25%)
on their taxable income determined according to Mainland
China tax laws. Taxation on other overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at
the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Current tax:
Current tax on profits for the year
— Hong Kong taxation

RERIA -

—BABME

Adjustments in respect of prior years: LARTSEE % -
— Hong Kong taxation —BANIE

Deferred tax: IRETIE -

Origination and reversal of temporary s E=EES REE
differences

Income tax expense/(credit) FsBiH, (B1E)

R 2 B FE AR

31.

FrEfix it (&E)

ARG RHERENMEEE-_S=-H
FoRABRELHSKIL B RRT
CHRBETBESHEH BBMNER
BAFEEAEEARFREEENERS
B Z165% (ZZF—+H4F :16.5%) 8
e ANEBNFREZHBAREMRF
Bl (b ZEFTISHL - =R BBEHEE AR B
T8 225% (=ZF —+tF : 25%)s1 & -
HtgonaF s BB RIBGTFEERE
AMBMBEREELCEEBER 2IRT
THEEE -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)

BET T BETIT
(4= E %)

374 -
1,112 32
1,486 32
1,084 (1,220)
2,570 (1,188)
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31. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued) 31. FiSBixd (8HE) (&)
The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from NEEFHEREHAEE 2 HIBER
the theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of ERAARRALBERZREMmMAEZ
the home country of the Company as follows: Eimii sz ZRa N -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
(restated)
BT T PR T T
(4= E %)
Continuing operations: FREREET
Loss before income tax BRFT{S BRI &8 (201,643) (53,765)
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% ERFE16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) ZT—+F :165%)FE (33.271) (8,871)
Effect of different taxation rates in HEMBERNEMNE 2 &
other countries 12,458 13,253
Income not subject to taxation BARDZWA (1,375) (47,256)
Expenses not deductible for taxation ikl
purposes 10,857 33,445
Tax losses for which no deferred income — ARHERIE LTS & &=
tax assets was recognised R FR 18 12,224 9,745
Adjustments in respect of prior years VAR [Z 33 1,112 32
Others Hith 565 (1,536)
Income tax expense/(credit) FsBi i,/ (BE|) 2,570 (1,188)

BRI AR AR £k 2018
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32.

33.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are calculated
by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

32.

BR(ER) B

FREAREE (BB BNRERD
AR A ARN (BR) BF - KR
FASRITERBOINETFOREE -

2018 2017
(restated)
(A5 E3)
Loss from continuing operations RATIERFEE ARIGRE
attributable to owners of the SEICEEBEE
Company (HK$'000) (BEBFT) (203,947) (45,415)
Profit from discontinued operations RARIERFEE ARIGRE
attributable to owners of the Company BRI E B
(HK$'000) GE% T L) 94,451 37,700
Loss attributable to owners of the RAGIERFER ARGLER
Company (HK$'000) (B%FT) (109,496) (7,715)
Weighted average number of ordinary B BT E AR N AE T E 2
shares in issue (thousands) (F&t) 5,070,730 4,979,271
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share &% E A K #5% (E518)
(HK cents) &F GBI
From continuing operations REFELEED (4.02) (0.91)
From discontinued operations RE BRI T 1.86 0.76
(2.16) (0.15)

The outstanding share options and convertible bonds during
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018
have an anti-dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings per
share.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

33.

HE_Z—tEk=ZZ—-—N\F+=A
=T —HIEFEARRITEDERER
AR EFHESRER (BR) BFEF
BERESHEER -

iz 5

EERTMHRREBEZE_ZT-/\FT_-A
=t BUEFERNRERE (Tt
FE) -
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 34. HZAaBRERERMFE

CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash used in operations (a) =EFANERESE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BET I
Loss for the year FEEE (109,762) (14,877)
Adjustments for: I
— Tax — I8 2,570 (1,229)
— Depreciation of property, —WE - S RFEWT
plant and equipment = 1,372 2,866
— Amortisation — B 3 56 212
— Property, plant and equipment —WE - S RFER
impairment charge (=] - 18,506
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HEHB AR Z W (95,067) (66,134)
— Loss/(Gains) on disposal of property, —HEE - EER
plant and equipment BB ERS
(Wezs) 1 (202,069)
— Gain on reclassification of an associate ~ —B & A A1 & 7l fE A] i
to available-for-sale financial assets &S B E E WS = (17,392)
— Impairment loss on available-for-sale — A EMBEER
financial assets EE18 - 33,536
— Dilution loss on an associate —HE N T EEE = 26,343
— Share option expenses —MERE - 26,160
— Fair value losses/(gains) on financial — R AFEBBERY
assets at fair value through RH B EENTF
profit or loss BEEE () 68,671 (48,014)
— Fair value losses on derivative —TEESmM T A
financial instruments NI EEE - 433
— Dividends received from financial — W EUR A FEE B
assets at fair value through B2 HI IR B B 75
profit or loss BERS - (9)
— Interest income — R B U A (8,971) (2,431)
— Finance costs —BE A 57,944 19,044
— Share of (profits)/losses of associates — PGB & R A
(BF) &8 (2,023) 86,840
— Share of losses of joint ventures —Frhe e hEEE 1,263 164
— Net impairment losses on financial —BEEREERE
assets R 18,814 =
— Provision for impairment of deposits, —i&® BRNREREAM
prepayments and other receivables JE W ROR B B - 1,444
— Provision for amounts due from — Bt N B R FURE R
associates i - 75
— Provision for inventories —TFE RS - (2,394)
— Effect of foreign exchange rate changes —#SMNES[E R4 8) 7 5/ & 4,109 (26,692)
(61,023) (165,618)
Changes in working capital: EEEPEE
— Inventories —FE (50,834) 48,774
— Bills and accounts receivable — FE IR B e VR TE 754 26,378
— Contract liabilities —&5HEaE 32,179 =
— Deposits, prepayments and —%Re  BRRREM
other receivables & WKk (134,906) (120,764)
— Due from associates S VNCIDNEN (20,934) (14,500)
— Due from joint ventures VNI (15) (8)
— Bills and accounts payable — BN N E IR (6,689) (123,573)
— Other payables and accruals — E M fE IR IE & FE 5T
£H 14,762 140,576
— Due to an associate — R &N B FRIE (23) 60
Cash used in operations CUEFTRAMIR & (226,729) (208,675)
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

(0

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash

3. GEBREREBERMET(E)

b) BERESZENEBRDHF

equivalents
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET I
Cash and cash equivalents for MEEHeRERMS -
the purpose of the consolidated RekREFEBWWT
statement of cash flows:
Cash at bank and on hand BT REFERS 70,251 149,226
Less: Pledged bank balances A EIRIR T AR AR (346) (27,696)
Bank overdrafts RITBEX (4,277) =
Cash and cash equivalents BHehIBREEEY 65,628 121,530

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

At 1 January 2018

Changes from financing HETINHERE
cash flows

Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A A

Interest expense FEFH

Interest paid and payable classified

as operating cash flows EEBREERE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=A=1+-H

R=ZE-\E—HF—H

ENRENFESE

(0 BMEZFDRELEENHIR

Bank Convertible Other Notes
borrowings bonds loans payables
RITER WBKREF HttEX EARB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT E%TrT BT EETx
181,714 140,300 126,039 23,065
39,636 99,221 4,432 85,026

- - (56,660) -

- 30,577 - 9,772

- (16,282) - (5.945)
221,350 253,816 73,811 111,918
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+5—HA—-AH

Changes from financing cash flows B & EBIRE ST E

Foreign exchange movement ERBE

Equity component of HRESER
convertible bonds A

Interest expense FlE s

Interest payable classified ERFENEREE
as operating cash flows EBNRETE

At 31 December 2017 RIZ—+%

+-A=1+-H

BRI AR AR F; 2018

3. GEBERERMEE (&)

(0 RMETHFELSENEHIRE ()
Finance

Bank lease Convertible Other Notes
borrowings liabilities bonds loans payables
ROER BEAEAE THERES e S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BRI BB BB BB
359,055 3,065 - 56,357 -
(177,341) (3,065) 152,492 69,379 22,800
- - - 303 -
- - (14,236) - -
- - 4738 - 797
- - (2,694) - (532)
181,714 - 140,300 126,039 23,065
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35.

LITIGATION

(a)

Legal Proceedings in Hong Kong in relation to
BCHL

On 4 November 2016, Burwill Commercial Holdings
Limited (“BCHL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as plaintiff issued a writ of summons in
the High Court of Hong Kong against Charm Best
Investments Inc. (“Charm Best”) and Mr. IP Kwok Kin
(“Mr. IP") as defendants (“HCA 2895/2016").

BCHL made the claim for, inter alia, the declaration
that BCHL validly exercised its rights under the deed of
share charge dated 13 September 2016 (the “Deed”).
BCHL's position is that it has exercised its rights under
the Deed to, inter alia, take over the 55% charged
shares in China Land Assets Limited (the “Charged
Shares”) on 14 October 2016. As a result, Charm Best
was no longer the shareholder of China Land Assets
Limited (“CLA") and Mr. IP was no longer a director
of CLA. The Charged Shares have been transferred to
the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Double Honour
Enterprises Limited, which holds the Charged Shares on
trust as a nominee.

A Statement of Claim (the “Claim”) under the action
of HCA 2895/2016 was filed by BCHL on 13 February
2017 which was subsequently amended and filed on 9
March 2017.

On 23 May 2017, Mr. IP and Charm Best issued a
defence and counterclaim in the High Court of Hong
Kong against BCHL and CLA under HCA 2895/2016.
BCHL as plaintiff (by original action) had filed and
served the Reply and Defence to Counterclaim on 17
July 2017.

On 18 November 2016, Mr. IP and Charm Best
issued a writ of summons in the High Court of Hong
Kong against, inter alias, BCHL and CLA (“HCA
3015/2016"). On 4 January 2017, the Court queried
the need for the plaintiffs in HCA 3015/2016 (Mr. IP
and Charm Best), to issue such legal action and then
on 6 February 2017, the Court directed the plaintiffs in
HCA 3015/2016 to proceed by way of a counterclaim
under HCA 2895/2016.

As at 31 December 2018, the date of trial of HCA
2895/2016 has not been fixed.

35.

REBARERBE RN EEFA

R-ZE—R"F+—AWUAB A7
ZENBRARBEEMEMEARR
AEl([BEEEEDEARSE AR
BB =EER M E A Charm Best
Investments Inc. ([ Charm Best |) &
HEREEREE ([EA4 D) BHEMNS
#A (THCA2895/2016]) °

ERRNFEHREENR(BEFRE
) EPREREEBRITEEETR
WITZE—R"ENAT=BRMHE
R ([28]) - BEEEETHEE
BEN(EFRBEE)R_E—F
TATHBAEE T55%MBEE
ERABVEIRRG ([EFRG])
Charm Best Et T~ B AFTEEER
BRAR([FEEE] REMELE
NMTBRNIABEEESE - BRRMG
TeE T N R B 2 Z [T B A 7 Double
Honour Enterprises Limited {E & X
BARGEFEERXRSE -

ERmECN—E—+tF-_A+=
H#8 2= FHCA 2895/2016 7 B &=
(TERDBFMEFE  KEFTHE
EENEN—_E—+F=ANH
FE-

R-E—+FRA-_+=H" %
% H K Charm Best{E & Z= £ HCA
2895/2016#H H AEHEBEEK
FIBEERT SRS ARRD G
MRBR -BEEEEARRGR
EAER_Z—tFELA+LHB
RERZ BRI R ZELFE ©

R-ZT—XRFE+—A+N\B &%
4 & Charm Best R & 7B = Z A bx [A]
(BEhBR) ERRERTBEER
HEF S AR (THCA 3015/2016]) °
—E—+F— AMNBARE S HCA
30152016 JR& A (S K Charm
Best ) & H HCA 3015/2016 A 2 5
MNEE - HER-_ZT—+F—
A7NBAB S HCA 3015/2016 /R
£ A FEYTHCA 2895/2016 F /& i B

o

=

R-ZZE—NE+=-HA=+—H &
HHCA 2895/2016 2 #& &1 B HA R
HETE °
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35.

LITIGATION (continued)

(b)

Legal proceeding in the PRC in relation to %[5 3=
EEXERAT and EERSEEFRAA

The Company has been provided with a writ dated 16
June 2015 (“Writ") filed with the Shandong Province
Yantai City Intermediate People’s Court of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") under which an individual
(“Plaintiff”) alleged that he is the beneficial owner of
50% of the equity interest in KGR EREGR A
7] (“Allegation”) and that 5 &R ZREGR A 7
holds such 50% equity interest in <5 FRETRE AR
A&l (" #5235 50% equity interest”) as nominee for
the Plaintiff. In the Writ, 2K[5 2R & B AR 2 7] has
been named as defendant. In the interim, as a result
of the Allegation, the Shangdong Province Yantai City
Intermediate People’s Court of the PRC had imposed a
freezing order in respect of 35% equity interest in %&
PPREBREAR AT heldby SERBREBRAF
(the “Freezing Order”). The frozen equity interest was
restricted from transfer or pledge during the existence
of the Freezing Order but the operations of %[5 252
MEZABR 2 7] will not be hindered by the imposition of
the Freezing Order. The trial of the Allegation was held
in August 2016 that the Plaintiff lost a lawsuit and the
judgement was received in the early 2017 that <[5 2=
#ZTEE AR 2 F was not liable to any claim and the
Plaintiff alleged that he owned %[5 253 50% equity
interest was not in fact. The Plaintiff served a notice of
appeal to the judgement. The trial of the final appeal
was held in December 2017 and it was judged that the
Plaintiff should have 0.67% of the equity interest in 3%
GRBEEXARAA.

On 15 May 2018, the Company sold the entire issued
shares of Smart Task Limited to Zaozhuang Dongya
Enterprise Company Limited (EH R T EEZEGRE A
7l). All matters of Allegation remained unchanged
on or before 15 May 2018 and there were no further
information to be provided after the disposal.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
impact of the above litigations and considered that
such litigations do not have significant effect on
Group’s daily operations.

BRI AR AR £k 2018

35.

RABERBKEEBWERRLF
REBRBEMEFR AR EENR

E/N

AARWEERFEARLFE
(&) IIREEETmRRARE
RELAEA—S—RENATA
AzFE ([RFE)) BFSE
—2EATRE])EBEAFES
M5 2 B TE % A BR A 7] 50% A% #E
([ZIETB))  MESFBREER
NAEEAREZRBEARER
EHGREREERRARS50%MK
W ([H 5 ES0%RAE]) © K5
ZEEXBRARABFEANZH
4o HifE B RAEETH AR
ARZERERZIEBEB L YRS
ERSREERAAMBEHRG RS
BEARQF35%KESE H ([3%
BIH]) o B BEEZE I
MRS F B R B4 - A - 3K
BREREARAFIZEHEZSET
EXZBEHYE - ZEBEHE
R-T—RENALRT - HRESE
BEF - R —tF R H R
KEREEEAR AR TEREL
MEM  MREEBEERG RS
50% REHET AR o [ 25 4 #1787
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A7 MR ERERER GRS
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36.

37.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the
lessee

At 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

Not later than one year THER—F
Later than one year and not later than — &%

five years BETEARE
Over five years ey kS

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At 31 December 2018, the following assets were pledged:

(a)

Certain inventories of approximately HK$67,601,000
(2017: HK$27,355,000);

Certain financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of approximately HK$115,157,000 (2017:
HK$167,792,000);

Certain bills and accounts receivable of approximately
HK$38,655,000 (2017: HK$126,436,000); and

Certain bank balances of approximately HK$346,000
(2017: HK$27,696,000).

36.

37.

AERIREE

EEHEARE-FEEREEA

R-ZEBE—N\E+-A=+—H K&£E
R A% 1 AT 8 2 & E A S T R 2R S A
ZEREAENZAREINT

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BETIT
9,511 10,845
3,109 16,958
- 7,213
12,620 35,016
BEEA
R-F-—NF+-A=t—8B UTE

EDTHEA

(a)

Burwill Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

BB FE X B 67,601,000 (=
T —+4F : H¥27,3550007T) ;

1R AT EFE BB 5 IR A 5 75
B E#)75#115,157,0007T (=&
—+4F : ##167,792,0007T) ;

20 E U ZE R K R UR IR TE 4 7
38,655,000 T (=& —+ 4 : B
126,436,0007C) : &

19 3R 17 45 42 40 75 £ 346,000 7T
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38.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

On 4 May 2018, the Company, Zaozhuang Dongya
Enterprise Company Limited (as Purchaser) and the
Mr. Hou Chuangi (as guarantor) entered into the
agreement pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Smart
Task Limited to the Purchaser for a consideration of
RMB18,000,000.

Smart Task Limited and its subsidiaries (the “2018
Disposal Group”) were principally engaged in the
business of mineral resources operation of the Group.

Upon the disposal of the 2018 Disposal Group in May
2018, the Group had discontinued its mineral resources
operation. Accordingly, the results of mineral resources
operation have been presented as discontinued
operation in the consolidated income statement. The
comparative financial information in respect of for the
year ended 31 December 2017 has been reclassified
to conform with current presentation in accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”.

BRI AR AR £k 2018

38.

ERIEREXR

(a)

BE-2-N\F+-A=+-HL
FE

RZZE—NFERAMA ' AQFA]
EHROEXARAR (ERBER)
BEEEEE (ERERT) F5
W Bt AARERERE
77 i & Smart Task Limited &) & &8
BEETRA BeREAARK
18,000,000 T °

Smart Task Limited X E Kf B A 7
([Z2E—N\FHEEE]) ETERE

R-ZB-NFRALE-_FT—N\F
FEEEEZ AKECDR KSR
BRER - At BERFEH 2%
RENGEABRRERTE2I/ERLE
REXE - BE_T—LF+_H
=t BLEFELBMBEERRE
MO UNEEBMHREER
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38. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

38. CDRIEEEE(Z)

(@) For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) (a)

(i)

Discontinued operations

Analysis of the results of discontinued operations,
and the gain recognised on the disposal of the

2018 Disposal Group, is as follows:

Revenue
Expenses

Loss before income tax of
discontinued operations
Income tax credit

Loss after tax from discontinued
operations
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit/(Loss) for the year from
discontinued operations
attributable to:

— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Profit/(Loss) for the year from

discontinued operations

Cash flows

Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows
Financing cash flows

Total cash flows

YA
i

BRETIS I ATE 4 LE
REXBGZBE
PRIS B E A

FEFRADKL
B FBIRVIR B
H & BB A Rl 2 W s

FERBOKRIEEE
£BaMN (BE)
BB
—ARBESFHHA
— IR

FERBERIEEE
xBan,/ (BR)

BER

LERINRERE
REZHNASRE
REARHNRERE

BEERE

BE-ZE-/\S+-A=1+—-HIL

FE(E)

(i) BARUZEERL
DRI EEB 2 EERT
E_T-\FHEEBEZE
HRKESTET

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T T
(616) (23,174)
(616) (23,174)
(616) (23,174)
95,067 =
94,451 (23,174)
94,717 (16,012)
(266) (7,162)
94,451 (23,174)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T BT T
(449) (104)
1,631 =
1,182 (104)
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38. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 38. BRIREXER (&)
(a) For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued) (a) BEZE=Z—N\E+=-H=+—HL
FE(E)

(i)  Disposal of 2018 Disposal Group (i) HE—E—)/\FHFEELH
The assets and liabilities of the 2018 —E-N\ESEEEZEE
Disposal Group are as follows: REEWT :

2018
HK$’'000
BT T
Leasehold land and land use rights TAE b & i fh A 3,698
Property, plant and equipment M - AR R 87,531
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &% ~ T8 15 5k & E U7X 4,262
Due from associates ot NEIUSE N 219
Cash and bank balances R RIRTTHEH 125
Borrowings B (56,660)
Bills and accounts payable FEf 4R K FE TR IE (22,227)
Other payables and accruals HitnfeTIRIBE R ESTE A (57,981)
Provision for land restoration and T8 R IR A AN
environmental costs (4,125)
Net liabilities of the subsidiaries MEARNFARE (45,158)
Non-controlling interest FEERR A A 27,242

(17,916)

BRI AR AR £k 2018
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38. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(@) For the year ended 31 December 2018 (continued)

(i) Disposal of 2018 Disposal Group (continued)

Details of sales proceeds and gain on
disposal are as follow:

Consideration

Cost directly attributable to the disposal

Net liabilities disposed of, net of
non-controlling interest

Release of translation reserve

Gain on disposal of the subsidiaries

Proceeds on disposal of the 2018 Disposal
Group are as follows:

Proceeds received
Proceeds receivable

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Proceeds received in cash
Cost directly attributable to the disposal
Cash and bank balances disposed of

=t+—HItFE

38. CDRIEEEE(Z)

(a) BE=E-—-NF+=-A=+—-HL

EEE)
(i) HEZE—-\FEFEEH
(&)
FFESREREBWRIZER
mE
2018
HK$'000
BT T
RE 21,687
HEEBERA (51)
HERFEE - MR IEER
FEZR 17,916
HE e 55,515
HENB QR Z W 95,067
HE—ZE-N\EFELEEMER
ERmT
S W R AT X 1,807
i & PR IR 18 19,880
21,687
HEELENBESRA TS :
HE IR AYIR € Wt 1,807
HEEEKA (51)
HEMIRE MIBITEH (125)
1,631
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38.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

On 8 February 2017, Burwill and Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (as
vendor), the Company (as guarantor) and Huge Mark
International Holdings Limited (as purchaser) entered
into the conditional sales and purchases agreement
dated 8 February 2017, pursuant to which the vendor
has conditionally agreed to sell and the purchaser
has conditionally agreed to acquire the sale shares,
representing the entire issued share capital of Burwill
Steel Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the vendor, at the consideration of HK$97,000,000.

Burwill Steel Company Limited and its subsidiaries (the
“2017 Disposal Group”) were principally engaged
in the business of steel processing operations of the
Group.

Upon the disposal of the Disposal Group in April
2017, the Group had discontinued its steel processing
operations. Accordingly, the results of steel processing
operations have been presented as discontinued
operations in the consolidated income statement.

BRI AR AR £k 2018

38.

ERIEREEH (&)

(b)

BE-2—tF+-A=+-AL
FE

RZZ—+t% = A/\H ' Burwill
and Company Limited (A RQ 7 2 &
MBLAE) (ERER) - ARaEl (fE
RERT) BRKBEBRIERERA
Al (ERER) BB KHEZRH
B BEABREGHMRELE
I B B 755 1541 F 2 88 B Burwill
Steel Company Limited (& 75 & & Kt
BAR) 22 EITRE-BH
J& X (B /57 % 97,000,000 7T ©

Burwill Steel Company Limited 5 £
MEAR ([ ZE—t&5FEER])
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38. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued)

(i)

Discontinued operations

Analysis of the results of discontinued operations,
and the gain recognised on the disposal of 2017

Disposal Group, is as follows:

Revenue
Expenses

Loss before income tax of discontinued
operations
Income tax credit

Loss after tax from discontinued operations

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Profit for the year from discontinued
operations attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

38. BRIEREEK(Z)

(b) BE=F—tHF+=-A=+—-HL

FEE)

() BRIUFLZERE

ERIEEEEFE 2 EER T
E_T+EFEEEZE
BRI IT ¢
2017
HK$'000
T
A -
oganl (5,301)

BRETIS PRI E R IEEE X
Z B8
PRSI E IR

FERBOCRIERERBZ

BR B 1% 5 18
HEME ARz W

FERBORILEEEE
AFEFER
- RARBEEFAA
- SRR AR

FERBEDRILE
A ER AT

(5,301)
41

(5,260)
66,134

60,874

60,874

60,874
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38. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 38. BRIEKLEEK(E)
(b) For the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) b) BE=Z—t&+=-HA=+—HL
FE(#)
(i)  Discontinued operations (continued) () BAUZEERLE)
Cash flows BHE5
2017
HK$’000
BET T
Operating cash flows HERNRERE (2,784)
Investing cash flows KREEHHNRESRE 52
Financing cash flows BEFINRSRE -
Total cash flows RIFESNE (2,732)
(i)  Disposal of 2017 Disposal Group (i) HE-—E—+tFHEEH
The assets and liabilities arising from the disposal HEZEERBENAT :
are as follows:
2017
HK$'000
ST
Leasehold land and land use rights THE T R b {E AR 4,238
Property, plant and equipment VI - R R ERE 6,958
Deferred income tax assets REFTSIREE 28,893
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables & ~ TE 1 7 5 E b FE U 3¢ 10
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHERR 44
Other payables and accruals HipfEIRIERESTE A (347)

Net assets of the subsidiaries WEBARFEE 39,796

BRIERBER AT FI; 2018
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38. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 38. BRIREXER (&)

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued) b) #2=—ZF—tF+=-HA=+—HL

FE(E)
(i)  Disposal of 2017 Disposal Group (continued) (i) HE-—ZE-—tFHEEH

(#&)
Details of sales proceeds and gain on disposal are IR RIEREEWHIFR

as follow: LU

2017
HK$’000
PR T T
Consideration A 97,000
Cost directly attributable to the disposal HEBEKAR (960)
Net assets disposed of HERNEEFE (39,796)
Release of reserve i 8 [ 8% 9,890
Gain on disposal of the subsidiaries HERB AR Z K 66,134

Proceeds on disposal of the subsidiaries are & KB R R TS RS

as follows: LU
Proceeds received &S B8 PT 1S 3K 95,996
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENBRSRAIEE :

Proceeds received in cash HEWEIAIR e W 97,000
Cost directly attributable to the disposal HE BB (960)
Cash and bank balances disposed of HEMIRE RRTEH (44)

95,996
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BERIRS
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial R BHRERAEMBIOSREN - &
statements, the Group had the following material related SERBE=_Z—N\F+ZHA=+—H
party transactions for the year ended 31 December 2018: IEFEBETUTERBHEALTRS
(a) Related party transactions which were carried out () RAEEEEEEKBRRETETZH
in the normal course of the Group’s business are ERRZWME :
as follows:
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest income received from B Ut & 2 R A B A
associates 2,360 2,190
These related party transactions did not constitute Z RN 7 R 5 M TR R PR
connected transactions or continuing connected 4 FHiRBIE1AAEFT R ERRE
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A the Rules R HIFBRAER S o
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.
(b) Compensation to key management personnel by ETEEBEAEME
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Wages and salaries HE&TE 15,729 20,922
Pension costs HELY NDWIN
— defined contribution plans —RE MG E 625 637
Staff welfare BT&EF 784 564
Employee share option benefits & B B AxiEE A = 3,246
17,138 25,369
40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 40. kBB F
Certain comparative figures have been restated to conform ETUHBRBEFEEIABRIR2RAFH
with current year presentation including those for the FERIE ST -

discontinued operations.

ERIEIRAR AR Fik 2018
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41. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 41. XATGWNEEABREFEE 22T

COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2018 REB-N\F+ZA=1T—HZEXAH
NEEREX
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET I
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries HEBARRE 69,863 70,910
Due from subsidiaries YNNG 503,571 503,571
Club debentures BHEES 90 90
Total non-current assets BIERBEE 573,524 574,571
Current assets RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other Ze - B R E AR
receivables 16,245 4,792
Due from subsidiaries I ENGINE:N 518,346 444,631
Due from associates Ea) NI E 94,592 98,407
Financial assets at fair value through RATEFE BB
profit or loss MGEE 156 292
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTEH 891 768
Total current assets BREEE 630,230 548,890
Total assets BEE 1,203,754 1,123,461
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners ARG ERIEEAEMLER
of the Company
Share capital % AR 510,962 497,283
Other reserves (Note) H A (H7aE) 1,147,153 1,129,070
Accumulated losses (Note) RETBE (W) (842,145) (681,785)
Total equity e 815,970 944,568
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Borrowings B 71,301 163,365
Total non-current liabilities RIETEBARE 71,301 163,365
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41. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 41. XATMEEERERNHEZ2EH (&)
COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December 2018 REB-N\F+ZA=1T—HZZEXAH
(continued) HWEEEEBXR(Z)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Current liabilities RBAE
Due to subsidiaries NI EPNGIE ] 10,946 10,034
Due to associates R Hgh N B 58 4 24
Other payables and accruals H A A IRIE K& B 5T & A 11,100 5,470
Borrowings BN 294,433 =
Total current liabilities Y E RSN 316,483 15,528
Total liabilities waE 387,784 178,893
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 1,203,754 1,123,461
Net current assets REBEEFE 313,747 533,362
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR 887,271 1,107,933
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the AARMBEBBEREN - E—NLFE=
Board of Directors on 29 March 2019 and were signed on its B-+hBEZEERIE  WETHA
behalf by: +TRAE%Z:
CHAN SHING KWOK WAI LAM
PR 458 BEFR
Chairman Director
£ o
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41. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 41. XATNEESBREHEZEH (&)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: Reserves movement of the Company Hiat - RRBIFEE 2 ZE
Capital Share-based Convertible
Share redemption Contributed compensation bonds Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total
WA
kil HAERERE LN JRRRE  TARESRRE Zithi ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

¥R L avn BT BRI LS BRI BT

At 1 January 2017 RE-t5-A-H 850,865 12,037 28,004 = = (664,658) 426,248

2

Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - (17.127) (17.127)
Repurchase of shares BERR (3.331) - - - - - (3331)
Employee share option scheme: [EEERET

- value of employee senices -EEREEE - - - 26,160 - - 26,160

- share options exercsed ~fifiekiE 1,663 - = (564) - = 1,099
Isue of convertible bonds EARES

- equity component -BRENTH - - - - 14236 - 14236
At 31 December 2017 RZE-+F+-A=1-A 849,197 12,037 228,004 25,5% 14,236 (681,785) 447,285
At1 January 2018 R=F-\§-A-B 849,197 12,037 228,004 25,59 14,236 (681,785) 447,285
Redassfication on the adoption B E G

of HKFRS 9 BiinR - - - - = (65) (65)

849,197 12,037 228,004 25,59 14,236 (681,850) 41,22

Loss forthe year EREE - - - - - (160,587) (160,587)
Repurchase of shares BERR (1,858) - - - - = (1,858)
Employee share opton scheme: [ERBRERD:

- share options exercsed —{ritHE 30633 - - (10,400) - - 20233
Transfer of share option resene upon BB R el Bt

the fofeture or expiry BEERERR

of share options - - - (292) - 29 -
31 Deerber 2018 AoE-NE2A=t-8 §mn 12037 18004 14504 14236 (802,49 30508
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Five Years’ Financial Summary f1 F 8§ E

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five AEEAERMAMBREE %48 BELARE
financial years are as follows: wm

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BT ARTrT BT #ABTr A%TI

Results |
Revenue WA
Continuing operations RECEER 2,305,467 2,491,789 2,647,915 4,500,065 6,005,309
Discontinued operations ERIEEEE - = 56,024 198,981 292,228

(Loss)/Profit attributable to (BR) /BiSER

owners of the Company RRRERFEAA

arises from: KA :
Continuing operations SELEET (203,947) (45,415)  (175,756) (86,545) (19,204)
Discontinued operations BRIEREER 94,451 37,700 (32,140) (36,908)  (259,924)

(109,496) (7,715)  (207,896)  (123,453)  (279,128)

Loss attributable to EE5R B

Non-controlling interests RIEE R = (266) (7,162) (6,468) (7,680) (70,489)
Loss for the year FEBR (109,762) (14,877)  (214,364)  (131,133)  (349,617)
Assets and liabilities BEEKEE
Non-current assets FERBEE 296,870 360,327 583,058 480,121 384,841
Current assets mEEE 1,521,758 1,432,406 1,130,956 2,448,170 2,838,305
Total assets BEE 1,818,628 1,792,733 1,714,014  2,928291 3,223,146
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 71,305 224,565 62,273 60,695 61,091
Current liabilities TEAE 931,275 616,362 718,401 1,393,492 1,679,271
Total liabilities BEE 1,002,580 840,927 780,674 1,454,187 1,740,362
Total equity iR 816,048 951,806 933,340 1,474,104 1,482,784

212 BRI AR AR £k 2018
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